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Since its establishment in 1918, Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. has been 

guided by its basic management philosophy, which states that the mission of an 

enterprise is to contribute to the progress and development of society and the 

well-being of people worldwide through its business activities.

In fiscal 2008, which was the first year of our three-year mid-term management 

plan, GP3, we pushed ahead with efforts to accelerate growth. We also accelerated 

efforts in environmental management, positioning the reduction of environmental 

impact in all our business activities, as an equally important  management policy 

alongside the generation of steady growth with profitability.

In line with its twin corporate vision of contributing to realizing a ubiquitous 

 networking society and coexistence with the global environment, Matsushita will 

continue striving for global excellence by working to drive a sustained increase in 

corporate value. As part of this drive, we plan to change our name to Panasonic 

Corporation on October 1, 2008.
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Global Excellence

This Annual Report includes forward-looking statements (within the meaning of Section 27A 
of the U.S. Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 
1934) about Matsushita and its Group companies (the Matsushita Group). To the extent that 
statements in this Annual Report do not relate to historical or current facts, they constitute 
forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are based on the current 
assumptions and beliefs of the Matsushita Group in light of the information  currently 
available to it, and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other  factors. Such 
risks, uncertainties and other factors may cause the Matsushita Group’s actual results, 
performance, achievements or financial position to be materially different from any future 
results, performance, achievements or financial position expressed or implied by these 
forward-looking statements. Matsushita undertakes no obligation to publicly update any 
forward-looking statements after the date of this Annual Report.

Investors are advised to consult any further disclosures by Matsushita in its subsequent 
filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934.

The risks, uncertainties and other factors referred to above include, but are not limited 
to, economic conditions, particularly consumer spending and corporate capital expendi-
tures in the United States, Europe, Japan, China and other Asian countries; volatility in 
demand for electronic equipment and components from business and industrial customers, 
as well as consumers in many product and geographical markets; currency rate fluctuations, 

notably between the yen, the U.S. dollar, the euro, the Chinese yuan, Asian currencies and 
other currencies in which the Matsushita Group operates businesses, or in which assets 
and liabilities of the Matsushita Group are denominated; the ability of the Matsushita Group 
to respond to rapid technological changes and changing consumer preferences with timely 
and cost-effective introductions of new products in markets that are highly competitive in 
terms of both price and technology; the ability of the Matsushita Group to achieve its 
business objectives through joint ventures and other collaborative agreements with other 
companies; the ability of the Matsushita Group to maintain competitive strength in many 
product and geographical areas; the possibility of incurring expenses resulting from any 
defects in products or services of the Matsushita Group; the possibility that the Matsushita 
Group may face intellectual property infringement claims by third parties; current and 
potential, direct and indirect restrictions imposed by other countries over trade, manufactur-
ing, labor and operations; fluctuations in market prices of securities and other assets in 
which the Matsushita Group has holdings or changes in valuation of long-lived assets, 
including property, plant and equipment and goodwill, deferred tax assets and uncertain tax 
positions; future changes or revisions to accounting policies or accounting rules; as well as 
natural disasters including earthquakes and other events that may negatively impact 
business activities of the Matsushita Group. The factors listed above are not all-inclusive 
and further information is contained in Matsushita’s latest Annual Report on Form 20-F, 
which is on file with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

Disclaimer Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

18
avc  
networks

25
Home 
 appliances

33
Mew and 
PanaHome

35
other

29
components 
and devices

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd.  2008   1



Millions of yen, except per share information

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

For the year
Net sales  ............................................... ¥9,068,928 ¥9,108,170 ¥8,894,329 ¥8,713,636 ¥7,479,744
Operating profit  ..................................... 519,481 459,541 414,273 308,494 195,492
Income before income taxes  .................. 434,993 439,144 371,312 246,913 170,822
Net income  ............................................ 281,877 217,185 154,410 58,481 42,145
Capital investment*  ................................ ¥  449,348 ¥  418,334 ¥  345,819 ¥  374,253 ¥  271,291
Depreciation*  ......................................... 282,102 280,177 275,213 287,400 253,762
R&D expenditures  .................................. 554,538 578,087 564,781 615,524 579,230

At year-end
Long-term debt  ..................................... ¥  232,346 ¥  226,780 ¥  264,070 ¥  477,143 ¥  460,639
Total assets  ........................................... 7,443,614 7,896,958 7,964,640 8,056,881 7,438,012
Stockholders’ equity  .............................. 3,742,329 3,916,741 3,787,621 3,544,252 3,451,576
Number of shares issued  

 at year-end (thousands)  ....................... 2,453,053 2,453,053 2,453,053 2,453,053 2,453,053
Number of shareholders  ........................ 234,532 250,858 252,239 275,413 282,190
Number of employees:
 Domestic  ........................................... 135,563 145,418 144,871 150,642 119,528
 Overseas  ........................................... 170,265 183,227 189,531 184,110 170,965
 Total  ................................................... 305,828 328,645 334,402 334,752 290,493

Per share data (Yen)
Net income per share:
 Basic  ................................................. ¥   132.90 ¥    99.50 ¥    69.48 ¥    25.49 ¥    18.15
 Diluted  ............................................... 132.90 99.50 69.48 25.49 18.00 
Cash dividends per share  ...................... 32.50 25.00 17.50 15.25 12.50 
Stockholders’ equity per share  .............. ¥ 1,781.11 ¥ 1,824.89 ¥ 1,714.22 ¥ 1,569.39 ¥ 1,488.77

Ratios (%)
Operating profit/sales  ............................ 5.7% 5.0% 4.7% 3.5% 2.6%
Income before income taxes/sales  ......... 4.8 4.8 4.2 2.8 2.3 
Net income/sales  ................................... 3.1 2.4 1.7 0.7 0.6 
ROE  ...................................................... 7.4 5.6 4.2 1.7 1.3
Stockholders’ equity/total assets  ........... 50.3 49.6 47.6 44.0 46.4 

Notes:
1.  See Note 1 (n) to the consolidated financial statements in respect to the calculation of net income per share amounts. In computing cash dividends per share, 

the number of shares at the end of the applicable period has been used.
2.  Cash dividends per share reflect those paid during each fiscal year.
3.  In order to be consistent with financial reporting practices generally accepted in Japan, operating profit is presented as net sales less cost of sales and 

selling, general and administrative expenses. Under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, certain additional charges (such as impairment losses and 
restructuring charges) are included as part of operating profit in the consolidated statements of income. See the consolidated statements of income on page 
70 and Notes 6, 7 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

* Excluding intangibles

FinAnCiAl HigHligHts
Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
Years ended March 31
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The electronics industry in fiscal 2008, the year ended 

March 31, 2008, remained severe both in Japan and 

 overseas, as raw materials prices stayed high and product 

prices, particularly digital products, continued to decline due 

to intensifying global competition. In response to these 

challenging market conditions, we pushed ahead with our 

three-year management plan, GP3, the theme of which is to 

achieve steady growth with profitability. In a bid to bring 

about a new phase of full-scale growth, we initiated a 

 variety of new measures.

We worked hard to reinforce our manufacturing capabili-

ties in plasma TVs and other product categories, as well as 

actively invested in growth fields. Meanwhile, we took 

aggressive steps to achieve double-digit growth in overseas 

sales of consumer products in order to accelerate growth in 

emerging markets as well as in the U.S. and Europe. To be 

more specific, we established a framework to increase sales 

in Russia, Brazil and India, and further strengthened cutting-

edge products in these markets. In addition, with the aim of 

transforming Matsushita into a manufacturing-oriented 

company—one that combines all the business activities of 

the Group toward the launch of products, thereby contribut-

ing to the creation of customer value—we promoted wider 

collaboration across business fields and operating regions, 

and Manufacturing-oriented Innovation Activities designed 

to reform the entire process of creating products. These 

activities encompass product design, quality control, pro-

curement, logistics, overseas sales and other areas of our 

operations. By implementing these initiatives, we achieved a 

higher increase in earnings than we had targeted during the 

fiscal year under review. In addition, we added the reduction 

of environmental burden in all areas of our business activi-

ties as another important policy of the GP3 plan, and accel-

erated our environmental management.

Fiscal 2009 is a critical year in determining the success 

of the GP3 plan. We are working at putting Matsushita on a 

growth track and further strengthening our earnings 

 structure. Specifically, we will expand four strategic 

 businesses—digital AV business, automotive electronics 

business, businesses providing comfortable living, and 

semiconductors/components and devices business. We will 

also accelerate growth in emerging markets, such as the 

BRICs countries (Brazil, Russia, India and China) and 

 Vietnam. Other initiatives will include strengthening overseas 

development of home appliance products, and ongoing 

implementation of Manufacturing-oriented Innovation 

 Activities to enhance product competitiveness and further 

pursue cost reductions. Supported by these initiatives, we 

are aiming to achieve sales of ¥9,200 billion, operating profit 

of ¥560 billion and net income of ¥310 billion as well as 

ROE of at least 8% in fiscal 2009. Besides these targets, we 

are determined to rise to the challenge of increasing the 

number of products with industry-leading energy efficiency 

and reducing CO2 emissions. 

The final-year goals of the GP3 plan are to achieve sales 

of ¥10 trillion and ROE of 10% in fiscal 2010, as well as to 

eliminate 300,000 tons of CO2 emissions compared with 

fiscal 2007. By achieving the targets of the GP3 plan, we 

will enhance our corporate value and continue practicing 

shareholder-oriented management whereby we aim to 

actively return profits to shareholders via dividends and 

share buybacks. 

This year marks the 90th anniversary of the Company’s 

founding. We want to take this opportunity to express our 

gratitude to everyone for their warm support over many years.

In this milestone year, we have decided to change the 

Company’s name to Panasonic Corporation, effective 

 October 1, 2008. With this company name change, we will 

abolish the “National” brand, which is used only in Japan, 

and unify our corporate brands worldwide under the 

 Panasonic name by the end of fiscal 2010. We believe that 

operating under one name, “Panasonic,” will strengthen the 

unity of all employees throughout the Group and ultimately 

enhance the value of the “Panasonic” brand globally.

Even after changing our company name to Panasonic 

Corporation, we will continue to run the Company under our 

unwavering management philosophy of contributing to 

society through business, which has remained our guiding 

light since it was set forth by founder Konosuke Matsushita. 

The basic principles of “A company is a public entity,” 

 “Customer-comes-first principle,” “Start fresh every day,” 

and “Management by all with collective wisdom” will remain 

keystones of this Company’s approach to management. We 

will use the occasion of changing our corporate name to 

reaffirm our founding principles, and continue our ongoing 

initiatives to achieve global excellence.

Thank you for your continued support.

August 2008

to ouR stAkeHoldeRs
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kunio nakamura, Chairman Fumio ohtsubo, President
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Question 1

Answer

Fiscal 2008 was the first year of your mid-term management 

plan GP3. Please summarize the progress of the GP3 plan.

In fiscal 2008, the first year of the GP3 plan, we initiated a new phase of full-

scale growth. The GP3 plan encompasses three mid-term growth strategies—

double-digit growth in overseas sales; expansion of four strategic businesses; 

and continuous selection and concentration. In fiscal 2008, we made steady 

progress on these themes.

In regard to “double-digit growth in overseas sales,” while there was an 

 economic slowdown in North America, favorable sales were recorded in digital 

AV products, home appliances and other products in other regions. In particular, 

strong sales were recorded in emerging markets, such as the BRICs countries 

and Vietnam. 

With regard to “expansion of four strategic businesses”—digital AV business, 

automotive electronics business, businesses providing comfortable living, and 

semiconductors/components and devices business—we worked vigorously to 

reinforce our manufacturing capabilities in each. As a result of these efforts, we 

achieved our first fiscal year target for the four strategic businesses as a whole. 

inteRview witH tHe PResident

6   Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd.  2008



Question 2
Answer

We also accelerated cooperation across business domains. This included a Group-

wide project called “Strengthen Businesses Providing Comfortable Living,” which 

seeks to offer total solutions for homes and buildings by leveraging the Group’s 

collective strengths. We also launched a project to achieve 1 trillion yen-plus sales 

in the automotive electronics business on a Group-wide basis in fiscal 2011.

In terms of “continuous selection and concentration,” we proactively invested 

in growth fields, such as plasma display panels (PDPs) and semiconductors, and 

we also concluded a comprehensive business alliance agreement with Hitachi, 

Ltd. and Canon Inc. in the area of liquid crystal display (LCD) panels. 

Furthermore, to transform Matsushita into a manufacturing-oriented com-

pany, we shifted Manufacturing-oriented Innovation Activities into top gear, 

steadily implementing measures to cut costs and strengthen our product 

competitiveness. 

One of the key themes of the GP3 plan is reducing the environmental burden 

in all our business activities. Here, we stepped up the pace of ongoing environ-

mental management measures such as reducing CO2 emissions in production 

activities and actively developing energy-saving products.  

What are the key initiatives for fiscal 2009?

Although high growth is expected to continue in emerging economies, the global 

economic outlook for fiscal 2009 is uncertain. In fact, there are a variety of down-

side risks, in particular the negative effects from the subprime loan problem, per-

sistently high prices for raw materials and energy including crude oil, and foreign 

exchange fluctuation risks such as the sharp drop in the value of the U.S. dollar.

Under these business conditions, fiscal 2009 will be a crucial year in 

determining whether we ultimately achieve the goals of the GP3 plan. There 

are two main themes: getting growth back on track and further strengthening 

our  earnings structure. The Company will steadily implement initiatives 

focused on “double-digit growth in overseas sales,” “expansion of four strate-

gic businesses,” “Manufacturing-oriented Innovation Activities” and “the ‘eco 

ideas’ strategy.”*1

Fiscal 2008 Overview

• Full-scale implementation of new initiatives to reduce costs 

and bolster product lineups

double-digit growth in 
overseas sales  

(of consumer products)
• Driven by digital AV products and home appliances

• Achieved first-year targets

• Investing in PDP and semiconductor plants

• Practiced business prioritization

expansion of 
four strategic  
businesses

Continuous selection  
and concentration

transform Matsushita  
into a manufacturing-

oriented company
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Question 3

In addition, this fiscal year, Matsushita will promote initiatives toward future 

growth with an eye to the next five to ten years. For sustainable growth in the 

future, Matsushita has to create and foster new businesses as well as strengthen 

existing products and businesses. Specifically, Matsushita aims to create new 

businesses derived from product progress or integration in areas that cut across 

business domains, such as automotive electronics, mobile AV and security. 

Furthermore, Matsushita will pursue new opportunities in areas such as net-

works, the environment and energy, healthcare and devices. 

In terms of ROE, Matsushita aims to improve ROE by continuing to develop 

its management, financial and tax strategies. In specific terms, in each business 

domain, the Company will work to improve Capital Cost Management (CCM)*2 

mainly by improving operating profit and reducing total assets. At the same time, 

headquarters will strive to improve net income through effective tax strategies at 

the corporate level and to find the optimal level of stockholders’ equity by 

increasing shareholder returns. Through these measures, we aim to achieve 

ROE of at least 8% in fiscal 2009.

*1 For details on our “eco ideas” strategy, refer to pages 54 to 56.
*2  CCM is an indicator created by Matsushita to evaluate return on capital. A positive CCM indicates 

that the return on invested capital meets the minimum return expected by capital markets.

You have added reduction of environmental burden as an 

important theme of the GP3 plan. What  measures will you 

implement in this regard in the future?

Measures to Raise ROE

Raise CCM in each business domain and strengthen financial and tax 
strategies at headquarters

Fiscal 2008  
Roe

7.4%

Fiscal 2009  
Roe

8%

Management strategy
raise ccM
 • Improve operating profit
 • Reduce total assets

Financial strategy
 •  Optimize level of stockholders’ equity

tax strategy
 •  Lower effective tax rate to income 

before income taxes

Each business domain

Headquarters

8   Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd.  2008



Question 4

Answer

Answer There has been a visible and rapid increase in actions in society to combat 

global warming. Matsushita recognizes that environmental activities, in particular, 

significantly accelerating CO2 emission reduction, are just as important as growth 

and profitability in achieving global excellence. Therefore, we added “the reduc-

tion of environmental burden in all business activities” to the GP3 plan alongside 

the theme of “steady growth with profitability.” We will promote these two 

themes in parallel.

In October 2007, we announced the “eco ideas” Declaration, one of the 

goals of which is to reduce global CO2 emissions at all manufacturing sites 

around the world by 300,000 tons during the three-year period of the GP3 plan. 

We are practicing wide-ranging environmental management in line with three 

“eco ideas”: “eco ideas” for Products, “eco ideas” for Manufacturing, and “eco 

ideas” for Everybody, Everywhere. By utilizing the collective wisdom of our 

employees and the public, we will expand broad-based eco-conscious activities 

in local communities and around the world.

Environmental activities can also enhance our competitiveness. For instance, 

developing energy-saving technologies, making products smaller and lighter, 

and reducing running costs are activities that will increase product competitive-

ness. Recently, the concept of an “eco premium,” whereby value can be added 

by giving consideration to the environment, has become more common. 

Measures such as not using harmful chemical substances and designing recy-

clable products have come to directly influence customers’ purchasing 

decisions.

All Matsushita employees are making all-out efforts to pursue environmental 

activities with the recognition that these activities will lead to reforms and 

improvements to all aspects of management.

Please explain your key initiatives for increasing overseas 

sales in fiscal 2009.

There are three key initiatives.

First, we are taking actions in five countries where growth is particularly 

buoyant overseas: the four BRICs countries (Brazil, Russia, India and China) as 

well as Vietnam. The aim of our actions is to launch competitive products and to 

Accelerate Environmental Management

The Two Themes of GP3

Steady growth with profitability

High growth and  
profitability

Reduction of environmental burden  
in all business activities

Advanced environmental  
initiatives

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd.  2008   9



Question 5
Answer

strengthen our sales capabilities. On the product front, in addition to cutting-

edge digital AV products targeted at upscale customers, we will move into full 

swing to launch products tailored to regional characteristics that reflect local 

needs. Moreover, in order to promote the advantages of these products to 

 customers and tap into actual demand, we plan to enhance and expand our 

sales network by opening directly managed stores and strengthening ties with 

mass retailers. In conjunction with these measures, we will invest in strategic 

advertising programs designed to raise our brand power. We are thus endeavor-

ing to exceed the GP3 plan’s initial sales target for these five countries. Our goal 

for fiscal 2009 is to build up sales in these five countries to achieve an approxi-

mate 25% year-on-year increase in sales to more than ¥500 billion. At the same 

time, we will continue to implement specific measures to lift sales even higher in 

fiscal 2010. 

The second strategy is to link our initiatives with the Olympic Games. 

Matsushita will support the Beijing Olympic Games in August 2008, which is a 

major sports and athletics event watched by the whole world. Taking full advan-

tage of our rights as an official sponsor, we plan to increase sales and our brand 

value in the host country China and other regions.

The third initiative, a new undertaking for us, is to start sales of refrigerators 

and washing machines in Europe by the end of fiscal 2009. We intend to offer 

products based on technologies accumulated in Japan for saving energy and 

resources, and making products that produce less noise. From fiscal 2010 

onward, we will expand our lineup and extend sales of basic models for the 

European market to other regions. There are many issues to overcome, but we 

are convinced, after visiting markets around the world, that customers in Europe 

will come to appreciate the advantages of our products, provided we leverage 

our technological and marketing capabilities to the full. We are determined to 

successfully establish a foothold in home appliances in Europe to create a new 

growth driver. 

What is the strategy for your flat-panel TV business?

The flat-panel TV market environment experienced a major change in the past 

year. For example, one year ago Matsushita estimated global demand for 

37-inch or larger flat-panel TVs in fiscal 2009 at approximately 40 million units. 

However, our current estimate is for approximately 50 million units. This indicates 

that the market is expanding faster than we expected. The market growth rate 

for 50-inch or larger flat-panel TVs, in particular, is extremely high, suggesting 

that screen sizes will only get larger and larger. In response to these market 

conditions, we intend to further strengthen product competitiveness in our 

plasma TVs and expand our entire flat-panel TV lineup, including LCD TVs. 

Plasma TVs are the core of our TV lineup. We are determined to drive the 

rapidly expanding large-screen TV market with unbeatable products that are 

even thinner and consume less power. Matsushita has succeeded in developing 

Neo PDPs, representing a major technological innovation in PDPs. In short, 

10   Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd.  2008



Neo PDPs utilize technology for achieving higher luminous efficiency to dramati-

cally enhance the performance of PDPs. Besides reducing power consumption, 

Neo PDP technology will enable the creation of ultra-thin, ultra-large PDPs that 

boast still higher image resolution. We will install Neo PDP technology at our 

fifth domestic plant scheduled to commence operations in May 2009 to signifi-

cantly increase the performance of plasma TVs. At the same time, we will 

establish a robust supply framework which will support our drive to lead the 

flat-panel TV market. 

In LCD TVs, we plan to reinforce our product range in the high-volume zone 

to meet expanding demand. We attach much importance to ensuring stable 

procurement of LCD panels and creating a vertically integrated business model. 

As part of our efforts here, we formed a comprehensive business alliance agree-

ment related to the LCD panel business with Hitachi, Ltd. and Canon Inc. in 

December 2007. IPS Alpha Technology, Ltd., which became a Matsushita sub-

sidiary based on this alliance, plans to construct a new LCD panel plant in 

Himeji, Hyogo Prefecture, Japan. Construction of this new plant costing a total 

of approximately ¥300 billion will begin in August 2008. Operations at the plant 

are scheduled to commence in January 2010. When it is operating at full capac-

ity, this plant is expected to produce 15 million panels per year on a 32-inch 

panel basis.

Basic strategy

PDPs
 • Drive the large-screen market with PDPs 
 •  Stimulate demand with larger, higher picture quality, thinner, more energy 

efficient and  lower-cost screens

Organic EL
 •  Accelerate R&D in organic EL, a leading next-generation flat-panel TV candidate

LCDs
 •  Reinforce the product range in the high-volume zone with LCDs
 •  Build a framework for stable panel procurement over the medium and long terms, 

strengthen cost competitiveness through vertical integration, and lay the founda-
tion for OLED TVs in the future (invest in second IPS Alpha Technology plant)

Flat-Panel TV Strategy

total unit sales of Flat-Panel tvs

Fiscal 2008
(Actual)

4.25 million

7.5 million

3.25 million

Fiscal 2009
(Forecast)

6 million units
PdPs

11 million units

5 million units
lcds

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd.  2008   11



Question 6

Answer

In addition, we plan to expand our business by taking VIERA Link worldwide 

and capitalizing fully on its inherent synergies. VIERA Link allows users to simply 

and conveniently control flat-panel VIERA TVs and a variety of AV equipment 

linked to them with just one remote control.

We will also lay the foundations for developing organic EL (electrolumines-

cence) displays, which are seen as the next-generation of display.

Please give some examples of your Manufacturing-oriented 

Innovation Activities.

Manufacturing-oriented Innovation Activities are designed to bring about innova-

tion across organizational and regional lines in all product-creating processes, 

including design, quality control, procurement, distribution and overseas sales. 

Above all, we are focusing on the rigorous pursuit of cost reductions. 

In the past, almost all businesses would chip away at costs at each decision-

making stage such as when approving plans, molds and prices. Now, adopting 

a Companywide process that seeks to rigorously lower costs from the earliest 

stage of product development, we have been able to generate profits in line with 

our initial plan. Introducing this process required detailed analysis of costs from 

the initial development stage.

Specifically, we initiated a program we call “Itakona,” which essentially 

 pursues cost optimization through the analysis of costs at the raw materials 

level, such as the metals and plastics used in components. The literal Japanese 

translation for the word “Itakona” is “plates (ita) and powders (kona).” 

We use an “Itakona Board,” on which we attach all raw materials that go 

into making a product, as an effective tool in promoting this program. The 

“Itakona Board” helps us to thoroughly visualize the actual raw materials at the 

Thorough Pursuit of Optimal Costs

2007

From 2009

Develop cost-building activities

Introduction

establish

Launch of training seminars to foster personnel 

exchange and learning

Establish in whole Company as part of DNA

2008 develop

• Continue and expand training seminars (MEW)

• Extend within Business Units

•  Expand “Itakona” activities 

 Molds, software, facilities, intellectual property, etc.
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Question 7

Answer

smallest structural unit in a bid to reduce costs by drawing on the collective 

wisdom of employees. 

This initiative is an example of a Companywide innovation activity intended to 

steadily increase our global competitiveness. By applying this approach to all our 

work going forward, we hope to develop it to the point where it becomes an 

integral part of our management approach. 

Why did you decide to change the Company’s name and 

unify the brand?

Matsushita aims to accelerate overseas growth by launching an all-out global 

push. The biggest reason for adopting Panasonic Corporation as our corporate 

name and unifying our brands under the Panasonic name is that we want to pull 

together all of our employees’ strengths and generate maximum benefits under 

one name. We want all employees to share this recognition.

Even though we have decided to change our corporate name, we will still 

adhere to the business philosophy that has guided our operations since it was 

established by the Company’s founder, Konosuke Matsushita. Furthermore, we 

are committed to practicing and promoting this business philosophy globally. We 

recently formulated a “Brand Promise” signaling our intent to continue creating 

ideas that will benefit the lives of people around the world, and to share this com-

mitment with all employees, as we work toward realizing our business philosophy. 

The Company’s name and the National brand don’t just belong to us. They 

were built over many years, thanks to the support of our customers and busi-

ness partners. For this reason, it was a major decision for us to abolish the use 

of these names. Looked at another way, I think we now have a responsibility to 

create more value than we will lose.  

Under the Panasonic brand, the minds of all Matsushita Group employees 

worldwide will become one as they do their utmost to impress and delight 

customers. We will strive to elevate our brand power to the top level, and 

achieve a truly Global Panasonic, linked by strong bonds throughout the 

Matsushita Group. 

Brand Promise

The promise which the Panasonic brand makes to customers

Panasonic generates ideas for life…today and tomorrow.

through innovative thinking, we are committed to enriching 

people’s lives around the world.
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Question 8

Answer

Question 9

Answer

The yen has been rising against the U.S. dollar year on year. 

What impact on earnings do you anticipate, and how do you 

plan to cope with this situation?

Since the 1998 enforcement of the revised Foreign Exchange and Foreign Trade 

Control Law, Matsushita has made efforts to minimize the effect of foreign 

exchange fluctuations. One initiative is natural hedges, whereby foreign currency 

generated by exports is used to pay for imports in the same currency without 

being converted into yen. This is one technique for hedging foreign exchange 

risks by reducing the amount of money converted into yen. If the U.S. dollars 

and euro that must be exchanged for yen are reduced, the amount exposed to 

 foreign currency risks is likewise reduced. In fiscal 2001, we matched just under 

20% of foreign currency in this way, but in fiscal 2008 we achieved a currency 

matching rate of approximately 70%. Along with the increased application of 

natural hedging, the amount of money exposed to foreign currency risks has 

declined. In fiscal 2001, we collected an excess of approximately US$5.5 billion 

after offsetting payments in U.S. dollars for imports with U.S. dollar-denominated 

exports receipts. In fiscal 2008, we had more than halved this amount to 

approximately US$2.5 billion. Moving forward, we will make even greater use of 

natural hedges as we make progress with measures to minimize the impact of 

currency fluctuations on our results. 

Please give us your thoughts on the equity-based business 

alliance between Victor Company of Japan, Ltd. (JVC) and 

Kenwood Corporation.

Matsushita approved this capital and business alliance between the two compa-

nies and expects that this alliance will help drive growth and enhance the corpo-

rate value of both companies.

Historically, Matsushita’s founder Konosuke Matsushita invested in JVC in 

1954, making it a consolidated subsidiary from the perspective of advancing 

Japan’s electrical machinery industry. Since then, JVC has conducted develop-

ment, manufacturing and sales businesses for TVs, videos, audio, camcorders 

and other products under the proprietary brands of Victor and JVC in a spirit of 

self-reliance and autonomy. In particular, in 1976 when the world’s first VHS-

format VTR was developed, JVC wed its technological capabilities with 

Matsushita’s development, manufacturing and sales capabilities to create a 

global standard. In the process, it contributed significantly to the advancement 

of Japan’s home electronics industry as well as that of the Matsushita Group. 
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Question 10

Answer

However, amid recent changes in its business environment, technological 

innovation and intensifying global competition, JVC has been unable to avoid 

drastic business restructuring following sluggish business results in recent years. 

Matsushita, meanwhile, has taken steps to accelerate its growth strategies and 

strengthen its management structure, and has also revised its Group strategies. 

Both Matsushita and JVC have looked for the best approach, considering a 

range of options in order to fulfill their accountability to all of their respective stake-

holders, including shareholders. As a result, the two companies concluded that a 

partnership between two manufacturing  businesses—JVC and Kenwood—was 

the best way to maximize the corporate value of the former company. 

What are your policies on capital structure and returning 

profits to shareholders?

Holding net cash allows us to make rapid decisions in response to changes in 

the operating environment. While maintaining a certain level of funds, we plan to 

use this cash as effectively as possible. 

From the perspective of shareholder-oriented management, Matsushita will 

continue to proactively return profits to shareholders. Specifically, the Company 

will comprehensively provide shareholder returns in the form of cash dividends 

based on the results of the growth strategies, and its own share repurchases. 

Matsushita aims to pay stable and continuous increases in cash dividends. 

The Company plans to raise cash dividends per share for fiscal 2009 to ¥45, up 

from ¥35 per share in fiscal 2008.

The Company will also continue to actively repurchase its own shares. 

Matsushita plans to repurchase from the market a maximum of 50 million 

shares, up to ¥100 billion, from the end of April 2008 to late March 2009.

The Enhancement of Shareholder Value (ESV) Plan,* which sets out rules to 

allow shareholders to decide whether large-scale purchases of the Company’s 

shares should be accepted or not, will also remain in place in fiscal 2009.

* For details about the ESV Plan, refer to pages 46 and 47.
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Percentage of fiscal 2008 sales Main Products and servicessegMent

HOME 
APPLIANCES

COMPONENTS 
AND DEVICES

MEW AND 
PANAHOME

OTHER

Refrigerators, room air conditioners, washing machines, 
clothes dryers, vacuum cleaners, electric irons, microwave 
ovens, rice cookers, other cooking appliances, dish washer/
dryers, electric fans, air purifiers, electric heating equipment, 
electric hot water supply equipment, sanitary equipment, 
electric lamps, ventilation and air-conditioning equipment, car 
air conditioners, compressors, vending machines, etc.

Semiconductors, general components (capacitors, tuners, 
circuit boards, power supplies, circuit components, electro-
mechanical components, speakers, etc.) electric motors, 
batteries, etc.

Lighting fixtures, wiring devices, personal-care products, 
health enhancing products, water-related products, modular 
kitchen systems, interior furnishing materials, exterior finish-
ing materials, electronic and plastic materials, automation 
controls, detached housing, rental apartment housing, 
medical and nursing care facilities, home remodeling, 
 residential real estate, etc.

Electronic-components-mounting machines, industrial 
robots, welding equipment, bicycles, imported materials and 
components, etc.

13%

15%

18%

13%

41%

Business at a glance

AVC  
NETWORKS

Plasma and LCD TVs, DVD recorders/players, camcorders, 
digital cameras, compact disc (CD), Mini Disc (MD) and 
Secure Digital (SD) players, other personal and home audio 
equipment, SD Memory Cards and other recordable media, 
optical pickup and other electro-optic devices, PCs, optical 
disc drives, copiers, printers, telephones, mobile phones, 
facsimile equipment, broadcast- and business-use AV 
equipment, communications network-related equipment, 
traffic-related systems, car AVC equipment, healthcare 
equipment, etc.

Notes 1.  Under the collaboration with MEW, the Company reorganized business and sales channels in such areas as electrical construction materials, building equipment and home appliances. 
  Accordingly sales results for fiscal 2005 for the Home Appliances and MEW and PanaHome segments have been reclassified to conform with fiscal 2006 sales results for those segments.
 2.  Sales composition for each segment includes intersegment transactions.
 3.  Victor Company of Japan, Ltd. and its subsidiaries became associated companies under the equity method in August 2007.
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sales (Years ended March 31) segMent Profit (Years ended March 31)fiscal 2008 segMent overview
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Segment sales rose on growth in sales of 
digital AV products such as flat-panel TVs 
and digital cameras, in addition to favor-
able sales of automotive electronics and 
mobile phones.

Trillions of yenSegment sales increased, driven by sales 
of high-value-added products featuring 
proprietary technologies, such as tilted-
drum washer/dryers, room air conditioners 
and refrigerators.

Segment sales rose due to higher sales of 
system LSIs primarily for digital AV prod-
ucts and key devices such as electronic 
devices and motors. 

MEW sales increased principally because 
of strong results in its electrical construc-
tion materials and electronic and plastic 
materials businesses.
 PanaHome saw a strong market 
response to its detached housing featuring 
the use of photocatalytic tiles, as well as its 
all-electric rental apartment homes.

Segment sales rose thanks to higher sales 
in the factory automation (FA) business, 
particularly of mainstay high-speed modu-
lar mounters.
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Business review and strategies

Incorporating Matsushita’s cutting-edge technologies, AVC Networks provides 
products, software, services and solutions that contribute to the realization of 
a ubiquitous networking society. In fiscal 2008, sales of digital AV products 
such as flat-panel TVs and digital cameras increased significantly thanks to a 
vertically integrated business model that enhances product and cost competi-
tiveness through the in-house manufacturing of key components and devices. 
In information and communications equipment, sales rose in the mobile phone 
and automotive electronics businesses, and positive results were also 
recorded in the home networks and security-related systems businesses.

For the future, Matsushita will leverage core strengths in digital AV 
 technologies to pursue enhanced functionality, convenience and ease of use, 
with the goal of delivering products, services and systems that contribute to 
the realization of a ubiquitous networking society.

AVC Networks

18   Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd.  2008



AVC Business
In the AVC business, Matsushita is currently promoting its 
“3D2” value chain strategy which is helping to drive global 
AVC business expansion. This approach attempts to 
build competitive advantages for three product groups—
digital TVs (DTV), DVDs, and SD Memory Cards—by 
leveraging three core technologies: high definition (HD), 
universal design (UD), and key device (Device). 

In fiscal 2008, Matsushita strengthened its lineup of 
products while continuing global development of the 
VIERA Link, which enables a single VIERA remote to 
control several types of AV equipment, centered on flat-
panel VIERA TVs. VIERA Link makes products easier to 
use and more convenient and provides customers with a 
more exciting and comfortable viewing experience. 
 Matsushita thus continued to propose new ways of using 
AV equipment and new value to customers.

Regarding flat-panel VIERA TVs, where the trend 
in flat-panel TVs is toward larger and higher-definition 
screens amid a global shift to digital broadcasting, 
the Company recorded a significant increase in sales, 
particularly of plasma TVs.

In plasma TVs, Matsushita released the world’s first full HD 42-inch 
models in an effort to expand its lineup of full HD models, thereby main-
taining a leading market share in many countries. In addition, Matsushita 
developed three Neo plasma display panels (PDPs), representing a major 
technological innovation: a 42-inch PDP with twice the luminous effi-
ciency of previous models (that provides the same brightness at just half 
the power consumption);*1 a 50-inch PDP that is just 24.7mm*2 thick; 
and a 150-inch high definition PDP, the world’s largest.*3 Looking 
 forward, Matsushita will accelerate technological development in pursuit 
of even more advanced PDPs.

In fiscal 2008, Matsushita began supplying Hitachi, Ltd. with 103- and 
65-inch panels under an agreement whereby Matsushita and Hitachi 
supply each other with PDPs in an effort to strengthen cooperation in the 
plasma TV business.

In terms of PDP production, the Company’s fourth domestic PDP 
plant came on stream in June 2007, realizing a global monthly production 
capacity of 790,000 units (based on 42-inch panels) as of the end of 
fiscal 2008. Construction of Matsushita’s fifth domestic plant, which is 
scheduled to be operational in May 2009, began in November 2007. This 
plant will further increase the Company’s PDP production capacity, 
already one of the largest in the world, enabling it to meet expanding 
global PDP demand.

A full HD plasma TV

A full HD LCD TV
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LUMIX series digital cameras

An HD BD recorder with an internal HDD

In liquid crystal display (LCD) TVs, products which feature IPS*4 LCD 
panels to realize vivid color even from a wide angle, have been well 
received in markets worldwide due to their high picture quality and 
 performance. A 37-inch model was added to the product lineup in fiscal 
2008 to further boost sales. Matsushita has also concluded a compre-
hensive business alliance agreement with Hitachi, Ltd. and Canon Inc. in 
the area of LCD panels. This alliance will deepen Matsushita’s involve-
ment in the operations of IPS Alpha Technology, Ltd., an IPS LCD panel 
design, manufacturing and sales company, providing the Company with 
a more stable supply of LCD panels,*5 and giving further impetus to 
 Matsushita’s aggressive vertical integration of its flat-panel TV business.

Matsushita is focusing on PDPs as it enhances its competitiveness 
in the flat-panel TV business and will continue to drive the large-screen 
TV market.

*1 Compared to Matsushita’s former model (TH-42PZ750SK)
*2 Thickest point from the glass surface is 23.7mm
*3 As of January 8, 2008; Matsushita estimate.
*4 The In-Plane-Switching mode system utilizes horizontally oriented liquid crystal molecules 

to provide for wider viewing angles.
*5 IPS Alpha Technology, Ltd. plans to build a new production plant in Himeji, Hyogo 

 Prefecture, with an annual production capacity of 15 million units (based on 32-inch 
panels). Operations are scheduled to begin in January 2010.

LUMIX digital cameras steadily increased market share. This reflected 
the introduction, ahead of other companies, of models featuring an 
 Optical Image Stabilizer, and the effective use of Matsushita’s in-house 
key device manufacturing strengths to create more compact cameras 
with even higher picture quality. In fiscal 2008, popular products included 
those featuring the iA (Intelligent Auto) mode—a world first*—which 
 automatically chooses settings optimal for each condition based on 
 various information such as the presence of people’s faces and distance 
from the subject, as well as compact models with 10x optical zoom 
capability. Matsushita also launched the industry’s first digital SLR 
camera with a free-angle LCD that can rotate 180 degrees horizontally 
and 270 degrees vertically. These initiatives led to a significant increase in 
sales worldwide. Going forward, Matsushita will continue to launch a 
steady stream of attractive cameras worldwide by drawing on its unique 
technologies to enhance picture quality and features.

* As of July 24, 2007.

Sales of DIGA Blu-ray disc (BD) recorders and DVD 
recorders increased, particularly HD-compatible models in 
the domestic market, amid rising demand for high-quality 

video recording due to the spread of digital HD broadcasting. 
Models that allow for approximately four times more full HD recording 
time*1 than previous models and are the world’s thinnest *2 at only 59mm 
thick were particularly well received. The Company also focused on 
enhancing ease of use and network functionality through VIERA Link and 
other innovations. As a result of these initiatives,  Matsushita maintained 
its leading global share in the DVD recorder market. Looking forward, the 
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A camcorder capable of HD 
recording for extended periods 
on either its internal HDD or SD 
Memory Card

Company will focus on accelerating compatibility with HD formats and 
further pursuing user-friendliness.

*1 During recording in HE mode (approx. 5.7Mbps). Compared to recording BS digital HD 
broadcasts in DR mode (approx. 24Mbps).

*2 As of February 20, 2008.

In digital video cameras, Matsushita launched new HD camcorders 
with better picture quality and a more compact design, which were well 
received by the market. Particularly popular were models with the world’s 
first* “face detection” function, which automatically locates any faces in 
the picture and makes necessary adjustments when recording moving 
pictures. Other popular products included models with long recording 
times that allow recording on either HDDs or SD Memory Cards. Amid 
growing global demand for high picture quality in recording, Matsushita is 
pursuing the development of models that offer better picture quality, 
smaller and lighter bodies, and longer recording times.

*  As of January 9, 2008, for a function in a digital video camera that detects faces during 
recording of moving pictures and adjusts picture quality.

Amid rising demand, especially overseas, sales of notebook PCs 
continued to grow as lightweight products featuring extended battery 
life and rugged designs were well received in the market. In 
fiscal 2008, Matsushita introduced the CF-52 Semi-Tough 
notebook PC, part of its Toughbook series. This model 
features a 15.4-inch widescreen LCD and improved cost 
performance. In addition, Matsushita enhanced basic perfor-
mance in the Let’snote series launched in fall 2007. All 
models in the Let’snote series were made significantly more 
able to withstand shocks when dropped, and drip-proof key-
boards, which are high on the list of customer demands, were 
incorporated. Such proprietary enhancements were well 
received, helping the Company maintain its leading share in 
the worldwide market for durable field notebooks and in the 
domestic mobile PC market during 2007. Matsushita will con-
tinue to work to respond quickly to customer needs by creating 
products with significant added value.

In SD Memory Cards during fiscal 2008, Matsushita launched a 
16GB SDHC Memory Card* to meet rising demand for applications such 
as HD movies that require high-speed, reliable recording and large data 
storage capacity. The card, which won strong market acceptance, also 
has a place for writing notes, enhancing convenience. Matsushita will 
continue to pursue greater storage capacity and ease of use for SD 
Memory Cards.

*  SDHC (SD High-Capacity) Memory Cards are based on the new SD Memory Card 
 Specifications (Version 2.00) which enable the development of SDHC Memory Cards with 
capacities up to 32GB.

A compact notebook PC with improved 
ruggedness
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Looking ahead in the AVC business, Matsushita will accelerate the 
development of products that make it easier and more convenient for 
people to enjoy exciting HD audiovisual experiences. By promoting more 
network-capable products and HD-compatible products, Matsushita 
aims to create a kind of “digital hearth” where families want to gather 
around their flat-panel VIERA TVs. Furthermore, Matsushita will actively 
develop its AVC business globally, aiming to ensure sustainable growth 
and improve profitability.

Fixed-line Communications
In fixed-line communications, Matsushita is focusing business strategies 
on home networks, encompassing in-home communications equipment, 
TV door intercom systems and other products; office networks, including 
communications equipment and other office products; and optical 
devices such as optical disc drives.

In fiscal 2008, in home networks, TV door intercom systems with 
wireless color monitor handsets continued to be well supported by 
 Japanese consumers. In addition, Matsushita recorded strong sales of its 
HD-PLC* adapter which enables high-speed data transmission over 
existing power lines by simply plugging the module into an electrical 
outlet. In cordless telephones, by focusing on developing overseas 
 markets, the Company achieved cumulative sales of 100 million units in 
North America in fall 2007, as well as cumulative sales of 10 million units 
in the CIS region. In office networks, sales remained robust for private 
branch exchange (PBX) products offering greater functionality and 
 user-friendliness, enabling Matsushita to maintain one of the leading 
market shares. In the optical devices field, Matsushita launched an inter-
nal Blu-ray Disc drive for personal computers, the world’s thinnest at just 
9.5mm, as it continued to lead the industry in developing slimmer optical 
disk drives.

Matsushita will continue its efforts to create modes of communication 
focused on key concepts such as ease of use, convenience, peace of 
mind and security based on advanced technologies.

* HD-PLC: High Definition Power Line Communication

Mobile Communications
In mobile communications, Matsushita offers products in Japan ranging 
from mobile phones, where the Company has advanced technologies, to 
base stations and other communications infrastructure equipment.

In fiscal 2008, Matsushita increased sales by further enhancing its 
product lineup, including models that allow viewing of “one-segment” 
mobile TV broadcasts in high-quality video or that pushed the envelope 
in terms of thinness. For NTT DoCoMo, Inc., Matsushita launched 
 products that included the P905i “VIERA Keitai.” This handset has a 
screen that can be opened vertically or horizontally and allows viewing of 

16GB SDHC Memory Card

An internal Blu-ray Disc drive for personal 
computers, the world’s thinnest at just 9.5mm

IP-PBX
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“one-segment” broadcasts thanks to Matsu-
shita’s unique high-quality image technology 
derived from the flat-panel VIERA TV. Also 
introduced was the P705iμ, the world’s 
 thinnest* clamshell-type 3G mobile handset at 
just 9.8mm. For SOFTBANK MOBILE Corpora-
tion, the Company supplied the SoftBank 920P 
“VIERA Keitai,” as well as the  SoftBank 822P, a 
slim straight-type  handset just 8.9mm thick. For 
KDDI  CORPORATION, Matsushita brought out 
the W61P, a 12.9mm thick handset with a sophis-
ticated design that is compatible with “one-seg-
ment” broadcasts.

Moving forward, Matsushita will work toward the 
development of next-generation handsets, particularly 
3G and beyond. In this pursuit, the Company will 
strengthen ties among Group companies and pursue 
global development partnerships to open up new pos-
sibilities in mobile communications.

* As of December 17, 2007; Matsushita estimate.

Automotive Electronics
Matsushita’s automotive electronics business encom-
passes two priority areas: automotive  multimedia equip-
ment such as car AV and car navigation  systems, and 
components and devices that promote peace of mind, 
safety, environmental preservation and energy efficiency.

In automotive multimedia, Matsushita recorded 
strong sales of car navigation systems, centered on 
the Strada series, which let passengers view high-
quality terrestrial digital TV broadcasts. Matsushita 
launched Portable Navigation Device (PND) products 
in  October 2007 and progressively rolled out prod-
ucts in Japan and overseas, as it developed the 
Strada series globally and bolstered its  product 
lineup. Sales of car audio equipment remained 
strong, particularly overseas sales of original equipment manufacturing 
(OEM) products. Amid growing use of Electronic Toll Collection (ETC) 
systems, which are now used by more than 70% of the cars that pass 
through expressway toll booths in Japan, Matsushita launched the 
industry’s smallest ETC terminal and held onto its strong share of the 
domestic market.

In components and devices, the Company increased sales of a variety 
of products that improve environmental performance, safety and security. 
These include devices for the fast-growing hybrid vehicle market, as well 
as car-mounted cameras and smart entry systems.

P905i for NTT DoCoMo

“VIERA Keitai” with a screen that opens vertically 
or horizontally and displays high picture quality 
“one-segment” broadcasts thanks to a mobile 
PEAKS processor

P705iμ for NTT DoCoMo 

This mobile phone, the world’s 
thinnest clamshell-type 3G mobile 
handset at just 9.8mm, features a 
one-push mechanism and has an 
elegant stainless steel frame.

SoftBank 822P for SOFTBANK MOBILE

A slim straight-type 8.9mm-thick handset 
with a stylish yet understated design

W61P for KDDI

A sleekly designed 12.9mm-thick 
handset featuring a one-push 
 mechanism and “one-segment” 
broadcasting compatibility
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A contactless IC card reader/writer 
unit with multiple applications

A megapixel network camera that 
achieves high picture quality video 
surveillance

Leveraging the Group’s extensive advanced technologies ranging 
from digital AV equipment to key devices, and its meticulous, quality-
focused manufacturing approach, Matsushita will continue to contribute 
to the creation of automobiles and a motorized society that are both safe 
and inspiring.

System Solutions
In the system solutions business, Matsushita is developing three major 
business fields. In the first, security, the Company’s aim is total security, 
with a primary focus on video surveillance. In the second, cross-media, 
the Company offers solutions that support the fusion of broadcasting and 
telecommunications. In the third, mobility, the Company is involved in 
electronic settlement systems using IC cards, together with a wide variety 
of other businesses.

In fiscal 2008, in the security field, Matsushita posted firm sales of 
security systems centered on surveillance cameras, amid rising demand 
for video surveillance following an increase in concern about crime, 
strengthening of internal controls in companies, and other develop-
ments. In the broadcasting systems field, the Company secured a large 
market share for digital set-top boxes for cable TV broadcasts amid the 
spread of terrestrial digital broadcasting in Japan, achieving a cumulative 
total of 3 million units shipped in December 2007. Matsushita was the 
first in the industry to reach this mark. It also continued to win strong 
support for its HD cameras from TV broadcasters. In the business 
 solutions field, Matsushita saw an increase in sales of contactless IC 
card reader/writer units used in multiple applications, including 
 electronic settlement via IC card or mobile phone.

Going forward, Matsushita will focus on the three business areas of 
security, cross-media and mobility, drawing on the Group’s advanced tech-
nology and development base to provide customers with optimal system 
solutions. This should enable further expansion of business operations.

 

The Strada F Class CN-HX1000D is 
equipped with a world-first home-link 
feature, which enables users to turn home 
air conditioners on/off and even set the 
recording of TV programs from their cars.
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HoMe APPLIANCes
Matsushita works hard on incorporating energy-saving measures and universal 
design into a wide range of product areas, including household appliances, 
refrigeration, air conditioning, heating, lighting, and environmental systems, 
against a backdrop of growing concern about environmental problems, safety 
and security. In this way, the Company proposes new lifestyles to its customers.

In fiscal 2008, strong sales were recorded in high-value-added products 
that leverage Matsushita’s proprietary technologies. These products include 
tilted-drum washer/dryers with significantly improved washing performance 
that feature a heat-pump drying system that saves energy and water, air 
 conditioners that automatically adjust air flows depending on people’s sense of 
temperature, and refrigerators featuring “nano-e crispers.” In Japan, Matsushita 
maintained leading market shares for all-electric products such as induction-
heating (IH) cooking equipment and natural-refrigerant water heating systems.

Looking forward, Matsushita will continue to take environmental issues 
into account as it creates more high-value-added products. In addition, the 
Company plans to grow sales of washing machines, air conditioners, and 
refrigerators, particularly in China and other parts of Asia, and accelerate 
efforts in Europe and elsewhere to ensure growth globally.
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Household Appliances/ 
Refrigeration, Air Conditioning  
and Heating
In household appliances, Matsushita develops various businesses, ranging 
from products related to housework and food preparation to sanitary equip-
ment, electric heating equipment, and various key devices such as power 
supply inverters for microwave ovens. The products for housework and 
food preparation include washing machines, dishwasher/dryers, vacuum 
cleaners, IH cooking equipment, microwave ovens, and rice cookers.

In fiscal 2008, in drum washer/dryers, which are carving out an 
increasing share of the washing machine market, Matsushita grew sales 
of tilted-drum washer/dryers employing an energy-efficient heat pump 
drying system that also saves water, and that includes a “mist refresh” 
function that eliminates odors and smoothes out wrinkles. At the same 
time, Matsushita dramatically upgraded washing performance with the 

world’s first*1 “Dancing laundering & drying system.” The Company’s 
drum washer/dryers won a strong market response in China, where 
public interest is high in eliminating harmful bacteria, as proprietary 
sterilization features matched local needs. Matsushita released this 
new product simultaneously in China and Japan.

As for all-electric products such as IH cooking equipment and 
natural-refrigerant water heating systems, the Company’s “one 
million-person trial campaign” in Japan led to increased sales of 
products, helping Matsushita maintain its top domestic market 

share. In addition, Matsushita’s sanitary equipment “Beauty Toilet,” 
which  features warm water cleansing, was highly praised for its energy 
efficiency. Leveraging its sensor technology, the Company succeeded in 
heating the toilet seat and water only when in use, thereby significantly 

reducing electricity consumption.
In refrigeration, air conditioning, and heating, 

 Matsushita manufactures a wide range of consumer- 
and industry-use products. These include air condi-
tioners and refrigerators, vending machines, and 
natural-refrigerant water heating systems, as well as 
devices such as compressors used in refrigeration and 
air conditioning products.

In fiscal 2008, in room air conditioners, Matsushita 
released the world’s first*2 air conditioners that auto-
matically adjust air flows depending on people’s feeling 
of temperature via an “Irutoko Search” function. This 
function reduces wasteful operation, resulting in signifi-
cant energy savings. In addition, the Company 
strengthened its lineup of free-standing air conditioners 
for the Chinese market by focusing on designs popular 
in that market, thereby boosting sales.

This tilted-drum washer/dryer effectively 
removes stubborn dirt and grime thanks to its 
“Dancing laundering & drying system.” It also 
features a “mist refresh” function that elimi-
nates odors and smoothes out wrinkles. 

The X Series air conditioner controls tempera-
ture and air flow according to the “feels like” 
temperature for each individual in a room. 

“nano-e crispers” Keep Vegetables Fresher

Three-day comparison (Company estimate at refrigeration temperature of approx. 5°C and 
humidity of approx. 90%)

Vitamin C Retention Ratio
Broccoli sprouts time rate of 
change

Without  
nano-e 

nano-e  
crispers

Vitamin A Retention Ratio
Mulukhiya (leafy greens) time 
rate of change

Vitamin E Retention Ratio
Mulukhiya (leafy greens) time 
rate of change

Without  
nano-e 

nano-e  
crispers

Without  
nano-e 

nano-e  
crispers

–10%

+10%

(%)

–16%

+4%

–15%
–8%

Vegetables are kept fresher for longer 
because nano-sized ions penetrate all the 
way to the cellular level.

Difference 
approx.

20 points

Difference 
approx.

20 points
Initially

Difference 
approx.
7 points
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In refrigerators, products equipped with the world’s first*3 “nano-e 
crispers,” which use nano-sized ions to penetrate all the way to the 
cellular level to keep cold-sensitive fruits and vegetables fresh for a long 
time, were well received in Japan. In addition, the Company leveraged 
its Lifestyle Research Centers in Asian nations such as China and 
 Thailand to improve its ability to create products optimized for local 
lifestyles, resulting in increased sales. For instance, Matsushita brought 
to market slim refrigerators that can fit even in narrow kitchens. Mean-
while, the U-Vacua series of high-performance vacuum insulation, 
which enables refrigerators to offer both a large interior and high energy 
efficiency, is now being used in a wide variety of other products, includ-
ing thermos bottles, vending machines, and electric floor heating 
 systems. This is just another example of Matsushita’s aggressive efforts 
to save energy.

Looking forward, the Company will strive to increase sales centering 
on washing machines, air conditioners and refrigerators, and will also aim 
to boost market share in Japan by positioning all-electric products as a 
driving force for expansion in home appliances. Matsushita will also strive 
to expand its business globally through an aggressive approach in 
Europe, China, and other Asian countries.

*1 As of September 6, 2007, for washer/dryers.
*2 As of October 9, 2007. The “world’s first” designation relates to the room air conditioner’s 

ability to “learn” which areas people use more than others and focus its operations on them.
*3 As of December 10, 2007, for freon-free consumer refrigerators.

Lighting Business
The lighting business consists of general lighting products including 
 fluorescent and incandescent lamps, an optical device such as LCD 
backlights and projector lamps, and electronic flash units for cameras 
and related equipment.

In the year under review, sales rose in Japan of Matsushita’s 
Twin Pa-look Premier, which offers the longest life (approxi-
mately 16,000 hours) in the industry,* and Pa-look Ball 
 Premier, as household light bulbs are increasingly switched to 
energy-efficient ball-type fluorescent bulbs due to rising 
energy consciousness. In addition, the Company’s expanded 
lineup of Pa-look Premier series products was well received 
and sales of camera modules for digital cameras and camera-
equipped mobile phones were strong, helping lift overall light-
ing business sales. Overseas, Matsushita saw sales of highly 
energy-efficient fluorescent lamps rise in China, while capturing a much 
larger share in the Thai market.

Looking forward, the Company will strengthen its technology and 
product lineup, with a focus on energy efficiency as it aims to boost its 
presence in the global market.

*  As of September 5, 2007, for fluorescent rings and twin fluorescent rings used in high-
frequency lighting (Matsushita estimate).

The Compact BiG new model refrigerator 
features “nano-e crispers.”

Twin Pa-look Premier offers the longest life 
(approximately 16,000 hours) in the industry.*
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Environmental Systems
The environmental systems business is wide-ranging, including fans and 
other ventilation products, air purifiers and other home environment 

 systems, and an environmental engineering business that cleans soil, 
water, and air.

In fiscal 2008, in ventilation systems, sales were driven by a 
strong performance in bathroom heater/dryers with a micro-mist 
sauna function, stemming from rising interest in healthy and 
comfortable living. As a result, the overall ventilation systems 

business retained its top share of the global market (in monetary 
terms). In home environment systems, Matsushita won strong market 
acceptance for an air purifier that suppresses odors and allergens such 
as mites and pollen on clothes. The Company’s environmental engineer-
ing business received high praise for supplying medical facilities with 
eco-friendly systems that combine solar-generated power and rooftop 
greenery. Meanwhile, Tokyo’s Shuto Expressway (Central Circular Route) 
adopted Matsushita’s low-concentration denitrification equipment for its 
Yamate Tunnel project. This equipment efficiently eliminates suspended 
particulate matter and nitrogen dioxide. Moreover, Matsushita operated a 
new environmentally friendly factory with significantly reduced air condi-
tioning costs due to an eco-friendly air conditioning system and the 
installation of thermal insulating material in the roof. At the same time, the 
Company increased its production capacity by operating a new factory in 
Thailand, part of an ongoing aggressive overseas expansion drive.

Looking forward, the Company plans to develop this business with a 
focus on overseas expansion and “clean factories” that reduce environ-
mental impact.

This bathroom heater/dryer system boasts a 
micro-mist sauna function that boosts humidity. 
It also features a mode allowing the user to 
select a lower temperature but still keep the 
humidity level high.

Matsushita-made Barrier Zone System

This energy conserving system provides 
local air conditioning of only spaces 
where people are present, thus enabling a 
30% reduction in CO2 emissions during 
operation compared to systems that 
circulate air around an entire building.
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CoMPoNeNts AND DeVICes
Matsushita develops and supplies components and devices used in various 
products ranging from AV equipment and information and communication 
devices to home appliances and industrial equipment. Components and 
devices are increasingly important in helping equipment become more sophis-
ticated, smaller and lighter, and more energy efficient. Matsushita is facilitating 
even closer cooperation between component and device divisions and 
 finished product divisions right from the development phase. This approach 
allows the Company to quickly develop and supply components and devices 
which match the concepts of finished products.

In fiscal 2008, in the semiconductor business, Matsushita accelerated 
efforts to use the UniPhier® system LSIs in finished products, and also  created 
distinctive products in the discrete device, analog LSI and image sensor fields.  
In the electronic devices and electric motors businesses,  Matsushita launched 
new cutting-edge key devices to enhance equipment performance.

Matsushita will continue to develop and strengthen its competitive products, 
and thereby contribute to the creation of competitive products in its finished 
product divisions.  Furthermore, the Company will strive to expand sales to 
external manufacturing customers to achieve growth and enhance profitability.
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Semiconductors
In the semiconductor business, Matsushita focuses on five primary areas: 
products for digital TVs, optical discs, mobile communications equip-

ment, image sensor application products and automotive 
devices. The Company provides total solutions for a wide 
range of semiconductor products such as system LSIs, 
image sensors, analog LSIs and discrete devices. 
 Matsushita’s UniPhier® Integrated Platform, which enables 
the sharing and reutilization of software and hardware 
resources across different product categories, has been 
used in a variety of applications, primarily digital AV equip-
ment, since fiscal 2006, and UniPhier® is now applied in 
about 100 digital products. Moreover, UniPhier® has signifi-
cantly improved development efficiency and design quality 
for electronic equipment.

During fiscal 2008, sales growth was achieved thanks 
to the strong performance of system LSIs, primarily for 
digital cameras and other digital AV products. In addition, 
sales of image sensors used primarily in digital cameras 
and automotive applications increased significantly. In June 
2007, the Company began mass production of cutting-
edge 45-nanometer process system LSIs using 300mm 
wafers at the Uozu plant, the first in the world. The Uni-

Phier® system LSI is used in Blu-ray disc recorders where it facilitates 
high-quality video recording and allows these recorders to be smaller and 
consume less power. In addition, Matsushita created distinctive products 
in the discrete device, analog LSI, and image sensor fields. In the area of 
image sensors, Matsushita was the first in the world to develop highly 
weather-resistant technology with no color fading or losses in sensitivity 
by using inorganic materials in the photo diode area, and dynamic range 
expansion technology that enables vivid pictures of subjects with signifi-
cant light-dark contrast. These technologies will enable an image sensor 
to function normally even under severe conditions.

Going forward, Matsushita will accelerate the business development 
of 45-nanometer process products and next-generation UniPhier® 
system LSIs. The Company will also strive to make significant improve-
ments in its range of semiconductor devices suitable for Blu-ray disc 
products, including system LSIs with dual-wavelength lasers. Matsushita 
will accelerate the development of new businesses in image sensor 
 products with highly weather-resistant technology and other resources, 
as well as enhance production capacity by building new facilities at its 
Tonami plant. In assembly and testing processes, Matsushita will work to 
improve its production framework for discrete semiconductors in Suzhou, 
China, and make efforts to optimize local production for analog LSIs and 
system LSIs produced in China and other Asian countries.
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These CCDs capture those special moments in 
high picture quality.

0.52 million pixels 12.2 million pixels8.1 million pixels

For camcorders For digital cameras

UniPhier® system LSIs are used in digital 
AV products.
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Electronic Devices
The electronic devices business operates globally with a focus on seven 
priority areas: capacitors, tuners, printed circuit boards, power supply 
products, circuit components, electromechanical components, and 
speakers. Matsushita supplies devices and solutions which match the 
concepts of finished products. In particular, the Company is focusing on 
high-density circuit boards and miniature components to support minia-
turization of electronic equipment and the development of highly 
reliable products for automobiles in which electronic devices are 
playing a more important role than ever.

In fiscal 2008, Matsushita grew sales of specialty polymer 
aluminum electrolytic capacitors that are compact and have a 
high noise reduction function. In addition, sales of power 
supply units for plasma TVs rose, as did sales of angular rate 
sensors used in car navigation systems and digital cameras and 
light touch switches for mobile phones. In the past, Matsushita’s 
Device Application Center, which has both development and 
sales functions, was located only in Japan, but now the Company 
has opened centers in the U.S., Europe, and China, to improve 
competitive total solutions for customers.

Going forward, Matsushita will leverage three core technol-
ogies—membrane and MEMS* technology, circuit board and 
mounting technology, and power management technology—to 
create competitive products that become mainstays of the busi-
ness and increase the number of products with top market shares 
worldwide. Aiming at enhancing manufacturing in Japan, the 
Company is working to increase asset efficiency and develop 
key manufacturing human resources through the April 2008 
integration of eight subsidiaries into one company. Overseas, 
Matsushita plans to expand its manufacturing bases, particularly 
in South China and Vietnam, in response to rising demand for 
components and devices.

*  MEMS (Micro Electro Mechanical Systems): technology related to the production of 
minute electrical equipment systems created via the silicon process technology 
used for semiconductors.

Batteries
The battery business consists of primary batteries, including dry batteries, 
and rechargeable batteries, such as lithium-ion batteries. Batteries are key 
devices upon which the performance of different types of electronic equip-
ment depends. As such, batteries need to have an increasingly larger 
capacity and longer life, while being thinner, smaller, and lighter. At the 
same time, they need to be increasingly safer, more reliable, and cost 
effective. In response to these market needs, Matsushita develops 
 products by fusing technological advances in battery structure, materials, 
and production methods.

Film capacitors for HEVsElectric Double-Layer 
Capacitor Module

Digital Terrestrial  
Automotive Tuner 

Combination switch 
used in automobiles

DVD-compatible  
car speaker system

Angular rate sensors  
used in automobiles
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In the year under review, in primary batteries, the Company’s Oxyride 
dry battery, which boasts increased power output and extended life, 
proved popular with customers, particularly for use in digital cameras 
and other digital equipment. In addition, responding to increasing 
demand for electronic equipment that consumes less electricity, 
 Matsushita developed the EVOLTA dry alkaline battery, which offers long 
life in a wide range of products beyond just digital AV equipment. In 
rechargeable batteries, in response to customer needs for more compact 
notebook PCs, mobile phones, and other mobile equipment that can be 
used for extended periods, the Company focused on enhancing its 
high-capacity lithium-ion batteries, as well as pursuing even safer 
rechargeable batteries.

Looking ahead, Matsushita will position Oxyride dry batteries as 
 custom-made products for high-current equipment like digital cameras 
and mobile phones while rapidly rolling out its new EVOLTA dry alkaline 
batteries both in Japan and abroad, targeting products in a wide spec-
trum of current ranges. At the same time, with demand for lithium-ion 
batteries expected to increase, the Company will expand production 
capacity in Japan and overseas, while accelerating development of next-
generation rechargeable batteries that are safer and offer higher capacity.

Electric Motors
In electric motors, Matsushita supplies products that meet growing 
market needs in terms of efficiency, noise reduction, and compact 
design. These motors are incorporated into various products, including 
home appliances, AV equipment, and industrial equipment.

In the year under review, strong sales were recorded in FA servo 
motors, small motors used in air conditioners, motors for vacuum clean-
ers, and compact brushless motors used in game consoles. The electric 
motors business also enhanced cooperation with finished product divi-
sions, leading to the use of motors and motor drivers produced in-house 
in Matsushita’s tilted-drum washer/dryers, electronic component mount-
ing machines, and other new products.

In the future, Matsushita will continue to aggressively bring to market 
high-value-added products. For instance, it will work to increase the use 
of FA servo motors and motor drivers that leverage Matsushita’s cutting-
edge control technology in industrial equipment. In addition, Matsushita 
will develop new motors for various types of home appliances. Finally, the 
Company will develop core technologies and products in order to create 
extended-life motors with minimal environmental impact by using less 
energy and fewer resources.

New EVOLTA dry alkaline batteries

Motors for Matsushita’s tilted-drum washer/dryers

Game console motor Car AV motor

Industrial brushless motor

Lithium-ion batteries with high energy output
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Mew AND PANAHoMe

MEW
MEW manufactures, sells, installs and provides services related to a 
wide variety of products. These include electrical construction 
materials, home appliances, building products, electronic and plastic 
materials and automation controls.

The electrical construction materials business unit at MEW 
recorded a rise in sales of home fire alarms during fiscal 2008, while 
sales of high-performance products, including wiring devices and 
home-use distribution panelboards designed for all-electric homes, 
were strong. Moreover, the Lifinity electrical facility networking system for 
home safety was popular with customers, as were energy-saving wiring 
devices outfitted with sensors. Other popular products include lighting 
devices sporting electrodeless light sources with 60,000-hour lifespans, 
as well as devices that provide the light of two conventional lamps via a 
new light source and a special inverter. In the home appliances business, 
aesthetic products such as nanocare facial ionic steamers won strong 
market acceptance. In building products, meanwhile, the self-cleaning 
A La Uno toilet, which is made from a new material that resists dirt, 
recorded higher sales, as did modular bathroom systems for collective 
housing, which help create a pleasant living environment. In the electronic 
and plastic materials business, sales of environmentally friendly products 
like multilayer printed circuit board materials and semiconductor encap-
sulation materials grew significantly. Meanwhile, the automation controls 
business saw strong sales of automotive devices and other products. 
During the year under review, MEW consolidated Anchor Electricals 
 Private Ltd., one of India’s largest suppliers of electrical construction 
materials. This and growth in overseas sales of electronic and plastic 
materials and automation controls helped drive expansion of overseas 
operations at MEW. In December 2007, MEW made leading North 
 American lamp ballast* manufacturer and retailer Universal Lighting 
 Technologies, Inc. (ULT) a subsidiary, bolstering the lighting devices busi-
ness of MEW.

Self-cleaning A La Uno toilet

Environmentally-conscious 
lighting fixture, “W Eco”

Men’s shaver 
“LAMDASH”

Home fire alarm
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Going forward, MEW will cultivate and strengthen demand-creating 
products in response to social trends such as those relating to environ-
mental protection, energy conservation, security, and health as it works 
to provide total solutions that realize comfortable living for its customers. 
Centered on electronic and plastic materials, automation controls, and 
lighting devices, MEW will expand its overseas business with a particular 
emphasis on China, India, and other countries in Asia.

* A device that stabilizes the current flowing through lighting equipment.

PanaHome
PanaHome’s operations are primarily focused on detached housing, asset 
and property management, and home remodeling. In all these businesses, 
to provide living spaces that are friendly to both people and the environ-
ment, the company’s product strategies are guided by the basic “Eco-life 
Home” concept, which advocates all-electric homes with an emphasis on 
safety, security, health, comfort, and high energy efficiency.

In fiscal 2008, in the detached housing business, PanaHome released 
a variety of new products, all of which received high praise. These prod-
ucts included SOLANA Bianca, a “white tile home” made possible with 
photocatalytic tiles, and SOLANA eu Lucia, a home that is easy to keep 
clean and tidy and fun to live in due to an efficient design that facilitates 
ease of movement. In the asset and property management business, 
PanaHome became first in the Japanese housing industry to offer an 
all-electric rental apartment home series called EL MAISON NEXT, which 
has photocatalytic tiles on its exterior walls, ensuring that homes look as 
good as when they were built for a long time. They also boast impressive 
earthquake resistance. In addition, PanaHome created a framework 
enabling it to handle all aspects of land asset utilization for its customers. 
At the same time, PanaHome restructured production and downsized its 
workforce as part of structural reforms geared toward optimizing the use 
of business resources in order to strengthen operations from a medium- 
to long-term standpoint.

Looking ahead, PanaHome will continue seeking to offer homes that 
are kind to people and the planet by embracing technologies in harmony 
with the environment, as well as to provide more comfortable living 
spaces suited to the customer, thereby ensuring sustainable growth.

SOLANA eu Lucia homes and Fureai Kitchens 
make living fun and housework a breeze.

High performance home-use distribution 
panelboards designed for all-electric homes
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otHer

Factory Automation
In the factory automation (FA) business, Matsushita aims to contribute to 
the development of client businesses through innovative manufacturing 
processes in circuit manufacturing technology. As mobile phones, note-
book PCs, digital AV equipment and other products get smaller, thinner, 
and more sophisticated, Matsushita is working to provide customers with 
the latest mounting processes and solutions, spanning everything from 
component insertion to wafer processing, to help increase productivity.

In fiscal 2008, the electronic component mounting business main-
tained a leading global market share by enhancing its lineup of mainstay 
high-speed modular placement machines in response to various market 
needs. In the semiconductor mounting business, Matsushita released 
new products that enable multiple mounting and mounting of high- 
brightness LEDs. Moreover, as manufacturing-related needs continue to 
diversify, the FA business created a global testing framework for support-
ing prototyping and production method development overseas to help it 
provide customers with optimized solutions.

In the future, the Company plans to make its mounting equipment 
faster and more sophisticated, and provide mounting machines that 
significantly improve productivity by leveraging its surface mounting 
technology and other core technologies. Moreover, Matsushita plans 
to provide customers with wide-ranging solutions that leverage the 
 Company’s competitive advantages in hardware and sophisticated 
 processing technology in order to ensure growth for the FA business 
and increase profitability.

High-speed modular mounter
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overseas Marketing activities

local-oriented marketing tailored to regional characteristics
In Matsushita’s mid-term management plan GP3, double-digit growth in overseas sales of consumer products is 
one growth strategy. This section looks at our performance in fiscal 2008 in each region and initiatives planned for 
fiscal 2009 to achieve this goal. 

North America
In the North American market, Matsushita posted a year-on-year drop in sales of 
consumer products in fiscal 2008. This decline was mainly due to a rapid drop in 
prices of AV equipment and our inability to supply products in step with rapidly 
increasing LCD TV demand, as well as sluggish sales of network-related digital 
AV products.

Under these circumstances, the Matsushita Group in April 2008 changed to 
an integrated management structure whereby the North American consumer 
products sales company in AVC products is now positioned under the control of 
a business domain company. With this structure, Matsushita is conducting a 
sweeping review of management of production, sales and inventories, and at the 
same time strengthening the startup of promotional activities when new prod-
ucts are launched on the marketing front. In these and other ways, Matsushita is 
pushing ahead with fundamental reforms that are designed to facilitate quick 
management decision-making and smooth business operations with the aim of 
responding to rapidly changing market conditions. In terms of marketing activi-
ties, Matsushita is accelerating a shift from sales centered on plasma TVs to 
sales focused on a broader range of high-definition products connected by 
VIERA Link and further promoting sales at regional mass retailers by building a 
network of VIERA dealers. Furthermore, Matsushita has launched an initiative 
that integrates development, manufacturing and sales activities, such as getting 
families to try out Matsushita’s HD products in their homes with the option of 
purchasing them and reflecting their feedback in product development.

Outline of Plan for Achieving Double-digit Growth in Overseas Sales

The above figures are based on the mid-term management plan 

exchange rates.

n	 Conducting local-oriented marketing tailored 

to regional characteristics

n	 Improving product competitiveness through 

collaboration between production and sales 

divisions

n	 Strengthening brands based on product 

competitiveness

Overseas Sales of Consumer Products

+40%

Fiscal 2007

Fiscal 2010

VIERA Link demonstration promoting 
Matsushita’s wide range of HD products

The LiHD family program allows customers to 
take Matsushita’s HD products home to experi-
ence them before making a purchase decision.
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Europe
The European market in fiscal 2008 saw consumer sentiment decline due to an 
economic slowdown stemming from rising interest rates and inflation, as well as 
concerns about the effect of the stronger euro on the export industry. Although 
market conditions were difficult, particularly in the second half of the fiscal year, 
the Matsushita Group posted higher year-on-year sales of consumer products in 
this region.

In fiscal 2009, Matsushita is promoting various strategies in the region based 
on two key policies: achieving double-digit sales growth with profitability, and rais-
ing Matsushita’s presence in the digital consumer electronics industry in Europe.

In the digital consumer electronics field, four basic strategies have been set 
forth for raising the Matsushita Group’s presence in the industry. First is to expand 
sales at mass retailers across Europe. Second is to expand sales of LCD TVs, in 
addition to plasma TVs. The third strategy is to strengthen brand power and 
differentiate Panasonic brand products mainly by improving product explanations 
in stores and strengthening TV commercials. Finally, we aim to increase sales in 
France following the U.K. and Germany.

Furthermore, Matsushita will expand sales of home appliances, car navigation 
systems, water heating systems and other products, as well as launch these prod-
ucts in new markets, for creating future earnings drivers. In addition,  Matsushita is 
strengthening its management structure, mainly by reinforcing relationships with 
distribution channels.

China
In China, sales of consumer products in fiscal 2008 recorded double-digit 
growth, compared with the previous fiscal year. Despite this growth, there 
remain three challenges for the Matsushita Group in implementing strategies: 
further expanding sales of plasma TVs and LCD TVs, implementing marketing 
initiatives of a broader range of products instead of individual products in home 
appliances, and strengthening sales of systems products.

As part of measures to address these issues, Matsushita saw the August 
2008 Beijing Summer Olympic Games as a good business opportunity to grow 
flat-panel TV sales, and thus undertook the Group’s biggest promotion ever in 
China, the VIERA 100 Day Campaign, which ran for 100 days from May 
through the end of the Olympic Games. In addition, Matsushita held the Global 
Plasma Roadshow in 21 cities across China to promote the appeal of VIERA’s 
high performance to customers as well as strengthened in-store promotions, 
including exhibitions of VIERA Link products at 700 retailers and of 103-inch 
plasma TVs at 100 retailers.

In home appliance products, Matsushita is strengthening its refrigerator 
lineup and supplying systems products for public construction, transportation 
businesses and other large projects, as well as implementing initiatives to 
develop new sales channels.

Global Plasma Roadshow in Germany

HD networking convention for journalists and 
distributors in European countries

A VIERA Link demonstration featuring a 
103-inch plasma TV

Global Plasma Roadshow in China
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Brazil
In Brazil, over the two-year period from 2005, the number of middle-income 
customers with average monthly income of approximately US$900 increased by 
around 20 million people,* as the country’s income strata inches closer to that of 
industrialized countries. Amid this changing market structure, the Matsushita 
Group is aggressively developing its sales strategy focused on upscale customers. 
Examples of initiatives include exhibiting and selling Panasonic products at 
showrooms for upscale condominiums and high-end furniture stores, participat-
ing in events for owners of luxury sports cars, and displaying large-screen 
plasma TVs and discussing business at stud bull auction sites. In fiscal 2008, in 
addition to these measures, Matsushita endeavored to develop new customer 
segments by promoting Internet sales and strengthening the Panasonic brand 
via sponsorship of car races.

In fiscal 2009, Matsushita aims to further enhance its brand image by 
strengthening its product lineup via more extensive development of flat-panel 
TVs, opening showrooms in upmarket shopping centers and running media 
promotions. In addition, by increasing the number and quality of promoters, 
Matsushita aims to further promote the appeal of its products in stores.

* Observador survey 2008 by advertising research company Ipsos

Russia
In Russia in 2007, the number of households earning at least US$50,000 a year 
reached 4.5 million. The number of upscale and other well-to-do customers is 
also increasing rapidly.* In this market, the Matsushita Group in fiscal 2008 
remodeled “Smart House” showroom in Moscow for upscale customers, with 
the new-look store featuring a 103-inch plasma TV, and delivered products to 
famous art museums and other museums, as Matsushita worked to reach more 
upscale customers.

In addition, Matsushita expanded sales of systems products by filling orders 
for broadcasting equipment for major broadcasters and Astro Vision screens to a 
soccer stadium in Saint Petersburg. Matsushita also made efforts to strengthen 
its brand power, including running TV commercials and outdoor advertisements 
featuring Mr. Takeshi Kitano, a popular Japanese movie director among Russians, 
and sending sales promoters to major volume retailers.

In fiscal 2009, in order to raise the Panasonic brand image further among 
well-off Russian customers, Matsushita will make a point of strengthening sales 
activities in regional cities and in-store exhibits promoting the appeal of VIERA 
Link products, and continuously running campaigns connected with the 
 European Cup football competition, the Olympics Games and other events. 

* Based on research carried out by major insurer Rosgosstrakh

An advertising campaign in a magazine 
featuring Mr. Takeshi Kitano

A showroom for upscale customers

Merchandise exhibition at a showroom for an 
upscale condominium

Stock car race sponsored by Matsushita
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Vietnam
In Vietnam, Matsushita recorded sales gains in consumer products in fiscal 
2008, thanks to the full-scale launch of plasma and LCD TVs and increased 
sales of washing machines and refrigerators.

From 2009, foreign companies are expected to make capital investment in 
the distribution industry in Vietnam, and mass retailers are rapidly opening stores 
and advancing into regional areas. Based on this changing market envi-
ronment, the Matsushita Group has strengthened local manufacturing 
capabilities and in June 2008 began sales of five locally produced LCD 
TV models. Matsushita is also taking steps to increase production 
capacity of locally produced refrigerators and to develop new models. 
Matsushita continues to strengthen its product lineups in AV products 
and home appliances by increasing the number of high-end imported 
models and locally produced models.

Looking forward, Matsushita will strive to establish its brand image in 
Vietnam by improving in-store demonstrations centered on VIERA flat-
panel TVs and LUMIX digital cameras in 15 major cities,* actively imple-
menting marketing activities focused on upscale customers and raising 
brand exposure via roadshows, exhibitions and the media.

* Hanoi, Hai Phong, Da Nang, Thai Nguyen, Bac Giang, Ho Chi Minh City, Long Xuyen,  
Kon Tum, Nha Trang, Vung Tau, Thanh Hoa, Vinh, Da Lat, Bien Hoa, Ca Mau

India
In India, sales of consumer products in fiscal 2008 increased markedly from the 
previous fiscal year. During the period under review, Matsushita implemented 
various initiatives such as opening 18 brand shops, beginning local LCD TV 
production, re-entering the air conditioner and washing machine markets, and 
breaking into the refrigerator market. The Company also successfully filled an 
order for 30 103-inch PDP monitors for the Tripathi Temple, the largest Hindu 
temple in India. Despite these achievements, issues still remain such as under-
development of the sales network to major mass retailers and delays in opening 
brand shops. In fiscal 2009, Matsushita plans to implement a comprehensive 
marketing strategy in India, such as launching new products for the Diwali*1 
shopping season in October, the period of greatest demand in India, partici-
pating in exhibitions in 10 major cities*2 across the country, promoting tie-up 
campaigns with nationwide and regional mass retailers, and opening new brand 
shops. As a result of these efforts, Matsushita aims to achieve sales equivalent 
to 2.4 times fiscal 2008 sales in India.

*1 Diwali, which is also known as “Festival of Light,” is a major New Year celebration for Hindus. 
During this season, people buy presents for their family members, acquaintances and friends, and 
the period also coincides with the bonus season in India.

*2 Delhi, Ahmedabad, Mumbai, Pune, Kochi, Bangalore, Hyderabad, Chennai, Pondicherry, Kolkata

Matsushita is strengthen-
ing and expanding product 
lineups with models 
designed exclusively for 
the Vietnamese market.

An advertising campaign 
in a magazine promoting 
the larger screen size and 
thinness of LCD TVs 
compared with CRT TVs

A VIERA newspaper advertisement

Matsushita’s brand shop in a shopping mall 
located near Delhi

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd.  2008   39



R&D anD Intellectual PRoPeRty

In order to contribute to the realization of a ubiquitous networking society and coexistence with the global envi-
ronment, Matsushita engages in a broad range of R&D activities, including nanotechnologies and other advanced 
research; digital network software technologies for AV equipment and next-generation mobile communications; 
component and device technologies such as plasma display panels (PDPs) and system LSIs; and environmental 
technologies such as fuel cell cogeneration systems.

By coordinating business, technology and intellectual property strategies, the Company works to develop 
distinct technologies—the source of Matsushita’s competitiveness—and secure intellectual property rights for 
those technologies to ensure the strength of its businesses. In this way, Matsushita is aiming to drive further 
growth and become a manufacturing-oriented company.

R&D Strategy
Matsushita recorded ¥554.5 billion in R&D expenditures in 

fiscal 2008. This investment was used to accelerate R&D 

in priority areas including full HD plasma TVs, Blu-ray disc 

(BD) recorders, its UniPhier® system LSIs, and household 

fuel-cell cogeneration systems. 

The Company’s R&D activities aim to generate added 

value by maximizing synergies in a wide range of business 

fields. Matsushita pursues development of unique technolo-

gies via a high level of cooperation, not only through in-house 

production, but also through a sophisticated network of 

cooperation among materials, components and devices, 

and finished product divisions. For example, in plasma TVs, 

Matsushita made advances in technology for achieving 

higher luminous efficiency and forming ultra-large panels 

that have doubled luminous efficiency*1 and provide the 

same brightness while halving power consumption. It has 

also developed the world’s largest*2 150-inch PDPs. These 

ultra-large, high-resolution PDPs boast an 8.84- million-pixel 

resolution, four times that of existing full HD PDPs.

Matsushita is also working on a digital AV equipment 

platform strategy for the HD network era. The Company 

developed a new generation of UniPhier® system LSIs com-

patible with MPEG-4 AVC/H.264, and in fiscal 2008 these 

system LSIs were included in such products as BD record-

ers, HD camcorders, and VIERA mobile phones that receive 

“one-segment” terrestrial digital TV broadcasts.

Aiming to develop products that are both user- and 

environment-friendly, Matsushita also focused on R&D 

designed to provide consumers with greater comfort and 

energy efficiency. Specifically, based on research into 

human physiology and senses, the Company developed air 

conditioners that automatically adjust air flows depending 

on people’s feeling of temperature, which results in signifi-

cantly improved energy efficiency.

Matsushita is also working to expand its global R&D 

network and optimize placement of its development 

resources. For example, the Company has established a 
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new research facility in Vietnam, while also strengthening the 

development of products such as refrigerators and air condi-

tioners that are more adapted to local conditions in terms of 

food, clothing and housing in China and other countries.

Meanwhile, we are working to prioritize R&D projects 

based on a medium- to long-term vision, so as to optimally 

allocate technology resources. At the same time, the 

 Company has accelerated development by promoting 

active “open innovation” via measures like collaboration with 

academic institutions.

Matsushita will maintain its focus on a number of key 

R&D areas in fiscal 2009, including higher-resolution PDPs 

that use less electricity; development for commercializing 

next-generation mobile phones; network-compatible digital 

TVs and other networkable products; fuel cell cogeneration 

systems for energy creation; and robots designed to pro-

vide support in everyday situations for the benefit of 

people.  Matsushita will also pursue new possibilities in 

domains including networks, the environment and energy, 

health, and components and devices in order to ensure 

sustainable growth.

*1 Compared to Matsushita’s former model (TH-42PZ750SK)
*2 As of January 8, 2008; Matsushita estimate.

Intellectual Property Strategy
The new technologies and designs that result from R&D 

activities are protected as intellectual property rights in the 

form of utility and design patent rights. The brand, the face 

of the Company and its products, is also protected by 

trademark rights. By securing legal protection for products 

and businesses, intellectual property rights form a founda-

tion for corporate growth.

The Matsushita Group is a general electronics manufac-

turer involved in a wide range of fields from digital AV equip-

ment and information and communication equipment to 

household appliances and devices. As such, it has a diverse 

lineup of technologies and products. Matsushita has there-

fore positioned “intellectual property portfolio management” 

as a fundamental strategy, one that is formed through 

detailed analysis based on the groups of core technologies 

and products, to efficiently acquire high-quality intellectual 

property rights in each group, and maximize their use. By 

protecting unique technologies and designs as intellectual 

property rights, Matsushita secures a competitive advan-

tage for its products. Moreover, broadening the range of 

freedom for the Company’s own R&D activities through 

Longer recording time in high resolution for full HD images is 
highly desired by  consumers. The key to achieving this lies in 
image compression technology. This means we must develop 
not only superior techniques to compress and decompress 
image data, but also new semiconductor hardware to compress 
and decompress the image data quickly and beautifully.

Panasonic Singapore Laboratories has a group of specialists 
who develop image-processing technologies that play a vital 
role in semiconductor advances. We were involved in developing 
the standards for the next-generation MPEG-4 AVC image 
compression format used around the world, and we have also 
worked to develop the semiconductors capable of realizing this 
format’s potential.

The most important aspect of image compression is the 
ability to analyze images. Applying the same compression to all 
image data sacrifices image quality—so we collaborated with 
divisions in Japan to develop unique technology that compresses 
images according to image characteristics such as the speed at 
which the background moves.

To develop the semiconductor hardware, we enhanced our 
semiconductor computing power and created a design that would 
decompress the data in a rapid and energy-efficient manner.

The fruits of our efforts can be found in the semiconductors 
used in the BD recorder DIGA, which offers HD image recording 
time that is approximately four times longer than that of previ-
ous models.*

*  During recording in HE mode (approx. 5.7Mbps); Compared to recording of 
BS digital HD broadcasts in DR mode (approx. 24Mbps).

Michael Bi Mi (Left)
Leader, Development Team for Semi

conductor Image Compression Circuits

Panasonic Singapore Laboratories Pte. Ltd.

Lim Chong Soon (Right)
Leader, Development Team for MPEG4 

AVC Image Compression Format

Panasonic Singapore Laboratories Pte. Ltd.

Matsushita Develops Semiconductors That Allow 

Longer Recording Times for Full HD Images

Global Patents Held

Note:  Each graph depicts the number of patents held by Matsushita and its 
principal subsidiaries (excluding MEW, PanaHome and JVC) as of 
March 31 for each year.

Number of patents held in Japan Number of patents held overseas
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cross-licensing agreements*1 helps increase business com-

petitiveness. Matsushita also participates in patent pools*2 

for intellectual property rights related to technical standards 

for digital products, enabling the effective use of intellectual 

property rights to grow business, through such means as 

creating and expanding markets.

During fiscal 2008, the Company continued to utilize 

international patent filing under the Patent Cooperation 

Treaty (PCT), which provides for the cost-effective and 

 efficient acquisition of patents in multiple counties, in line 

with its global expansion. As a result, in 2007 Matsushita 

was ranked number one in the world, the first time for a 

Japanese firm, in international patent filings. The Company 

also maintained its lead in patent applications in Japan, 

while ranking high in overseas patent applications in major 

regions. At the same time, Matsushita raised the quality of its 

intellectual property rights from the standpoint of enforce-

ment, and also enhanced asset efficiency by assessing the 

enforceability of intellectual property rights in its portfolio.

As part of its strategy to address counterfeit products 

from China and other counties, Matsushita continued to 

work in cooperation with both its industry peers and local 

authorities to identify infringements at a variety of stages, 

including manufacture, wholesale, retail and customs 

 clearance. The Company also worked to protect its con-

sumers and brands through active participation in the 

 International Intellectual Property Protection Forum (IIPPF), 

a  public-private alliance, such as by taking part in the 

 government-private joint mission to China for intellectual 

property protection.

In fiscal 2009, Matsushita will continue to strengthen its 

overseas intellectual property capabilities with an eye 

towards expanding business in BRICs and other emerging 

markets, as well as in developed regions such as the U.S., 

Japan and Europe. It will also help enhance global product 

competitiveness by increasing its focus on strengthening 

intellectual property search capabilities and developing 

specialists in intellectual property, both of which support a 

highly efficient intellectual property strategy.

*1 Mutual licensing of patents by patent holders.
*2 Scheme in which multiple patent holders bring their patents, or the rights 

to license their patents, into an organization, enabling members of the 
organization and other interested parties to obtain necessary licenses 
through the organization.

Rank Company Name
No. of  
Filings

1 Matsushita electric Industrial co., ltd. (Japan) 2,100

2 Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.V. (The Netherlands) 2,041

3 Siemens AG (Germany) 1,644

4 Huawei Technologies Co. Ltd. (China) 1,365

5 Robert Bosch GmbH (Germany) 1,146

6 Toyota Motor Corporation (Japan) 997

7 QUALCOMM Incorporated (U.S.) 974

8 Microsoft Corporation (U.S.) 845

9 Motorola, Inc. (U.S.) 824

10 Nokia Corporation (Finland) 822

11 BASF AG (Germany) 810

12 3M Innovative Properties Company (U.S.) 769

13 LG Electronics Inc. (Republic of Korea) 719

14 Fujitsu Limited (Japan) 708

15 Sharp Corporation (Japan) 702

16 NEC Corporation (Japan) 626

17 Intel Corporation (U.S.) 623

18 PIONEER CORPORATION (Japan) 611

19 International Business Machines Corporation (U.S.) 606

20 Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. (Republic of Korea) 598

2007 World Ranking of International Patent Filings 
Under the Patent Cooperation Treaty (PCT)

Intellectual Property (IP) Rights for Protecting Products

Secure a  
competitive edge for 
products leveraging 
various intellectual 

property rights

Patents
Advanced technological 
inventions
• PDPs
• D/A converters
•  Technology to lower 

electricity consumption 
•  Inventions that enable 

smaller and lower-cost 
products

Utility model rights
Technological concept
•  Easily opened and closed 

structure

Designs
External appearance in 
terms of shape, pattern 
and color
• Design
• Packaging

Trademarks
A mark affixed to a 
product

Copyrights
Creative expression of 
ideas
•  Program for systems control 

microprocessors
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coRPoRate GoveRnance

Basic concept of corporate Governance 
Matsushita’s corporate governance system is based on the Board of Directors, which is responsible for deciding 
important operational matters for the whole Group and monitoring the execution of business by Directors, and the 
Board of Corporate Auditors, which is independent from the Board of Directors. The Corporate Auditors and the 
Board of Corporate Auditors are responsible for auditing the performance of duties by Directors. Matsushita has 
established the following management system based on the implementation of autonomous management in each 
business domain and the Company’s corporate governance system. 

corporate Governance Structure 
The Board of Directors and Executive Officer System 
Matsushita’s Board of Directors is composed of 19 direc-

tors, two of whom are Outside Directors, as of June 26, 

2008. In accordance with the Company Law and relevant 

laws and ordinances (collectively, the “Company Law”), the 

Board of Directors has ultimate responsibility for administra-

tion of the Company’s affairs and monitoring of the execu-

tion of business by Directors. Under its basic philosophy “A 

company is a public entity of society,” Matsushita has long 

been committed to enhancing corporate governance, and 

was one of the first Japanese companies to invite  Outside 

Directors to serve on its Board of Directors. 

Matsushita has an optimum management and gover-

nance structure tailored to the Group’s business domain-

based organizational structure. Under this structure, 

Matsushita has empowered each of its business domain 

companies through delegation of authority. At the same 

time, the Company employs an Executive Officer System to 

provide for the execution of business at various domestic 

and overseas Matsushita Group companies. This system 

facilitates the development of optimum corporate strategies 

that integrate the Group’s comprehensive strengths. 

In addition, Matsushita realigned the role and structure 

of the Board of Directors to ensure swift and strategic 

 decision-making, as well as the optimum monitoring of 

Groupwide matters. Specifically, the Board of Directors 

concentrates on corporate strategies and the supervision 

of business domain companies, while Executive Officers 

handle responsibilities relating to day-to-day operations. 

Taking into consideration the diversified scope of its busi-

ness operations, Matsushita has opted to maintain a 

system where Executive Officers, who are most familiar 

with the specifics of their respective operations, take an 

active part in the Board of Directors. Furthermore, to clarify 

the responsibilities of Directors and create a more dynamic 

organization, the Company has limited the term of each 

Director to one year. 

Corporate Auditors and the Board of  
Corporate Auditors 
Pursuant to the Company Law, Matsushita has appointed 

Corporate Auditors and established a Board of Corporate 

Auditors, made up of Corporate Auditors. The Corporate 

Auditors and Board of Corporate Auditors monitor the status 

of corporate governance and keep abreast of the day-to-day 

activities of management, including the Board of Directors. 

As of June 26, 2008, the Company had five  Corporate 

 Auditors, including three Outside Corporate Auditors. 

Corporate Auditors participate in shareholder meetings 

and Board of Directors’ meetings, and have legal authority 

to receive reports from Directors, employees and account-

ing auditors. Full-time Senior Auditors also attend important 

meetings and conduct checks in order to ensure effective 

monitoring. To augment internal auditing functions in the 

Group, Matsushita has assigned eight non-statutory full-

time senior auditors at internal divisional companies to 

assist in audits by Corporate Auditors. Matsushita also 

inaugurated regular Group Auditor Meetings (comprising 

18 full-time senior auditors and non-statutory full-time 

senior auditors from main Company subsidiaries) chaired by 

the Chairman of the Board of Corporate Auditors of the 

 Company to enhance collaboration between the Company’s 

Corporate Auditors, non-statutory full-time senior auditors 

of internal divisional companies and Corporate Auditors of 

the Company’s subsidiaries. In addition, as part of their 

audit duties, Corporate Auditors maintain close contact 

with the Internal Audit Group to ensure effective audits. 

Moreover, in order to enhance the effectiveness of audits 

conducted by Corporate Auditors and ensure the smooth 

implementation of audits, Matsushita has established a 

Corporate Auditor’s Office with a full-time staff of five under 

the direct control of the Board of Corporate Auditors. 
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Corporate Governance Structure <Functions of the Board of Directors, Executive Officers and the Board of Corporate Auditors>

Subsidiaries (Business Domain Companies) 
Overseas Companies

Board of Directors

Board of Corporate Auditors

Executive Officers

Supervisory Functions

Corporate Strategy Decision-making Functions

Auditing Functions

Accounting Auditor

Empowerment & 
 Supervision

Integration of 
Group’s  

Comprehensive 
Strengths

Execution Functions

Other Business Divisions, R&D, etc.

Overseas Divisions

Sales Divisions

Internal Divisional Companies (Business Domain Companies)

Accounting Audit

Audit

Audit

Note: Certain Directors concurrently serve as Executive Officers.

Remuneration Policy 
The maximum total amounts of remuneration for Directors 

and Corporate Auditors of Matsushita are determined by a 

resolution at a general meeting of shareholders. The 

 remuneration amount for each Director is determined by 

Matsushita’s Representative Directors who are delegated to 

make such determination by the Board of Directors, and the 

amount of remuneration for each Corporate Auditor is deter-

mined upon discussions amongst the Corporate Auditors. 

Under a Board of Directors’ resolution, the amounts of 

the remuneration and bonuses of Directors are linked to 

individual performance based on Capital Cost Management 

(CCM)* and sales (an indicator of growth potential). By imple-

menting this performance evaluation criteria based on 

shareholder interests, Matsushita intends to  promote con-

tinuous growth and enhance profitability on a long-term 

basis for the Matsushita Group as a whole. 

In order to realize a remuneration system with a high 

level of transparency and acceptability, Matsushita termi-

nated its retirement benefits for Directors and Corporate 

Auditors in June 2006. 

*  CCM is an indicator created by Matsushita to evaluate return on capital. 

Internal control Systems 
Compliance 
The Company has formulated the Matsushita Group Code 

of Conduct to clearly explain in easy-to-understand terms 

how its management philosophy should be implemented. 

As a unified global standard, the code applies to all the 

Matsushita Group’s Directors, Executive Officers, and 

employees. Matsushita has also formulated a Code of 

Ethics for Directors and Executive Officers stating the fun-

damental ethics required of the Company’s top managers. 

In addition, the Company has created a Corporate 

 Compliance Committee, which is chaired by the President 

and made up of relevant Directors, Executive Officers and 

Corporate Auditors. Meeting twice yearly, this committee 

has a Companywide remit and is responsible for discussing 

and sharing information concerning compliance issues and 

communicating compliance action policy. 

Matsushita also works to ensure compliance in its global 

business activities. Specifically, the Company has appointed 

legal affairs managers at business domain companies, over-

seas regional headquarters and other entities, and has also 

appointed Directors and Executive Officers in charge of 

ensuring compliance with the code, as well as personnel 

responsible for fair trade and export controls. Based on 

cooperation with all relevant parties, Matsushita works to 

enforce Companywide compliance policy, as well as to 

provide training and promote awareness, in all the countries 

and regions where it operates. In particular, “Enhancing 

Compliance Month,” launched in 2006 as an initiative in 

Japan, was positioned as a global undertaking in fiscal 

2008. During this period, messages are sent from the 
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with Companywide emergencies in order to ensure a seam-

less and timely response.  

Matsushita will make comprehensive efforts in risk man-

agement to recognize business risks through the above-

mentioned process and take countermeasures that protect 

the interests of all stakeholders, while helping the Company 

achieve its business goals. 

Information Security 
With the advent of the information society, the value of infor-

mation in business has grown enormously. This prompted 

Matsushita to take a pioneering step with the establishment 

of a Corporate Information Security Division in January 

2004. This division was created to achieve the three aims 

listed below. Specifically, the Company will implement initia-

tives to attain a world-class level of information security by 

setting and working toward common global targets and 

training information security personnel. 

1. Ensure a high degree of trust in the Company by 

achieving the same level of information security for 

each business site and employee worldwide, and by 

managing customer and business partner information 

in an appropriate manner. 

2. Boost management efficiency and enhance corporate 

value by ensuring trade secrets, personal information, 

technical data and other information held by the 

Company are used and shared safely. 

3. Formulate common global rules, build a global imple-

mentation framework and conduct regular training 

programs for all Matsushita employees to raise 

awareness of information security among all employ-

ees and create a culture of information management. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
Matsushita has documented its internal control system, 

designed to ensure reliability in financial reporting of the 

Matsushita Group including its subsidiaries, ranging from 

the control infrastructure to actual internal control activities. 

The Company has reinforced its internal controls by imple-

menting self-checks and self-assessment programs, in 

addition to regular internal auditing at each business domain 

company. Matsushita has also appointed an Internal Audit-

ing Manager at each business domain company who audits 

the compliance status and effectiveness of internal controls. 

The Corporate Internal Auditing Group supervises these 

activities in order to ensure the reliability of each company’s 

financial reporting. With the aim of further enhancing the 

president, tests are conducted to assess understanding of 

compliance, and unique activities are conducted in each 

country and region in a bid to raise compliance awareness 

on a global level throughout the Company. 

Matsushita has a Global Corporate  Business Ethics 

Hotline, enabling all employees in Japan and overseas to 

receive advice about possible violations of laws related to 

their duties or corporate ethics. The Company also estab-

lished a system whereby the Board of Corporate  Auditors 

can directly receive concerns from employees and other 

individuals with regard to accounting or auditing irregularities, 

thereby helping to improve financial soundness. 

Risk Management 
In addition to centralized collection and analysis of informa-

tion, Matsushita maintains a management cycle that links 

risk management activities with other business manage-

ment initiatives. In April 2005, Matsushita established the 

Global and Group (G&G) Risk Management Committee, 

consisting of Directors and Executive Officers from various 

departments of the Corporate Headquarters. Matsushita 

also established similar functional committees at business 

domain companies and subsidiaries to formulate appropri-

ate countermeasures on a global and Group basis. Specifi-

cally, all business domain companies and subsidiaries of the 

Matsushita Group assess risks once a year, coinciding with 

the creation of annual business plans. Using the results of 

these surveys, the G&G Risk Management Committee then 

evaluates risks according to priority, and directs each busi-

ness domain company on appropriate countermeasures. 

Progress in implementing these countermeasures is also 

monitored. Furthermore, in May 2006, the G&G Risk Man-

agement Committee formulated the Basic Risk Manage-

ment Regulations, which outline the basic objectives of risk 

management and action guidelines for promoting risk man-

agement. In February 2008, in order to ensure the imple-

mentation of and strengthen internal controls further, 

chairpersonship of the G&G Risk Management Committee 

was handed from the Managing Director in Charge of Cor-

porate Risk Management to the President. Matsushita has 

been operating Companywide Emergency Measure Regula-

tions, mainly for disaster risks, since they were drafted in 

September 1995. However, in order to respond to the diver-

sification of risks and their increasing impact as well as 

public demands, the Company has revised these regula-

tions, widening their scope to include other risks. The revi-

sions also clarify the systems and functions that will deal 
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Group’s internal control system, Matsushita has appointed 

approximately 300 personnel to conduct internal audits, 

including 21 people in the Corporate Internal Auditing Group. 

Information Disclosure Structure and Execution  
of Accountability 
To enhance transparency and ensure accountability, the 

Company established the Disclosure Committee, consisting 

of general or executive managers from departments that 

handle relevant information. The Committee checks the 

propriety of statements and descriptions in the Company’s 

annual securities reports and quarterly earnings reports 

submitted to the Japanese regulatory authorities and its 

filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, 

including its annual reports on Form 20-F, while confirming 

the appropriateness and effectiveness of its disclosure 

 controls and procedures. 

Policy on control of Matsushita electric Industrial 
co., ltd. 
Basic Policy 
Since its establishment, Matsushita has operated its busi-

nesses under its basic management philosophy, which sets 

forth that the mission of a business enterprise is to contrib-

ute to the progress and development of society and the 

wellbeing of people through its business activities, thereby 

enhancing the quality of life throughout the world. Aiming for 

further growth to become a global excellent company, 

 Matsushita will work to deliver sustained growth in corpo-

rate value to satisfy its shareholders, investors, customers, 

business partners, employees and all other stakeholders. 

Matsushita has a basic policy that shareholders should 

make final decisions in the event of a Large-scale Purchase 

of the Company’s shares, regarding whether or not the 

Large-scale Purchase should be accepted. However, there 

is the possibility that such Large-scale Purchaser may not 

provide shareholders with sufficient information for making 

appropriate decisions. There is also concern that any Large-

scale Purchase may damage corporate value and share-

holder interest. In this event, the Company may take 

countermeasures in order to protect the interests of all 

shareholders. 

Measures to Realize Basic Policy 
1) Specific measures to realize basic policy 
Matsushita’s mid-term management plan GP3, which runs 

from fiscal 2008 to fiscal 2010, is based on the fundamental 

concept of delivering steady growth with profitability. Under 

this plan, the Company will implement a range of measures 

to achieve the targets of ¥10 trillion in sales,  representing 

growth, and ROE of 10%, measuring capital efficiency. In 

terms of concrete measures, Matsushita will concentrate 

management resources on its strategic businesses, while 

actively pursuing manufacturing of more  competitive prod-

ucts based on its unique technologies. Moreover, in order to 

reinforce management structures, the Company will reduce 

costs and curb total assets by reducing inventories. In addi-

tion, the Company sees reducing the environmental load of 

all business activities as being just as important as steady 

growth with profitability. Accordingly, Matsushita will acceler-

ate environmental sustainability management with a goal of 

reducing CO2 emissions by 300,000 tons (compared with 

fiscal 2007 levels) at all manufacturing sites around the 

world by fiscal 2010.

Matsushita also strives to maximize its corporate value 

by utilizing cash flows generated by business activities for 

actively distributing profits to shareholders through its own 

share repurchases and the payment of cash dividends, as 

well as for acquiring intellectual property rights or conduct-

ing M&As. 

2)  Measures based on the basic policy to prevent 
control by inappropriate parties 

On April 28, 2005, the Board of Directors resolved to adopt 

a policy related to a Large-scale Purchase of the Company’s 

shares called the Enhancement of Shareholder Value (ESV) 

Plan. The ESV Plan has continued to be adopted, with 

Board of Directors’ meetings in April of each subsequent 

year reaffirming the basic thinking behind the plan. At the 

April 28, 2008 Board of Directors’ meeting, the ESV Plan 

was approved again.

With respect to a Large-scale Purchaser who intends to 

acquire 20% or more of all voting rights of the Company, 

this policy requires that (i) a Large-scale Purchaser provide 

sufficient information, such as its outline, purposes or condi-

tions, the basis for determination of the purchase price and 

funds for purchase, and management policies and business 

plans which the Large-scale Purchaser intends to adopt 

after the completion of the Large-scale Purchase, to the 

Board of Directors before a Large-scale Purchase is to be 
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conducted and (ii) after all required information is provided, 

the Board of Directors should be allowed a sufficient period 

of time (a sixty-day period or a ninety-day period) for con-

sideration. The Board of Directors intends to assess and 

examine any proposed Large-scale Purchase after the infor-

mation on such purchase is provided, and subsequently to 

disclose the opinion of the Board of Directors in order to 

assist shareholders in making their decisions. The Board of 

Directors may negotiate with the Large-scale Purchaser 

regarding purchase conditions or suggest alternative plans 

to shareholders, if it is deemed necessary. 

If a Large-scale Purchaser does not comply with the rules 

laid out in the ESV Plan, Matsushita’s Board of Directors may 

take countermeasures against the Large-scale Purchaser to 

protect the interests of all shareholders. Countermeasures 

include the implementation of stock splits, issuance of stock 

acquisition rights or any other measures that the Board of 

Directors is permitted to take under the Company Law in 

Japan, other laws and the Company’s Articles of Incorpora-

tion. If a Large-scale Purchaser complies with the Large-

scale Purchase rules, the Board of Directors does not intend 

to prevent the Large-scale Purchase at its own discretion, 

unless it is clear that such Large-scale Purchase will cause 

irreparable damage or loss to Matsushita. The Board of 

Directors will make decisions relating to countermeasures by 

referring to advice from outside professionals, such as law-

yers and financial advisers, and fully respect the opinions of 

Outside Directors and statutory corporate auditors. 

When invoking the aforementioned countermeasures, if 

the Company’s Board of Directors decides that it is appro-

priate to confirm the will of shareholders from the perspec-

tive of the interest of all shareholders, a general meeting of 

shareholders will be held. If the Company’s Board of Directors 

decides to hold a general meeting of shareholders, it will 

give notice to that effect as well as the reasons for such a 

meeting at that time.

The Board of Directors will adopt specific countermea-

sures which it deems appropriate at that time. If the Board 

of Directors elects to make a stock split for shareholders as 

of a certain record date, the maximum ratio of the stock split 

shall be five-for-one. If the Board of Directors elects to issue 

stock acquisition rights in a rights offering, the Company 

will issue one stock acquisition right for every share held by 

shareholders on a specified record date. One share shall be 

issued on the exercise of each stock acquisition right. If the 

Board of Directors elects to issue stock acquisition rights as 

a countermeasure, it may determine the exercise period and 

exercise conditions of the stock acquisition rights, as well as 

the conditions that allow the Company to acquire stock 

acquisition rights by swapping Company stock with a party 

other than the Large-scale Purchaser, in consideration of 

the effectiveness thereof as a countermeasure, such as the 

condition that shareholders do not belong to a specific 

group of shareholders including a Large-scale Purchaser. 

The Company recognizes that the aforementioned 

 countermeasures may cause damage or loss, economic or 

otherwise, to a prospective Large-scale Purchaser who 

does not comply with the Large-scale Purchase Rules. 

Matsushita does not anticipate that taking such counter-

measures will cause shareholders, other than the Large-scale 

Purchaser, economic damage or loss of any rights. However, 

in the event that the Board of Directors determines to take a 

specific countermeasure, the Board of Directors will disclose 

such countermeasure in a timely and appropriate manner, 

pursuant to relevant laws and stock exchange regulations. 

The term of office of directors is one year, and they are 

elected at the annual general meeting of shareholders in 

June. Matsushita’s Board of Directors intends to review the 

Large-scale Purchase Rules, as necessary, for reasons 

including amendments to applicable legislation. Any such 

review would be conducted strictly in the interests of all 

shareholders. 

For further details, please see the press release issued 

on April 28, 2008 at the Company’s Web site: 

http://panasonic.co.jp/corp/news/official.data/data.dir/

en080428-3/en080428-3.html 

Evaluation of measures by the Board of Directors 
and rationale for evaluation 
Matsushita’s current mid-term management plan was 

 formulated as a specific measure to increase the Company’s 

corporate value in a sustained manner. The ESV Plan was 

formulated from the perspective of protecting shareholder 

value, and is aimed at ensuring shareholders receive sufficient 

information to make decisions on share purchase proposals 

by allowing those responsible for the management of the 

Company, the Board of Directors, to provide their evaluation 

of any proposal, and providing the opportunity for alternative 

proposals to be submitted. 

Consequently, these measures, in accordance with 

Basic Policy, are intended to protect the interests of all the 

Company’s shareholders. 
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Significant Differences in corporate Governance Practices Between Matsushita and u.S. companies listed on 

the nySe 

Companies listed on the NYSE must comply with certain standards regarding corporate governance under Section 303A of 

the NYSE Listed Company Manual. However, listed companies that are foreign private issuers, such as Matsushita, are 

 permitted to follow home country practice in lieu of certain provisions of Section 303A. 

The following table shows the significant differences between the corporate governance practices followed by U.S. listed 

companies under Section 303A of the NYSE Listed Company Manual and those followed by Matsushita. 

The Company Law does not require independent directors on the board of directors. The Company 

Law has provisions for an “outside director,” whose definition is similar to, but not the same as, an 

independent director under the NYSE Listed Company Manual. An “outside director” is defined as a 

director of the company who does not engage or has not engaged in the execution of business of the 

company or its subsidiaries as a director of any of these corporations, and who does not serve or has 

not served as an executive officer, manager or in any other capacity as an employee of the company 

or its subsidiaries. A Japanese joint stock corporation with corporate auditors, such as Matsushita, is 

not obliged under the Company Law to have any outside directors on its board of directors. 

However, Matsushita had two (2) outside Directors as of June 26, 2008. The tasks of supervising 

the administration of the Company’s affairs are assigned not only to the Board of Directors but also 

to Corporate Auditors, as more fully described below. 

A Japanese joint stock corporation is not required to have any audit, nominating and compensation 

committees, except for a “joint stock corporation with specified committees,” which is a corporate 

governance system that may be adopted by Japanese joint stock corporations meeting certain criteria. 

Most Japanese joint stock corporations, including Matsushita, employ a corporate governance 

system based on corporate auditors. With this system, the tasks of supervising the administration of 

the company’s affairs conducted by directors are assigned not only to the board of directors but also 

to corporate auditors who are appointed at a general meeting of shareholders, and who are separate 

and independent from the board of directors. Under the Company Law, Matsushita is required to 

appoint at least three (3) Corporate Auditors, and at least half of Matsushita’s Corporate Auditors are 

required to be “Outside Corporate Auditors” who must meet additional independence requirements. 

An “outside corporate auditor” is defined as a corporate auditor who does not serve or has not 

served as a director, accounting counselor, executive officer, manager or in any other capacity as an 

employee of the company or any of its subsidiaries prior to the appointment. Under the Company 

Law, Matsushita is required to establish a Board of Corporate Auditors, comprising all the Com-

pany’s Corporate Auditors. 

As of June 26, 2008, Matsushita had five (5) Corporate Auditors, of which three (3) were Outside 

Corporate Auditors. Each Corporate Auditor of Matsushita has a four-year term. In contrast, the term 

of each Director of Matsushita is one year. Corporate Auditors are obliged to attend the meetings of 

the Board of Directors and express their opinion at the meetings if necessary. The Board of Corporate 

Auditors and Corporate Auditors have a statutory duty to supervise the administration of the 

 Company’s affairs by Directors. Each Corporate Auditor is required to prepare respectively their 

audit report of Matsushita each fiscal year and submit the reports to the Directors. Copies of the 

audit reports are included in the appendix to the convocation notice of the ordinary general meeting 

of shareholders. 

Corporate Governance Practices 
 Followed by NYSE-listed U.S. companies

Corporate Governance Practices Followed by Matsushita

A NYSE-listed U.S. company must 
have a majority of directors meeting 
the independence requirements under 
Section 303A of the NYSE Listed 
Company Manual. 

A NYSE-listed U.S. company must 
have an audit committee with responsi-
bilities described under Section 303A 
of the NYSE Listed Company Manual, 
including those imposed by Rule 10A-3 
under the U.S. Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934. The audit committee must be 
composed entirely of independent 
directors, and the audit committee 
must have at least three members and 
satisfy the requirements of Rule 10A-3 
under the U.S. Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934. 
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A Corporate Auditor also has a statutory duty to examine the financial statements of Matsushita, 

and receives auditors’ reports from an accounting auditor (a certified public accountant or an 

accounting firm). The Board of Corporate Auditors has the power to request that Matsushita’s 

 Directors submit a proposal for dismissal of an accounting auditor to a general meeting of share-

holders. The Board of Corporate Auditors also has the power to directly dismiss an accounting 

auditor under certain  conditions. Matsushita’s Directors must obtain the consent of its Board of 

Corporate Auditors in order to submit a proposal for election, dismissal and/or non-reelection of an 

accounting auditor to a general meeting of shareholders. 

With respect to the requirements of Rule 10A-3 under the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934 

relating to listed company audit committees, Matsushita relies on an exemption under that rule which 

is available to foreign private issuers with a board of corporate auditors meeting certain 

requirements. 

Under the Company Law, Matsushita’s Directors must be elected and/or dismissed at a general 

meeting of shareholders. The Board of Directors nominates Director candidates and submits a pro-

posal for election of directors to a general meeting of shareholders. The Board of Directors does not 

have the power to fill vacancies thereon. 

Matsushita’s Corporate Auditors must also be elected and/or dismissed at a general meeting of 

shareholders. Matsushita’s Directors must obtain the consent of the Board of Corporate Auditors in 

order to submit a proposal for election and/or dismissal of a Corporate Auditor to a general meeting 

of shareholders. Each of the Corporate Auditors has the right to state his/her opinion concerning 

the election, dismissal and/or resignation of any Corporate Auditor, including himself/herself, at a 

general meeting of shareholders. The Board of Corporate Auditors is also empowered to request 

Directors to submit a proposal for election of a specific person as a Corporate Auditor to a general 

meeting of shareholders. 

Under the Company Law, the maximum amounts of remunerations, including equity compensation 

such as stock options, bonuses, and other financial benefits given in consideration of performance 

of duties (collectively, the “remunerations”) of directors and corporate auditors of Japanese joint 

stock corporations, except for a “joint stock corporation with specified committees,” must be 

approved at a general meeting of shareholders. Companies must also obtain the approval at a gen-

eral meeting of shareholders to change such maximum amounts. Therefore, the remunerations of 

the directors and corporate auditors are subject to the approval of shareholders. 

The maximum total amounts of remunerations for Directors and Corporate Auditors of Matsushita 

is therefore determined by a resolution at a general meeting of shareholders, and thus remunerations 

of the Directors and Corporate Auditors of Matsushita are under the oversight of shareholders. The 

remuneration amount for each Director is determined by Matsushita’s Representative Directors who 

are delegated to make such determination by the Board of Directors, and the amount of remunera-

tion for each Corporate Auditor is determined upon discussions amongst the Corporate Auditors. 

Pursuant to the Company Law, if a Japanese joint stock corporation, such as Matsushita, desires to 

adopt an equity compensation plan under which stock acquisition rights are granted on specially 

favorable conditions (except where such rights are granted to all shareholders on a pro rata basis), 

such plan must be approved by a “special resolution” of a general meeting of shareholders that satis-

fies the prescribed quorum. (In the case of Matsushita, such quorum is one-third of the total number 

of voting rights and the approval of at least two-thirds of the voting rights represented at the meeting 

is required as provided by Matsushita’s Articles of Incorporation pursuant to the Company Law.) 

A NYSE-listed U.S. company must 
generally obtain shareholder approval 
with respect to any equity compensa-
tion plan. 

A NYSE-listed U.S. company must 
have a compensation committee with 
responsibilities described under 
 Section 303A of the NYSE Listed 
Company Manual. The compensation 
committee must be composed entirely 
of independent directors. 

A NYSE-listed U.S. company must 
have a nominating/corporate gover-
nance committee with responsibilities 
described under Section 303A of the 
NYSE Listed Company Manual. The 
nominating/corporate governance 
committee must be composed entirely 
of independent directors. 

Corporate Governance Practices 
 Followed by NYSE-listed U.S. companies

Corporate Governance Practices Followed by Matsushita
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n chairman of the Board

Masashi Makino
Director, Corporate Manufacturing Innovation 
Division

Joachim Reinhart
COO, Panasonic Europe Ltd.

Ikuo Miyamoto
Director, Corporate Management Division for 
Asia and Oceania/President, Panasonic Asia 
Pacific Pte. Ltd.

Hideo Kawasaki
President, Semiconductor Company

Shigeru Omori
Director, Corporate Industrial Marketing & 
Sales Division

n vice chairman of the Board 

Masayuki Matsushita

n President 

Fumio Ohtsubo

n executive vice Presidents

Susumu Koike 
In charge of Technology and 
Semiconductor Company

Koshi Kitadai 
Representative in Tokyo/in charge of Automotive 
Electronics Business and Industrial Sales

Toshihiro Sakamoto
President, Panasonic AVC Networks Company

n Senior Managing Directors

Takahiro Mori
In charge of Corporate Planning

Shinichi Fukushima
Representative in Kansai

Yoshihiko Yamada
Director, Corporate Management Division for 
North America/Chairman, Panasonic 
Corporation of North America

Ken Morita
Senior Vice President, Panasonic AVC Networks 
Company/Director, Visual Products and Display 
Devices Business Group

Yoshitaka Hayashi
In charge of Global Procurement and Global 
Logistics

Takae Makita
In charge of Information Systems

Kazuhiro Tsuga
President, Panasonic Automotive Systems 
Company

Takumi Kajisha
In charge of Corporate Communications 
Division

Kazunori Takami
In charge of Corporate Marketing Division for 
National Brand Home Appliances and 
Corporate Marketing Division for National Brand 
Wellness Products

n executive officers

DIRectoRS, coRPoRate auDItoRS anD executIve offIceRS
(As of June 26, 2008)

DIRECTORS

Kunio Nakamura

Shunzo Ushimaru 
In charge of Domestic Consumer Marketing, 
Electrical Supplies Sales, Project Sales, Building 
Products Sales, Advertising and Design/
Chairman, Corporate Brand Committee

ExECuTIVE OFFICERS

n Managing executive officers
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Masaaki Fujita
Senior Vice President, Panasonic AVC Networks 
Company/Director, PDP TV Business Unit, 
Visual Products and Display Devices Business 
Group, Panasonic AVC Networks Company

Yoshihisa Fukushima
In charge of Intellectual Property

Masatsugu Kondo
In charge of Alternative Energy Generation 
Technology

Naoto Noguchi
President, Matsushita Battery Industrial  
Co., Ltd.

Osamu Waki
President, Panasonic Mobile Communications 
Co., Ltd.

Toshiaki Kobayashi
President, Panasonic Electronic Devices Co., Ltd.

Joseph Taylor
COO, Panasonic Corporation of North America

Yoshiiku Miyata
Director, Corporate Management Division for 
Europe/Chairman, Panasonic Europe Ltd.

Takashi Toyama
President, Panasonic System Solutions 
Company/Director, Corporate Construction 
Business Promotion Division/in charge of 
Corporate eNet Business Division

Jun Ishii
Director, Consumer Marketing Division/ 
in charge of Corporate CS Division/ 
Chairman, Showroom Strategic Committee

n Managing Directors n Directors n Senior corporate auditors

n  Honorary chairman of the Board and 
executive advisor, Member of the Board

Yasuo Katsura
Director, Tokyo Branch

Junji Esaka
In charge of Home Appliances 
Business/President, Matsushita 
Home Appliances Company/ 
in charge of Lighting Company

Hitoshi Otsuki
In charge of Overseas Operations

Ikusaburo Kashima
In charge of Legal Affairs, Corporate 
Risk Management, Corporate 
Information Security, Corporate 
Business Ethics and Corporate 
International Affairs

Ikuo Uno

Hidetsugu Otsuru
In charge of Facility Management, 
Quality Assurance, Corporate FF 
Customer Support & Management 
Division and Environmental Affairs

Makoto Uenoyama
In charge of Accounting and Finance

Masaharu Matsushita

Kenichi Hamada
Chairman, Matsushita Group 
Auditors Meeting

Yasuo Yoshino

Ikuo Hata

Hiroyuki Takahashi

n corporate auditors

Toshiro Kisaka
Director, Corporate Management Division for 
China and Northeast Asia/Chairman,  
Panasonic Corporation of China

Yutaka Takehana
In charge of Corporate Risk Management Office, 
Corporate Information Security Division, and 
Corporate Business Ethics

Masato Tomita
Director, Corporate Management Division for 
CIS, the Middle East, and Africa

Hideaki Kawai
General Manager, Corporate Finance & IR 
Group/ in charge of Financial Operations Center

Takeshi Uenoyama
In charge of Device and Environmental 
Technology

Masayuki Oku

Masatoshi Harada
In charge of Personnel and 
General Affairs

Masahiro Seyama

Koji Itazaki
Director, Corporate Procurement Division/
Director, Corporate Global Logistics Division

Shiro Nishiguchi
Director, Corporate Marketing Division for 
Panasonic Brand

Yoshiyuki Miyabe
In charge of Digital Network & Software 
Technology

Laurent Abadie
President, Panasonic France S.A.

CORPORATE AuDITORS
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coRPoRate SocIal ReSPonSIBIlIty

Matsushita has a framework for CSR manage-

ment as depicted on the right. Anchored by our 

basic philosophy—“A company is a public entity 

of society”—the Company is actively implement-

ing multifarious measures, such as corporate 

citizenship activities and promoting environmental 

management, to fulfill four social responsibilities: 

Creating valuable products and services, 

Coexistence with the global environment, 

Contributing to a sound society, and Creating 

an excellent workplace.

Under this framework, the Company will 

continue weaving CSR management into the 

fabric of the organization in order to help create a 

sustainable society in all regions around the world. 

Since its establishment, Matsushita has sought to contribute to society 

through its business activities under its basic philosophy of contributing 

to society as a public entity. Our Basic Management Objective, which 

expresses concisely the objectives of the Company’s businesses and 

their raison d’etre forms the basis of all management activities.

Today, as society, economy and industry undergo significant changes 

in various aspects, the Company must continue to carve out a new 

future, guided by our basic philosophy, in order to remain a company that 

can contribute to the progress and development of society. 

Basic Management Objective

“Recognizing our responsibilities as industrialists, we will devote 

 ourselves to the progress and development of society and the well-

being of people through our business activities, thereby enhancing the 

quality of life throughout the world.”

Basic Philosophy

Promoting CSR Management

Groupwide CSR Promotion Framework

Contributing to Society Through our Business Activities as  
an Advanced CSR Company

Matsushita has been selected as a component 
in global SRI* indexes and register.

* SRI: Socially Responsible Investment

Open dialogue with 
society

Greater transparency/
accountability

“a company is a public entity of society”

Promoting environmental management

Enforcement of compliance

Strengthening information security

Realizing a sustainable society

environmental perspective
Coexistence with the global environment

Social perspective
Realization of a ubiquitous networking society

Customers

Global procurement Corporate citizenship 
activities

Human rights and OHS
Quality/CS/ 

Universal Design

Practice cSR management

Creating valuable 
products and services

Coexistence with the 
global environment

Creating an excellent 
workplace

Contributing to a 
sound society

corporate governance, internal controls and risk management

Business partners

Shareholders/ 
Investors

Governments/
Communities 
NPOs/NGOs

Employees

n  CO2 emissions 
300,000 tons reduction 
(compared with fiscal 2007)

a company is a public entity of society

Sustainable and effective 
management

(Excellence in manufacturing)
Contributing to a sustainable society

(Excellence in CSR)

Contract with Society

n Sales: 10 trillion yen

n ROE 10%
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Matsushita is engaging in corporate citizenship activities focused on three key areas—
Children, the Environment and the Community—based on the action principles of 
 “education and coexistence.” Going beyond activities conducted by the Company alone, 
Matsushita is vigorously promoting various initiatives such as collaborations with NPOs 
and NGOs, and support for volunteer activities by its employees. 

  environment  

n Yellow Sea Ecoregion Support Project 
Together with the World Wide Fund for Nature (WWF), one of the world’s largest environ-
mental NGOs, the Company launched specific activities as part of the Yellow Sea Ecore-
gion Support Project, which aims to conserve and effectively manage the marine 
ecosystem of the Yellow Sea. 

n Planting Trees in Vietnam—“One Tree for One Home Appliance”
Matsushita conducted a campaign whereby it planted one tree in Vietnam for every 
eligible eco product purchased by customers in Japan. In total, the Company planted 
approximately 500,000 trees in Vietnam with the support of customers.

n Using Waste Materials to Teach Arts and Crafts in the U.K.
In the U.K, the Company has so far donated roughly 40 tons of clean waste materials to 
schools for use in arts and crafts activities. Approximately 250,000 schoolchildren have 
demonstrated their creativity and enjoyed making things with the materials provided by 
this program, which has won various recycling-related awards. 

  children  

n Delivering Our Expertise With the “Class Delivery Service”
Under this initiative, employees visit schools and give classes about our approach to 
manufacturing, environmental protection activities and other subjects. 

n Panasonic Academic Challenge
Matsushita is supporting, as a title sponsor, the Panasonic Academic Challenge, a 
national academic competition in which teams of high school students from across the 
U.S. compete for scholarships and prizes by answering challenging questions on math-
ematics, science and other subjects. 

n Panasonic Kids School
Panasonic Kids School holds various hands-on events throughout Japan with the phi-
losophy that “if the kids are having fun, the future will be bright.” It runs various programs. 

  community  

n Making Human-friendly Products—Exhibiting at Sight World 2007
Matsushita exhibited at Sight World 2007, a comprehensive exhibition for people with 
visual impairments. The Company showcased a range of products grounded on Universal 
Design principles, such as “Monoshiri Talk,” an RF voice recorder/IC tag reader that talks 
to blind people, telling them what they have in their hands; objects identify themselves with 
voice messages.

n Supporting “Lifeline Express” in China
Matsushita supports “Lifeline Express,” a mobile eye hospital train that provides free 
surgery for people suffering from cataract ailments in rural China who cannot afford treat-
ment. The Company received the Equity Contribution Merit Award from China’s Lifeline 
Express Fund for our support.

  other  

n Natural Disaster Relief
In addition to providing assistance following the Noto Peninsula Earthquake in Japan, the 
Company supported relief efforts in the aftermath of the Niigata Chuetsu Earthquake in 
Japan, cyclone damage in Myanmar and the massive earthquake in Sichuang, China.

n Scholarship Program—Panasonic Scholarship
Matsushita provides financial support to international exchange students from Asian coun-
tries studying for master’s degrees at Japanese universities. The aim of the scholarship 
program is to nurture future leaders of Asia and encourage amity between Japan and its 
Asian neighbors.

For more information about CSR 
activities, please refer to the 
following websites:

Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) 
http://panasonic.net/csr/

Environmental Activities 
http://panasonic.net/eco/

Corporate Citizenship Activities 
http://panasonic.net/citizenship/

Joint declaration signing ceremony for the 
Yellow Sea Ecoregion Support Project

Examples of Corporate Citizenship Activities

Employees in action at one of their school 
visits as part of the “Class Delivery Service” 
program 

Action Principles

Education and Coexistence

Children Environment Community
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The Matsushita Group has been advocating the achievement of 

steady growth with profitability as an important theme in the GP3 

mid-term management plan, which aims to put Matsushita in a 

position to challenge for global excellence. It has now added the 

reduction of environmental burden in all areas of its business 

activities to the plan, and will promote these two themes in parallel.

With growing public interest in environmental problems in 

recent years, expectations placed on companies are becoming 

greater. Under these conditions, the Matsushita Group, whose basic 

management philosophy is rooted in a commitment to contribute to the progress and development of 

society, is now accelerating environmental management.

The Company is aiming to reduce global CO2 emissions in manufacturing activities by 300,000 tons 

in total in fiscal 2010, compared with fiscal 2007, in addition to pursuing a basic unit* goal. 

* Basic unit = Volume of CO2 emissions divided by consolidated sales or production volume.

“eco ideas” Strategy
SPecIal featuRe on tHe envIRonMent

“eco ideas” Declaration
The Matsushita Group is implementing its “eco ideas” Decla-
ration, which is centered on three priority initiatives, as the 
pillar of its environmental management. 

Accelerate Environmental Sustainability Management

Matsushita leads the way with “eco ideas”

*  “Manufacturing” stands for the entire business operations to deliver the value to 
the customers, such as R&D, procurement, manufacturing, sales, logistics, 
recycling, administration and others. 

For further details, please refer to “Environmental Data Book 2008” 
(http://panasonic.net/eco/env_data/back_number/). 

GP3 Plan
Global Progress
Global Profit
Global Panasonic

Becoming a Challenger to  
Achieve Global Excellence

Steady 
Growth with 
Profitability

Reduce environmental 
impact in all business 
activities

Deconstruction and creation

Global Excellence

Matsushita in 2009

Matsushita in 2007

Key issues
•	Rapidly	implement	measures	

to prevent global warming
•	Globally	promote	environ-

mental sustainability 
management

Clean FactoriesGreen Products

Social  
Contribution  
(Biodiversity 

Protection, etc.)

Love the Earth  
Citizens’ Campaign

Environmental 
Communication

Green  
Logistics

Green 
Marketing

Product 
Recycling

Value for a  
New Lifestyle

(For One 
Household)

Coexistence  
with the Global 

Environment

Manufac- 
  turing*

Products

Everybody, Everywhere

Human Resources, Environmental Risk Management
Environmental Sustainability Management and 
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Fluorescent light fixture with the 
brightness of two conventional 
lamps in only one lamp

“eco ideas” Declaration
With three “eco ideas” in terms of energy-efficient products, manufacturing and extending environmental activities, 

 Matsushita is striving to promote environmental activities in order to contribute to coexistence with the global environment.

Household Fuel Cell  
Cogeneration System

Inverter turbo chiller 

Example 1: Fluorescent Light Fixture—Environmentally-conscious Lighting Fixture, “W Eco”
This 40W lighting fixture series combines a newly developed high-power 63W lamp and special inverter 
to achieve the brightness of two conventional 40W lamps with only one lamp. Furthermore, the lamp 
lasts much longer, reducing the number of lamps used to one-third in 10 years. Moreover, the special 
inverter boosts an initial illuminance control function to prevent initial excess brightness, resulting in an 
approximate 35% decrease in energy consumption, while maintaining a certain fixed level of brightness. 
These environmental qualities earned the Minister Prize of Economy, Trade and Industry at the 18th 
Energy Conservation Grand Prize in fiscal 2008.

Example 2: Household Fuel Cell Cogeneration System
Household fuel cell systems use electricity and heat generated from the chemical reaction of hydrogen 
and oxygen to provide energy for households. While exhaust heat given off during generation at power 
plants cannot be used effectively, heat generated by household fuel cells can be used to boil water. 
These fuel cells are therefore attracting attention as new products that can make a significant contribu-
tion to efficient energy use and to the reduction of CO2 emissions from households. 

In April 2008, Matsushita established a mass-production system with the aim of launching sales to 
the general public in fiscal 2010. Matsushita has developed a cogeneration system that at this point 
features both the world’s highest power-generating efficiency of more than 38% in the practical use 
range and an expected lifetime of over 10 years. Thanks to these achievements, the system has cut 
CO2 emissions by 12%* compared with energy sources used in ordinary homes.  

As of March 31, 2008, there were approximately 300 household fuel cell systems in operation. The 
first commercial household fuel cell system was installed in the Prime Minister’s Official Residence in 
February 2005.

*  Matsushita estimate, CO2 emission coefficient is the average level for all conventional energy sources in Japan. 
The reduction rate is 37% in terms of the New Energy Foundation’s estimate (CO2 emission coefficient from 
thermal power generation).

Example 1: Reducing CO2 Emissions Via Innovations in Energy Supply Systems
The Tonami Plant of Matsushita’s Semiconductor Company in Japan consumes large amounts of 
energy in its 24-hour, year-round operations. For this reason, the plant has endeavored to achieve 
highly efficient energy use through the installation of an LPG-fueled cogeneration system when it was 
first built. However, due to a drop in efficiency as the equipment has aged over many years of use, the 
plant undertook a fundamental review of its energy supply system. The main initiatives were to develop 
and install a new system that provides instant power in the event of a power failure and introduce a 
highly efficient inverter turbo chiller. The adoption of these new systems has ensured a stable supply of 
electricity and also yielded an annual 26,000-ton reduction in CO2 emissions. These initiatives were 
recognized with the fiscal 2008 Director General Prize of Agency of Natural Resources and Energy at 
Awarding of Successful Case of Energy Conservation in Factory & Building. 

“eco ideas” for Products We will produce energy-efficient products. 
Matsushita will increase the number of products that lead the industry in terms of energy efficiency  
while eliminating products with lower energy efficiency than the industry average.

“eco ideas” for Manufacturing We will reduce CO2 emissions 
Matsushita will reduce CO2 emissions in all manufacturing processes, extending from product planning  
through  production, sales and recycling. 
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Eco activity declaration signature 
collection campaign in China

Children making their own water 
canteens with vacuum heat 
insulating materials

Award ceremony for National 
Environment-Friendly Enterprise 
honor

Example 2: Awarded National Environment-Friendly Enterprise Status in China
China-based Panasonic Wanbao Compressor (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. is engaged in initiatives to reduce 
the environmental impact at its plants, with measures including reducing lead, NOx and sulfur dioxide 
emissions, reusing scrap iron to reduce steel consumption, and introducing energy-efficient facilities. As 
a result of these activities, it has been recognized as an industry leader in China in terms of overall energy 
efficiency, water-use efficiency, pollutant emissions, and waste recycling. It has received the honor of 
National Environment-Friendly Enterprise by the State Environment Protection Administration of China. 

Example 3: Building Management Based on Concept of Energy Tuning
The head office building of Matsushita Electric Works, Ltd. (MEW) in Shiodome, Tokyo, strives to continu-
ously fine-tune and improve the control and operation of the building’s lighting and air-conditioning as well 
as maintain the environment, based on detailed usage data for the purposes of energy-conservation, a 
concept the company calls energy tuning.* MEW has conducted energy-conservation promotion activi-
ties supported by operators and in-house and external experts, and operated facilities more efficiently by 
employing a common “visualization” analysis tool. As a result, it has achieved the significant benefits of 
cutting energy costs by an aggregate of ¥118 million and reducing energy consumption by 18.4%, with 
cumulative investments of ¥39 million over three years.

*  Energy consumption is minimized by adjusting air-conditioning, lighting facilities, equipment, etc. in advance, in 
tune with changes in how the building is used.

Example 1: Environmental Education Program
The “eco-ideas” Factory Biwako, located in the Kusatsu area of Shiga Prefecture, Japan, is engaged in 
environmental and community activities in conjunction with industry, academia, the local community, 
and government. This factory runs eco-factory tours that teach visitors about energy-saving technolo-
gies and enhance their environmental awareness. The eco-factory tour conducted by Matsushita Home 
Appliances Company in March 2008 hosted approximately 70 local elementary school students, who 
made their own water canteens with vacuum heat insulating materials, among other activities.

Example 2: The Japanese-Chinese Joint “CO2 Reduction Eco Challenge by 100,000 Employees!”
As part of the China Eco Project, a campaign called The Japanese-Chinese Joint “CO2 Reduction Eco 
Challenge by 100,000 Employees!” was held in July 2007. A total of 130,000 employees in China and 
Japan, over the goal of 100,000, participated in weeklong energy-conserving activities in the course 
of their daily lives and reduced CO2 emissions by approximately 180 tons. This is equivalent to the 
amount of CO2 absorbed annually by approximately 13,000 cedar trees.*

*  Reference: Measures of Green Sink for Global Warming Prevention, issued by the Forestry Agency and the Ministry 
of the Environment of Japan. 

Example 3: “Declaration of Becoming an Environmentally Contributing Company in China”*
As a duty of a corporation with 80 companies in China, Matsushita is pushing ahead with efforts to 
reduce energy usage in production activities, as well as in employees’ lifestyles. In September 2007, 
Matsushita announced its Declaration of Becoming an Environmentally Contributing Company in China 
at the Matsushita Group Environmental Forum 2007 in Beijing, laying out a specific activities plan and 
targets for products, factories and employees. Through these activities, Matsushita will strengthen 
environmental management on all fronts over the next three years to become an environmentally 
advanced company in China. 

* “Declaration of Becoming an Environmentally Contributing Company in China”
 1. Matsushita will make all its products certified “Green Products.”
 2. Matsushita will transform all its factories into “Clean Factories.”
 3. The employees at all our Chinese Matsushita Group companies will participate in environmental activities.

“eco ideas” for everybody, everywhere
We will encourage the spread of environmental activities throughout the world.
Matsushita will implement initiatives to expand eco-friendly activities in local communities and the global  
community, based on the collective wisdom not only of its employees but also people around the world.
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RISK factoRS

Risks Related to economic conditions

Weakness in Japanese and global economies may cause 
reduced demand for Matsushita’s products
Demand for Matsushita’s products and services may be affected 
by general economic trends in the countries or regions in which 
Matsushita’s products and services are sold. Economic down-
turns and resulting declines in demand in Matsushita’s major 
markets worldwide may thus adversely affect the Company’s 
business, operating results and financial condition.

Currency exchange rate fluctuations may adversely affect 
Matsushita’s operating results
Foreign exchange rate fluctuations may adversely affect 
 Matsushita’s business, operating results and financial condition, 
because its international business transactions and costs and 
prices of its products and services in overseas countries are 
affected by foreign exchange rate changes. In addition, foreign 
exchange rate changes can also affect the yen value of 
 Matsushita’s investments in overseas assets and liabilities 
because Matsushita’s consolidated financial statements are 
presented in Japanese yen. Generally, an appreciation of the 
yen against other major currencies such as the U.S. dollar and 
the euro may adversely affect Matsushita’s operating results. 
Meanwhile, a depreciation of the yen against the aforemen-
tioned major currencies may have a favorable impact on 
Matsushita’s operating results.

Interest rate fluctuations may adversely affect Matsushita’s 
financial condition, etc.
Matsushita is exposed to interest rate fluctuation risks which 
may affect the Company’s operational costs, interest expenses, 
interest income and the value of financial assets and liabilities. 
Accordingly, interest rate fluctuations may adversely affect the 
Company’s business, operating results and financial condition.

Decreases in the value of Japanese stocks may adversely 
affect Matsushita’s financial results
Matsushita holds mostly Japanese stocks as part of its invest-
ment securities. The value of these stocks may drop substantially 
due to economic conditions or other factors, resulting in losses 

from valuation declines of investment securities. Such decreases 
in the value of stocks may occur, causing adverse effects to 
Matsushita’s operating results and financial condition. The 
decrease in the value of Japanese stocks may also reduce 
stockholders’ equity on the balance sheet, as unrealized holding 
gains (losses) of available-for-sale securities are included as part 
of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

Risks Related to Matsushita’s Business

Competition in the industry may adversely affect 
Matsushita’s ability to maintain profitability
Matsushita develops, produces and sells a broad range of 
products and therefore faces many different types of competi-
tors, from large international companies to relatively small, 
rapidly growing, and highly specialized organizations. 
Matsushita may choose not to fund or invest in one or more of 
its businesses to the same degree as its competitors in those 
businesses do, or it may not be able to do so in a timely 
manner or even at all. These competitors may have greater 
financial, technological, and marketing resources than 
Matsushita in the respective businesses in which they compete.

Rapid declines in product prices may adversely affect 
Matsushita’s financial condition
Matsushita’s business is subject to intense price competition 
worldwide, which makes it difficult for the Company to deter-
mine product prices and maintain adequate profits. Such inten-
sified price competition may adversely affect Matsushita’s 
profits, especially in terms of possible decreases in demand. 
For the year ending March 31, 2009, Matsushita expects that 
its product prices in consumer digital electronics and many 
other business areas will continue to decline, as has been the 
case in recent years.

Matsushita’s business is, and will continue to be,  
subject to risks generally associated with international 
business operations
One of Matsushita’s business strategies is business expansion 
in overseas markets. In many of these markets, Matsushita may 
face risks generally associated with international manufacturing 

Once a year, Matsushita implements a Groupwide risk assessment survey to identify potential risks in an integrated 
and comprehensive manner. By identifying, assessing, evaluating and prioritizing these risks,  Matsushita specifies 
risks related to the Corporate Headquarters, business domain companies and Group affiliates, takes countermea-
sures that correspond to the materiality of each risk, and seeks continuous improvements through the monitoring 
of the progress of such countermeasures. Primarily because of the business areas and geographical areas where 
it operates, and the highly competitive nature of the industry to which it belongs, Matsushita is exposed to a 
variety of risks and uncertainties in conducting its businesses, including, but not limited to, the following. These 
risks may adversely affect Matsushita’s business, operating results and financial condition. This section includes 
forward-looking statements and future expectations as of the date of this annual report.
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and other business operations, such as political instability, 
cultural and religious differences, the spread of infectious dis-
eases and labor relations, as well as economic uncertainty and 
foreign currency exchange risks. Matsushita may also face 
barriers in commercial and business customs in foreign coun-
tries, including difficulties in timely collection of accounts receiv-
able or in building and expanding relationships with customers, 
subcontractors or parts suppliers. Matsushita may also experi-
ence various political, legal or other restrictions in investment, 
trade, manufacturing, labor or other aspects of operations, 
including restrictions on foreign investment or the repatriation of 
profits on invested capital, nationalization of local industry, 
changes in export or import restrictions or foreign exchange 
controls, and changes in the tax system or the rate of taxation 
in countries where Matsushita operates businesses. With 
respect to products exported overseas, tariffs, other barriers or 
shipping costs may make Matsushita’s products less competi-
tive in terms of price. Expanding its overseas business may 
require significant investments long before Matsushita realizes 
returns on such investments, and increased investments may 
result in expenses growing at a faster rate than revenues.

Matsushita may not be able to keep pace with technologi-
cal changes and develop new products or services in a 
timely manner to remain competitive
Matsushita may fail to introduce new products or services in 
response to technological changes in a timely manner. Some of 
Matsushita’s core businesses, such as consumer digital elec-
tronics and key components and devices, are concentrated in 
industries where technological innovation is the central com-
petitive factor. Matsushita continuously faces the challenge of 
developing and introducing viable and innovative new products. 
Matsushita must predict with reasonable accuracy both future 
demand and new technologies that will be available to meet 
such demand. If Matsushita fails to do so, it will not be able to 
compete in new markets.

Matsushita may not be able to develop product formats 
that can prevail as de facto standards
Matsushita has been forming alliances and partnerships with 
other major manufacturers to strengthen technologies and the 
development of product formats, such as next-generation home 
and mobile networking products, data storage devices, and 
software systems. Despite these efforts, Matsushita’s competi-
tors may succeed in developing de facto standards for future 
products before Matsushita can. In such cases, the Company’s 
competitive position, business, operating results and financial 
condition could be adversely affected.

Matsushita may not be able to successfully recruit and 
retain skilled employees, particularly scientific, technical 
and management professionals
Matsushita’s future success depends largely on its ability to 
attract and retain certain key personnel, including scientific, 
technical and management professionals. Matsushita 

anticipates that it will need to hire additional skilled personnel 
in all areas of its business. Industry demand for such employ-
ees, however, exceeds the number of personnel available, and 
the competition for attracting and retaining these employees is 
intense. Because of this intense competition for skilled 
employees, Matsushita may be unable to retain its existing 
personnel or attract additional qualified employees to keep 
up with future business needs. If this should happen, 
Matsushita’s business, operating results and financial condi-
tion could be adversely affected.

Alliances with, and strategic investments in, third parties 
undertaken by Matsushita may not produce positive results
Matsushita develops its business by forming alliances or joint 
ventures with, and making strategic investments in, other 
 companies, including investments in start-up companies. 
Furthermore, the strategic importance of partnering with third 
parties is increasing. In some cases, such partnerships are 
crucial to Matsushita’s goal of introducing new products and 
services, but Matsushita may not be able to successfully 
 collaborate or achieve expected synergies with its partners. 
Matsushita does not, however, control these partners, who may 
make decisions regarding their business undertakings with 
Matsushita that may be contrary to Matsushita’s interests. In 
addition, if these partners change their business strategies, 
Matsushita may fail to maintain these partnerships.

Matsushita is dependent on the ability of third parties to 
deliver parts, components and services in adequate quality 
and quantity in a timely manner, and at a reasonable price
Matsushita’s manufacturing operations depend on obtaining 
raw materials, parts and components, equipment and other 
supplies including services from reliable suppliers in adequate 
quality and quantity in a timely manner. It may be difficult for 
Matsushita to substitute one supplier for another, increase the 
number of suppliers or change one component for another in a 
timely manner or at all due to the interruption of supply or 
increased industry demand. This may adversely affect the 
Matsushita Group’s operations. Although Matsushita decides 
purchase prices by contract, the prices of raw materials includ-
ing oil, parts and components, may increase due to changes in 
supply and demand. Some components are only available from 
a limited number of suppliers, which also may adversely affect 
Matsushita’s business, operating results and financial condition.

Matsushita is exposed to the risk that its customers may 
encounter financial difficulties
Many of Matsushita’s customers purchase products and ser-
vices from Matsushita on payment terms that do not provide for 
immediate payment. If customers from whom Matsushita has 
substantial accounts receivable encounter financial difficulties 
and are unable to make payments on time, Matsushita’s busi-
ness, operating results and financial condition could be 
adversely affected.
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Risks Related to Matsushita’s Management Plans

Matsushita is implementing its mid-term management plan 
called GP3 (announced on January 10, 2007), which will run 
from fiscal 2008 to fiscal 2010. Under this plan, Matsushita 
aims to achieve sales of ¥10 trillion and ROE of 10% in fiscal 
2010 by achieving steady growth with profitability. Furthermore, 
in line with its twin corporate visions under this plan of “contrib-
uting to realizing a ubiquitous networking society” and “coexis-
tence with the global environment,” Matsushita aims to earn the 
support of all its stakeholders worldwide by sustaining growth 
through continued innovation and ensuring sound business 
activities on a global basis. Another way is by setting a target of 
reducing total global CO2 emissions during the plan by 300,000 
tons compared with fiscal 2007 at Matsushita’s manufacturing 
operations worldwide through environmental initiatives. Due 
mainly to the various risk factors described in this  section, 
Matsushita may not be successful in achieving all the goals set 
out in its mid-term management plan. In addition, Matsushita 
may not be able to improve efficiency or realize growth through 
these measures due to the increased costs arising from unex-
pected additional reorganization or restructuring, improper 
 allocation of operational resources or other unpredictable fac-
tors. Also, Matsushita announced on April 28, 2008, its annual 
forecast and major initiatives for the year ending March 31, 
2009. However, Matsushita may not be successful in achieving 
all the targets or in realizing the expected benefits because of 
various external and internal factors.

Risks Related to legal Restrictions and litigations

Matsushita may be subject to product liability or 
 warranty claims that could result in significant direct or 
indirect costs
The occurrence of defects in Matsushita products could make 
Matsushita liable for damages not covered by product and 
completed operation liability insurance, whereby the Company 
could incur significant expenses. Due to negative publicity 
concerning these problems, Matsushita’s business, operating 
results and financial condition may be adversely affected.

Matsushita may fail to protect its proprietary intellectual prop-
erties, or face claims of intellectual property infringement by a 
third party, and may lose its intellectual property rights on key 
technologies or be liable for significant damages
Matsushita’s success depends on its ability to obtain intellectual 
property rights covering its products and product design. 
Patents may not be granted or may not be of sufficient scope 
or force to provide Matsushita with adequate protection or 
commercial advantage. In addition, effective copyright and 
trade secret protections may be unavailable or limited in some 
countries in which Matsushita operates. Competitors or other 
third parties may also develop technologies that are protected 
by patents and other intellectual property rights, which make 
such technologies unavailable or available only on terms 

unfavorable to Matsushita. The Company obtains licenses for 
intellectual property rights from other parties; however, such 
licenses may not be available at all or on acceptable terms in 
the future. Litigation may also be necessary to enforce 
Matsushita’s intellectual property rights or to defend against 
intellectual property infringement claims brought against 
Matsushita by third parties. In such cases, Matsushita may 
incur significant expenses for such lawsuits. Furthermore, 
Matsushita may be prohibited from using certain important 
technologies or liable for damages in cases of admitted viola-
tions of intellectual property rights of others.

Changes in accounting standards and tax systems may 
adversely affect Matsushita’s financial results and condition
Introduction of new accounting standards or tax systems, or 
changes thereof, which Matsushita cannot predict, may have 
a material adverse effect on the Company’s operating results 
and financial condition. In addition, if tax authorities have 
different opinions from Matsushita on the Company’s tax 
declarations, Matsushita may need to make larger tax pay-
ments than estimated.

Payments or compensation related to environmental 
 regulations or issues may adversely affect Matsushita’s 
business, operating results and financial condition
Matsushita is subject to environmental regulations such as 
those relating to air pollution, water pollution, elimination of 
hazardous substances, waste management, product recycling, 
and soil and groundwater contamination, and may be held 
responsible for certain related payments or compensation. 
Furthermore, if these regulations become stricter and an addi-
tional duty of eliminating the use of environmentally hazardous 
materials is imposed, or if the Company determines that it is 
necessary and appropriate, from the viewpoint of corporate 
social responsibility, to respond to environmental issues, the 
payment of penalties for the violation of these regulations or 
voluntary payment of compensation for consolation to parties 
affected by such issues may adversely affect Matsushita’s 
business, operating results and financial condition.

Leaks of confidential information may adversely affect 
Matsushita’s business
In the normal course of business, Matsushita holds confidential 
information mainly about customers regarding credit worthi-
ness and other information, as well as confidential information 
about companies and other third parties. Such information 
may be leaked due to an accident or other inevitable cause, 
and any material leakage of confidential information may result 
in significant expense for related lawsuits and adversely affect 
Matsushita’s business and image. Moreover, there is a risk that 
Matsushita’s trade secrets may be leaked by illegal conduct or 
by mere negligence of external parties, etc. If such is the case, 
Matsushita’s business, operating results and financial condition 
may be adversely affected.
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Governmental laws and regulations may limit Matsushita’s 
activities or increase its operating costs
Matsushita is subject to governmental regulations in Japan and 
other countries in which it conducts its business, including 
governmental approvals required for conducting business and 
investments, laws and regulations governing the telecommuni-
cations businesses and electric product safety, national secu-
rity-related laws and regulations and export/import laws and 
regulations, as well as commercial, antitrust, patent, product 
liability, environmental laws and regulations, consumer protec-
tion, financial and business taxation laws and regulations, and 
internal control regulations due to the implementation of stricter 
laws and regulations and stricter interpretations.

However, to the extent that Matsushita cannot comply with 
these laws and regulations from technical and economic per-
spectives, or if they become stricter and Matsushita determines 
that it would not be economical to continue to comply with 
them, Matsushita would need to limit its activities in the affected 
business areas. In addition, these laws and regulations could 
increase Matsushita’s operating costs.

Risks Related to Disasters or unpredictable events

Matsushita’s facilities and information systems could be 
damaged as a result of disasters or unpredictable events, 
which could have an adverse effect on its business 
operations
Matsushita’s headquarters and major facilities including manu-
facturing plants, sales offices and research and development 
centers are located in Japan. Matsushita also operates pro-
curement, manufacturing, logistics, sales and research and 
development facilities all over the world. If major disasters such 
as earthquakes, fires, floods, wars, terrorist attacks, computer 
viruses or other events occur, or Matsushita’s information 
system or communications network breaks down or operates 
improperly as a result of such events, Matsushita’s facilities may 
be seriously damaged, or the Company may have to stop or 
delay production and shipment. Matsushita may incur 
expenses relating to such damages.

other Risks

External economic conditions may adversely affect 
Matsushita’s pension plans
Matsushita has contributory, funded benefit pension plans cov-
ering substantially all employees in Japan who meet eligibility 
requirements. A decline in interest rates may cause a decrease 
in the discount rate on benefit obligations. A decrease in the 
value of stocks may also affect the return on plan assets. As a 
result, the actuarial loss may increase, leading to an increase in 
future net periodic benefit costs of these pension plans.

Some long-lived assets may not produce adequate returns
Matsushita has many long-lived assets, such as plant, property 
and equipment, and goodwill, that generate returns. The 

Company periodically reviews the recorded value of its long-
lived assets to determine if the future cash flows to be derived 
from these properties will be sufficient to recover the remaining 
recorded asset values. If these long-lived assets do not gener-
ate sufficient cash flows, impairment losses will have to be 
recognized, adversely affecting Matsushita’s results of opera-
tions and financial condition.

Realizability of deferred tax assets and uncertain tax posi-
tions may increase Matsushita’s provision for income tax
In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets and uncer-
tain tax positions based on the expected future generation of 
taxable income or assessed sustainability of uncertain tax 
positions, Matsushita considers whether it is more likely than 
not that any portion or all of the deferred tax assets or recog-
nized tax position benefit will not be realized. If Matsushita 
determines that temporary differences and loss carryforwards 
or recognized tax benefits cannot be realized upon the genera-
tion of future taxable income during the deductible periods due 
to deteriorating business conditions or tax position benefits 
may not be realized upon settlement, valuation allowance 
against deferred tax assets or unrecognized tax benefit 
reserves could be recognized and Matsushita’s provision for 
income tax may increase.

Financial results and condition of associated companies 
may adversely affect Matsushita’s operating results and 
financial condition
Matsushita holds equities of several associated companies. 
Matsushita can exercise influence over operating and financing 
policies of these companies. However, Matsushita does not 
have the right to make decisions for them since the companies 
operate independently. Some companies may record
losses. If these associated companies do not generate profits, 
Matsushita’s business results and financial condition may be 
adversely affected.

American Depositary Share (ADS) holders have fewer 
rights than shareholders and may not be able to enforce 
judgments based on U.S. securities laws
The rights of shareholders under Japanese law to take actions, 
including exercising their voting rights, receiving dividends and 
distributions, bringing derivative actions, examining Matsushita’s 
accounting books and records, and exercising appraisal rights 
are available only to shareholders of record. Because the depos-
itary, through its nominee, is the record holder of the shares 
underlying the ADSs, only the depositary can exercise those 
rights in connection with the deposited shares. The depositary 
will make efforts to exercise their voting rights underlying ADSs 
in accordance with the instructions of ADS holders and will pay 
the dividends and distributions collected from Matsushita. 
However, ADS holders will not be able to bring a derivative 
action, examine Matsushita’s accounting books and records, or 
exercise appraisal rights through the depositary.

This section was copied from the Company’s latest Form 20-F.
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Financial Review

Sales
Consolidated group sales for fiscal 2008 amounted to 
9,069 billion yen, mostly the same level from 9,108 billion 
yen in the previous fiscal year. Explaining fiscal 2008 
results, the Company cited sales gains in all business 
segments except JVC (Victor Company of Japan, Ltd. 
and its subsidiaries), due mainly to favorable sales in 
digital AV products and white goods. (For further details, 
see “Results of Operations by Business Segment” of this 
section.) The electronics industry in the fiscal year ended 
March 31, 2008 faced severe business conditions in 
Japan and overseas, due mainly to ever-rising prices for 
crude oil and other raw materials, and continued price 
declines caused by continuously intensifying global com-
petition, mainly in digital products. Under these circum-
stances, the Matsushita Group worked to accelerate 
growth strategies in fiscal 2008, the first year of the new 
three-year mid-term management plan GP3. Specifically, 
Matsushita continued to strengthen V-products, which 
are the core of its growth strategies and make a signifi-
cant contribution to overall business results in order to 
boost market shares. With regard to the strategic plasma 
display panel (PDP) business, Matsushita started opera-
tion of its fourth domestic PDP plant in June 2007, and 
began construction of its fifth in November 2007. In 
addition, Matsushita implemented initiatives to achieve 
double-digit growth in overseas sales of consumer prod-
ucts. To accelerate growth in emerging markets as well 
as the U.S. and Europe, the Company established a 
framework to boost sales in Russia, Brazil and India, and 
also promoted its cutting-edge products. These initiatives 
contributed to an increase in sales, as mentioned above.

Domestic sales amounted to 4,545 billion yen, down 
2% from 4,617 billion yen a year ago. Although favorable 
sales were recorded mainly in digital AV products as a 
result of a significant contribution of V-products, this 
result is due primarily to the effects of JVC as mentioned 
above. Overseas sales increased 1% to 4,524 billion 
yen, from 4,492 billion yen in fiscal 2007, ended March 
31, 2007. Despite the effects of JVC, favorable sales in 
all business segments except JVC led to an increase in 
overseas sales.

Cost of Sales and Selling, General and 
 Administrative Expenses
In fiscal 2008, cost of sales amounted to 6,377 billion 
yen, mostly the same level from the previous year, while 
net sales remained the same level. Negative effects such 
as rising prices for raw materials were offset mainly as a 
result of the rationalization of materials costs. Selling, 
general and administrative expenses were down 4% to 
2,172 billion yen compared to the previous year, due 
mainly to comprehensive cost reduction efforts.

Interest Income, Dividends Received and  
Other Income
In fiscal 2008, interest income increased 12% to 34 bil-
lion yen, and dividends received increased 36% to 10 
billion yen. In other income, in addition to gains on sales 
of tangible fixed assets, the Company recorded 15 billion 
yen gain on the sale of the investments.

Interest Expense, Goodwill Impairment and  
Other Deductions
Interest expense decreased 3% to 20 billion yen, owing 
primarily to a reduction in short-term borrowings. In other 
deductions, compared with 20 billion yen of restructuring 
charges in fiscal 2007, the Company incurred 40 billion 
yen including 33 billion yen as expenses associated with 
the implementation of early retirement programs, 32 
billion yen as write-down of investment securities, and 
45 billion yen as other impairment losses on long-lived 
assets related to fixed assets, compared with the previ-
ous year’s 49 billion yen including 19 billion yen as other 
impairment losses on long-lived assets and a loss of 30 
billion yen as goodwill impairment. (For further details, 
see Notes 3, 4, 6, 7, and 14 of the Notes to Consoli-
dated Financial Statements.)

Income before Income Taxes
As a result of the above-mentioned factors, income 
before income taxes for fiscal 2008 decreased 1% to 
435 billion yen, compared with 439 billion yen in fiscal 
2007, while the ratio to net sales were 4.8%, the same 
level from the previous year.

consolidated Sales and earnings Results
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Provision for Income Taxes
Provision for income taxes for fiscal 2008 amounted to 
115 billion yen, a significant improvement compared with 
192 billion yen in the previous year. The effective tax rate 
to income before income taxes declined to 26.3%, down 
17.4% from 43.7% a year ago. This improvement was 
due mainly to a strategic merger of domestic device 
businesses in order to reinforce manufacturing competi-
tiveness such as strengthening of cost competitiveness 
by seeking streamlining and efficiency of operations 
which consequently resulted in the utilization of net 
 operating loss carryforwards to which a deferred tax 
asset valuation allowance was provided for in previous 
years, an improvement in general profitability of certain 
subsidiaries which resulted in the reversal of a portion of 
deferred tax valuation allowance as improvement in 
future profitability is projected to allow for the utilization 
of net operating carryforwards in these subsidiaries, and 
a decrease in tax expenses associated with tax benefits 
generated through certain business reorganizations. This 
decrease in the effective rate is a non-recurring event. 
(For further details, see Note 10 of the Notes to 
 Consolidated Financial Statements.)

Minority Interests
Minority interests amounted to 29 billion yen for fiscal 
2008, compared with minority interests of 31 billion yen 
in fiscal 2007. This result was due mainly to decreased 
profits in Victor Company of Japan, Ltd. and its subsid-
iaries for the period when these companies were con-
solidated subsidiaries of Matsushita.

Equity in Losses of Associated Companies
In fiscal 2008, equity in earnings of associated companies 
amounted to losses of 10 billion yen, from the previous 
year’s gains of 1 billion yen. This result is due mainly to 
losses in Victor Company of Japan, Ltd. and its subsid-
iaries which became associated companies under the 
equity method in August 2007, and lower profit in a joint-
venture of LCD panels with Toshiba.

Net Income
As a result of all the factors stated in the preceding para-
graphs, the Company recorded a net income of 282 
billion yen for fiscal 2008, an increase of 30% from 217 
billion yen in the previous year.

Results of Operations by Business Segment
AVC Networks sales increased 6% to 4,320 billion yen, 
compared with 4,064 billion yen in the previous year. 
Within this segment, sales of video and audio equipment 
increased, due mainly to strong sales of  digital AV prod-
ucts, such as flat-panel TVs and digital cameras. 
Regarding TVs, the VIERA series recorded a significant 
increase in sales from the previous year, due primarily to 
expanding demand for large-sized, full high-definition 
(HD) models amid the global progress of digital broad-
casting. Sales of LUMIX series of digital cameras signifi-
cantly increased, due mainly to strong sales of new 
models that feature an automatic iA (Intelligent Auto) 
mode, which include functions such as a “face detec-
tion” system that automatically chooses  settings optimal 
for each condition. Meanwhile, sales of information and 
communications equipment also increased as a result of 
favorable sales of automotive electronics and mobile 
phones. Sales of automotive electronics such as car 
AV and the Strada series of car navigation systems 
remained strong, and sales of mobile phones signifi-
cantly increased due mainly to strong demand for 
models with high-resolution screens for watching “One 
Segment” broadcasting.

With respect to this segment, profit improved 15% 
from 220 billion yen in fiscal 2007, to 252 billion yen for 
fiscal 2008, which is equivalent to 5.8% against sales. 
This increase was attributable mainly to expanded sales 
in flat-panel TVs, digital cameras, automotive electronics 
equipment and mobile phones, as well as cost rational-
ization effects. Particularly in plasma TVs, despite price 
declines under ever-intensified global competition, the 
Company expanded lineups of full HD models and 
 comprehensive cost reduction efforts including curbing 
materials costs. These factors, as well as a significant 
improvement of profitability in mobile phones, led to 
double-digit profit growth in this segment.

Sales of Home Appliances increased 6% to 1,316 
billion yen, compared with 1,247 billion yen in the previ-
ous year. Within Home Appliances, sales gains were 
recorded mainly in air conditioners and refrigerators, as 
a result of strong sales in high value-added products 
that leverage Matsushita’s proprietary technologies. 
These products include air conditioners that automati-
cally adjust air flows depending on people’s feeling of 
temperature, and refrigerators featuring “nano-e 
 crispers” that keep  vegetables and other cold-sensitive 
foods fresh with nano-e technology. 
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Profit in this segment rose 4% from 83 billion yen in 
fiscal 2007, to 87 billion yen for fiscal 2008, or 6.6% of 
sales. Despite the adverse effects from rising costs for 
raw materials including plastic materials, double-digit 
growth in overseas sales in air conditioners, washing 
machines and refrigerators as a result of a successful 
introduction of aforementioned unique products, as well 
as the effects of various cost rationalization activities, led 
to increased earnings in this segment.

Sales of Components and Devices increased 2% to 
1,399 billion yen, from the previous year’s 1,378 billion 
yen, mainly as a result of favorable sales in general elec-
tronic components, semiconductors, batteries. In gen-
eral electronic components, sales gains were recorded 
due mainly to favorable sales in angular rate sensors 
used for increasing precision of car navigation systems 
and digital cameras, specialty polymer aluminum electro-
lytic capacitors that are compact and have a high noise 
reduction function, and light touch switches used for 
mobile phones. In semiconductors, in addition to favor-
able sales of image sensors for digital cameras, a signifi-
cant sales increase was recorded in system LSIs 
primarily for digital AV equipment. In batteries, although 

sales of lithium-ion batteries were weak, due mainly to a 
voluntary replacement of NOKIA brand lithium-ion bat-
tery pack units and a decrease in production capacity by 
the damage from fires in Japan, favorable sales of alka-
line dry batteries led to increased sales overall.

With respect to this segment, profit increased 5% 
from 100 billion yen in fiscal 2007, to 105 billion yen for 
fiscal 2008, or 7.5% of sales. Despite the negative effects 
from rising prices for raw materials including coppers 
and aluminum, sales gains and cost rationalization efforts 
contributed to increased earnings in this segment. In 
particular, a significant profit growth was recorded in 
electronic components and devices, mainly as a result of 
strong sales in general electronic components for digital 
AV products and automotive electronics equipment. 

Sales of MEW and PanaHome increased 3% to 1,910 
billion yen, compared with 1,859 billion yen a year ago. 
Despite weak sales of building products as a result of a 
decrease in residential construction starts, sales at MEW 
and its subsidiaries increased from the previous year. This 
result is due primarily to favorable sales in electrical con-
struction materials such as home fire alarms and high 
energy-efficient lighting fixtures, and electronic and  plastic 

Information by Business Segment
Millions of yen

2008 2007 2006

Sales:
 AVC Networks  ............................................................................................. ¥4,319,594 ¥4,064,111 ¥4,004,698
 Home Appliances  ......................................................................................... 1,316,402 1,247,136 1,188,272
 Components and Devices  ............................................................................ 1,398,684 1,377,757 1,368,258
 MEW and PanaHome  .................................................................................. 1,910,292 1,858,713 1,747,207
 JVC  ............................................................................................................. 183,142 646,579 703,116
 Other  ........................................................................................................... 1,536,130 1,483,976 1,315,292
 Eliminations  .................................................................................................. (1,595,316) (1,570,102) (1,432,514)
  Total  ......................................................................................................... ¥9,068,928 ¥9,108,170 ¥8,894,329

Segment profit:
 AVC Networks  ............................................................................................. ¥  252,239 ¥  220,080 ¥  192,955
 Home Appliances  ......................................................................................... 86,412 83,084 75,065
 Components and Devices  ............................................................................ 104,989 99,884 81,111
 MEW and PanaHome  .................................................................................. 96,405 78,889 72,694
 JVC  ............................................................................................................. (9,672) (5,659) (5,782)
 Other  ........................................................................................................... 64,205 60,500 62,225
 Corporate and eliminations  .......................................................................... (75,097) (77,237) (63,995)
  Total  ......................................................................................................... ¥  519,481 ¥  459,541 ¥  414,273

*  The healthcare business was transferred to Panasonic Shikoku Electronics Co., Ltd. on April 1, 2007. Accordingly, the segment information for fiscal 
2007 has been reclassified to confirm with the presentation for the year ended March 31, 2008.
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materials such as semiconductor encapsulation materials. 
At PanaHome Corporation and its subsidiaries, sluggish 
housing market conditions led to a slight decrease in sales.

With respect to this segment, despite the adverse 
effects of rising prices for raw materials including cop-
pers and nickels, profit increased 22% to 96 billion yen, 
which is equal to 5.0% of sales, from 79 billion yen in the 
previous year, as a result of the aforementioned sales 
gains in electrical construction materials and electronic 
and plastic materials, and the comprehensive cost ratio-
nalizations including a decrease of direct material costs 
and fixed costs.

Sales of JVC were 183 billion yen, compared with 
646 billion yen in the previous year. Victor Company of 
Japan, Ltd. and its subsidiaries became associated 
companies under the equity method from Matsushita’s 
consolidated subsidiaries in August 2007. Accordingly, 
JVC sales for the period from then on are not included in 
Matsushita’s consolidated results.

With respect to this segment, losses amounted to 
10 billion yen, compared with losses of 6 billion yen in 
fiscal 2007.

Sales in the Other segment amounted to 1,536 billion 
yen, up 4% from the previous year. Sales gain was 
recorded in factory automation equipment by expanding 
lineups of high-speed modular placement machines and 
providing optimal solutions for its customers. 

With respect to this segment, profit was up 6% from 
61 billion yen for fiscal 2007, to 64 billion yen, which 
were equivalent to 4.2% against sales in fiscal 2008. 
Despite severe market conditions, this result was due 
mainly to sales gains and cost rationalization.

Sales Results by Region
Sales in Japan amounted to 4,545 billion yen, down 2% 
from 4,616 billion yen in fiscal 2007. However, the 
 Company cited sales gains in all business segments 
except JVC, including favorable sales of digital AV 
 products and automotive electronics equipment. 

Overseas sales were up 1%, to 4,524 billion yen, from 
4,492 billion yen in the previous fiscal year. This result, 
despite the effects of JVC, is due mainly to favorable 
sales in digital AV products and white goods.

By region, sales in the Americas amounted to 1,251 
billion, down 9% from 1,381 billion yen in fiscal 2007. 
Although sales of flat-panel TVs, digital cameras, PCs 
and video broadcasting systems were favorable, sales 
downturns in automotive electronics and batteries, as 
well as the effects of JVC, led to decreased sales from 
the previous year for this region.

Sales in Europe amounted to 1,213 billion yen, mostly 
the same level from the previous year’s 1,218 billion yen. 
Despite the effects of JVC, sales for this region 
increased, due mainly to favorable sales in flat-panel 
TVs, digital cameras, and automotive electronics.

In the Asia and Others region, sales increased 9% to 
2,060 billion yen, from the previous year’s 1,893 billion 
yen. In Asia (excluding China), strong sales were recorded 
in flat-panel TVs, digital cameras, air-conditioners and 
compressors, as well as semiconductors, resulting in 
overall sales gains. Meanwhile, in China, sales gains 
were recorded mainly in flat-panel TVs, air-conditioners, 
semiconductors and electronic components and 
devices, resulting in overall increased sales.

Breakdown of Sales by Region
Millions of yen

2008 2007 2006

Domestic Sales  ............................................................................................... ¥4,544,772 ¥4,616,520 ¥4,611,440
Overseas Sales:
 North and South America  ............................................................................. 1,250,677 1,381,104 1,387,424
 Europe  ......................................................................................................... 1,212,971 1,217,931 1,113,556
 Asia and Others  ........................................................................................... 2,060,508 1,892,615 1,781,909
  Total  ......................................................................................................... 4,524,156 4,491,650 4,282,889
Total  ................................................................................................................ ¥9,068,928 ¥9,108,170 ¥8,894,329
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Financial Position and liquidity

Financial Position and Liquidity
Millions of yen

2008 2007 2006

Total assets (at year-end)  ................................................................................. ¥7,443,614 ¥7,896,958 ¥7,964,640 
Stockholders’ equity (at year-end)  .................................................................... 3,742,329 3,916,741 3,787,621 
Capital investment* ** 
 Purchases of property, plant and equipment shown as capital expenditures  
  in the consolidated statements of cash flows  ............................................. 418,730 411,309 356,751 
 Effect of timing difference between acquisition dates and payment dates  ..... 30,618 7,025 (10,932)

449,348 418,334 345,819 
Depreciation*  ................................................................................................... 282,102 280,177 275,213 

* Excluding intangibles
** Reconciliation of Non U.S. GAAP capital investment figures
   The Company defines capital investment as purchases of property, plant and equipment on an accrual basis which reflects the effects of timing 

differences between acquisition dates and payment dates. The Company has included the information concerning capital investment because its 
management uses this indicator to manage its capital expenditures and it believes that such indicator is useful to investors to present accrual 
basis capital investments in addition to the cash basis information in the consolidated statements of cash flows.

   The above table shows a reconciliation of capital investment to purchases of property, plant and equipment shown as capital expenditures in the 
consolidated statements of cash flows.

Total Assets, Liabilities, Minority Interests and 
 Shareholders’ Equity
The Company’s consolidated total assets as of the end 
of fiscal 2008 decreased to 7,444 billion yen, as com-
pared with 7,897 billion yen at the end of the last fiscal 
year. This result was due primarily to a decrease in 
investments and advances, and the deconsolidation of 
JVC. A steep loss in value in the Japanese stock market 
in the second half of fiscal 2008 led to a decrease in 
unrealized holding gains of available-for-sale securities.

The Company’s consolidated total liabilities as of 
March 31, 2008 also decreased 242 billion yen to 3,187 
billion yen, attributable to a decrease in retirement and 
severance benefits and repayments of short-term 
 borrowings. (For further details, see Notes 8 and 9 of the 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.)

Minority interests increased 37 billion yen, to 515 
billion yen.

Stockholders’ equity decreased 174 billion yen to 
3,742 billion yen, from the previous year’s 3,917 billion 
yen. Although retained earnings increased by 211 billion 

yen, total stockholders’ equity decreased by 174 billion 
yen due mainly to the repurchase of the Company’s own 
shares of 103 billion yen as part of Matsushita’s financial 
strategy to enhance shareholder value, as well as a 
decrease of 281 billion yen in accumulated other com-
prehensive income (loss), which reflects decreases in 
cumulative translation adjustments due primarily to the 
appreciation of the yen against the U.S. dollar and unreal-
ized holding gains of available-for-sale securities, amount-
ing to 129 billion yen and 115 billion yen, respectively. 

Profit Distribution
During fiscal 2008, the Company distributed an interim 
(semiannual) cash dividend of 17.50 yen per common 
share. As for the year-end dividend for fiscal 2008, upon 
the resolution of the Board of Directors’ Meeting, the 
Company also distributed 17.50 yen per common share. 
Accordingly, total dividends for fiscal 2008, including the 
interim cash dividend, amounted to 35.00 yen per 
common share.
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Capital Investment and Depreciation**
Capital investment (excluding intangibles) during fiscal 
2008 totaled 449 billion yen, up 7% from the previous 
fiscal year’s total of 418 billion yen, as shown on the 
above table. The Company implemented capital invest-
ment primarily to increase production capacity in strate-
gic business areas such as semiconductors and digital 
AV equipment, particularly plasma TVs, while curbing 
capital investment in a number of business areas, in line 
with increasing management emphasis on capital 
efficiency.

Depreciation (excluding intangibles) during fiscal 2008 
amounted to 282 billion yen, up 1% compared with 280 
billion yen in the previous fiscal year.

Cash Flows
Net cash provided by operating activities in fiscal 2008 
amounted to 466 billion yen, compared with 533 billion 
yen in the previous fiscal year. This decrease, despite an 
increase in net income, was attributable mainly to an 
increase in trade receivables and inventories.

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to 
61 billion yen, compared with 568 billion yen in fiscal 
2007. Despite cash outflows as a result of the pur-
chase of shares of newly consolidated subsidiaries, 
this improvement is due mainly to a decrease in time 
deposits and an increase in proceeds from disposition 
of investments and advances.

Net cash used in financing activities was 204 billion 
yen, compared with 428 billion yen in fiscal 2007. This 
was due primarily to a decrease in repayments of long-
term debt, a decrease in the repurchase of the 
 Company’s own shares and proceeds from issuance of 
shares by subsidiaries.

All these activities, as well as a net decrease in cash 
and cash equivalents of 223 billion yen associated with 
the effect of exchange rate changes and the effects 
that JVC and its subsidiaries became associated 
 companies under the equity method from Matsushita’s 
consolidated subsidiaries, resulted in a net decrease of 
22 billion yen in cash and cash equivalents during fiscal 
2008. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of fiscal 
2008 totaled 1,215 billion yen, compared with 1,237 
billion yen a year ago.

Free cash flow in fiscal 2008 amounted to a cash 
inflow of 405 billion yen, compared with a cash outflow 
of 35 billion yen in fiscal 2006. 
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conSolidated Balance SheetS
Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
March 31, 2008 and 2007

Millions of yen

assets 2008 2007

current assets:
 Cash and cash equivalents (Note 8)  ................................................................. ¥1,214,816 ¥1,236,639
 Time deposits (Note 8)  ..................................................................................... 70,108 225,458
 Short-term investments (Notes 4 and 17)  ......................................................... 47,414 93,179
 Trade receivables (Note 15):
  Related companies (Note 3)  ......................................................................... 33,874 29,114
  Notes  ........................................................................................................... 58,484 68,472 
  Accounts  ...................................................................................................... 1,013,693 1,072,485
  Allowance for doubtful receivables  ................................................................ (20,868) (29,061)
   Net trade receivables  ................................................................................ 1,085,183 1,141,010
 Inventories (Note 2)  .......................................................................................... 864,264 949,399
 Other current assets (Notes 6, 10 and 17)  ........................................................ 517,409 553,164
   Total current assets  ................................................................................... 3,799,194 4,198,849

investments and advances:
 Associated companies (Note 3)  ........................................................................ 153,668 143,201
 Other investments and advances (Notes 4, 8 and 17)  ...................................... 688,488 1,062,881
   Total investments and advances  ............................................................... 842,156 1,206,082

Property, plant and equipment (Notes 5, 6 and 8):
 Land  ................................................................................................................ 308,365 371,154
 Buildings  .......................................................................................................... 1,559,357 1,633,747
 Machinery and equipment  ................................................................................ 2,592,229 3,126,397
 Construction in progress  .................................................................................. 120,026 105,487

4,579,977 5,236,785
 Less accumulated depreciation  ........................................................................ 2,822,604 3,594,492
   Net property, plant and equipment  ............................................................ 1,757,373 1,642,293

other assets:
 Goodwill (Note 7)  ............................................................................................. 429,902 379,324
 Intangible assets (Note 7)  ................................................................................. 128,917 115,631
 Other assets (Notes 9 and 10)  ......................................................................... 486,072 354,779
   Total other assets  ...................................................................................... 1,044,891 849,734

¥7,443,614 ¥7,896,958

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

68   Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd.  2008



Millions of yen

liabilities, Minority interests and Stockholders’ equity 2008 2007

current liabilities:
 Short-term borrowings, including current portion of  
  long-term debt (Notes 5, 8 and 17)  ................................................................ ¥  156,260 ¥  223,190
 Trade payables:
  Related companies (Note 3)  ......................................................................... 71,384 86,799
  Notes  ........................................................................................................... 37,172 51,588
  Accounts  ...................................................................................................... 831,998 796,590
   Total trade payables  .................................................................................. 940,554 934,977
 Accrued income taxes (Note 10)  ...................................................................... 58,943 61,524
 Accrued payroll  ................................................................................................ 134,255 139,719
 Other accrued expenses (Note 18)  ................................................................... 784,538 863,428
 Deposits and advances from customers  .......................................................... 78,494 83,676
 Employees’ deposits  ........................................................................................ 355 406
 Other current liabilities (Notes 9, 10 and 17)  ..................................................... 407,560 434,947
   Total current liabilities  ................................................................................ 2,560,959 2,741,867

noncurrent liabilities:
 Long-term debt (Notes 5, 8 and 17)  ................................................................. 232,346 226,780
 Retirement and severance benefits (Note 9)  ..................................................... 238,396 280,958
 Other liabilities (Note 10)  .................................................................................. 154,964 179,458
   Total noncurrent liabilities  .......................................................................... 625,706 687,196

Minority interests  .............................................................................................. 514,620 551,154

Stockholders’ equity:
 Common stock (Note 11):
  Authorized—4,950,000,000 shares
  Issued—2,453,053,497 shares (2,453,053,497 shares in 2007)  ................... 258,740 258,740
 Capital surplus (Note 11)  .................................................................................. 1,217,865 1,220,967
 Legal reserve (Note 11)  .................................................................................... 90,129 88,588
 Retained earnings (Note 11)  ............................................................................. 2,948,065 2,737,024
 Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (Notes 4, 9, 12 and 16):
  Cumulative translation adjustments  .............................................................. (228,792) (99,538)
  Unrealized holding gains of available-for-sale securities  ................................ 45,442 160,831
  Unrealized gains of derivative instruments ..................................................... 4,326 862
  Pension liability adjustments  ......................................................................... 5,127 44,942
   Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)  .............................. (173,897) 107,097
 Treasury stock, at cost (Note 11):
  351,936,341 shares (306,769,039 shares in 2007)  ....................................... (598,573) (495,675)
   Total stockholders’ equity  ......................................................................... 3,742,329 3,916,741

commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 18)

¥7,443,614 ¥7,896,958
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conSolidated StateMentS oF incoMe
Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
Years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

Millions of yen

2008 2007 2006

Revenues, costs and expenses:
 Net sales:
  Related companies (Note 3)  ................................................ ¥  371,216 ¥  250,863 ¥  204,740
  Other  ................................................................................... 8,697,712 8,857,307 8,689,589
   Total net sales 9,068,928 9,108,170 8,894,329

 Cost of sales (Notes 3 and 15)  ................................................ (6,377,240) (6,394,418) (6,155,297)
 Selling, general and administrative expenses (Note 15)  ........... (2,172,207) (2,254,211) (2,324,759)
 Interest income  ....................................................................... 34,371 30,553 28,216
 Dividends received  .................................................................. 10,317 7,597 6,567
 Other income (Notes 4, 5 and 16)  ........................................... 70,460 114,545 147,399
 Interest expense  ..................................................................... (20,357) (20,906) (21,686)
 Goodwill impairment (Note 7)  .................................................. — (30,496) (50,050)
 Other deductions (Notes 3, 4, 6, 7, 14, 15 and 16)  ................. (179,279) (121,690) (153,407)
   Income before income taxes  ............................................ 434,993 439,144 371,312

Provision for income taxes (Note 10):
 Current  ................................................................................... 128,181 119,465 96,341
 Deferred  .................................................................................. (13,608) 72,398 70,748

114,573 191,863 167,089
 Income before minority interests and equity  
  in earnings (losses) of associated companies  ........................ 320,420 247,281 204,223

Minority interests  ..................................................................... 28,637 31,131 (987)

equity in earnings (losses) of  
 associated companies (Note 3)  ............................................. (9,906) 1,035 (50,800)
   Net income ¥  281,877 ¥  217,185 ¥  154,410

Yen

net income per share of common stock (Note 13):
 Basic  ...................................................................................... ¥   132.90 ¥    99.50 ¥    69.48
 Diluted  .................................................................................... 132.90 99.50 69.48

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Millions of yen

2008 2007 2006

common stock (Note 11):
 Balance at beginning of year  ............................................................ 258,740 258,740 258,740
 Balance at end of year  ..................................................................... ¥  258,740 ¥  258,740 ¥  258,740
capital surplus (Note 11):
 Balance at beginning of year  ............................................................ 1,220,967 1,234,289 1,230,701
 Transfer from legal reserve and retained earnings due to  
  merger of a subsidiary  .................................................................... — — 798
 Sale of treasury stock  ....................................................................... 59 96 62
 Increase in capital surplus and transfer to minority interests  
  arising on conversion of bonds by a subsidiary  ............................... — — 2,728
 Decrease from issuance of new shares by a subsidiary  .................... (3,161) — —
 Other  ............................................................................................... — (13,418) —
 Balance at end of year  ..................................................................... ¥1,217,865 ¥1,220,967 ¥1,234,289
legal reserve (Note 11):
 Balance at beginning of year  ............................................................ 88,588 87,526 87,838
 Transfer from retained earnings  ........................................................ 1,541 1,062 438
 Transfer to capital surplus due to merger of a subsidiary  .................. — — (750)
 Balance at end of year  ..................................................................... ¥   90,129 ¥   88,588 ¥   87,526
Retained earnings (Note 11):
 Balance at beginning of year  ............................................................ 2,737,024 2,575,890 2,461,071
 Net income  ...................................................................................... 281,877 217,185 154,410
 Cash dividends  ................................................................................ (69,295) (54,989) (39,105)
 Transfer to legal reserve  ................................................................... (1,541) (1,062) (438)
 Transfer to capital surplus due to merger of a subsidiary  .................. — — (48)
 Balance at end of year  ..................................................................... ¥2,948,065 ¥2,737,024 ¥2,575,890
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (Note 12):
 Balance at beginning of year  ............................................................ 107,097 (26,119) (238,377)
 Other comprehensive income, net of tax  .......................................... (280,994) 72,085 212,258
 Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No. 158, net of tax  ....................... — 61,131 —
 Balance at end of year  ..................................................................... ¥ (173,897) ¥  107,097 ¥   (26,119)
treasury stock (Note 11):
 Balance at beginning of year  ............................................................ (495,675) (342,705) (255,721)
 Repurchase of common stock  ......................................................... (103,112) (153,179) (87,150)
 Sale of treasury stock  ....................................................................... 214 209 166
 Balance at end of year  ..................................................................... ¥ (598,573) ¥ (495,675) ¥  (342,705)
disclosure of comprehensive income (loss) (Note 12):
 Net income  ...................................................................................... 281,877 217,185 154,410
 Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
  Translation adjustments  ................................................................ (129,254) 62,793 83,311
  Unrealized holding gains (losses) of available-for-sale securities  .... (115,389) 15,525 72,698
  Unrealized gains (losses) of derivative instruments  ........................ 3,464 (464) (5,077)
  Minimum pension liability adjustments  .......................................... — (5,769) 61,326
  Pension liability adjustments  ......................................................... (39,815) — —
 Total comprehensive income  ............................................................ ¥      883 ¥  289,270 ¥  366,668

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

conSolidated StateMentS oF StockholdeRS’ equity
Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
Years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006
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Millions of yen

2008 2007 2006

cash flows from operating activities (Note 15):
 Net income  .......................................................................................................... ¥  281,877 ¥  217,185 ¥  154,410
 Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
  Depreciation and amortization  .......................................................................... 320,534 317,685 309,399
  Net gain on sale of investments  ........................................................................ (14,402) (40,154) (47,449)
  Provision for doubtful receivables  ..................................................................... 6,008 3,203 8,409
  Deferred income taxes  ..................................................................................... (13,608) 72,398 70,748
  Write-down of investment securities (Notes 3 and 4)  ........................................ 31,842 3,148 35,292
  Impairment loss on long-lived assets (Notes 6 and 7)  ....................................... 44,627 49,175 66,378
  Minority interests  .............................................................................................. 28,637 31,131 (987) 
  (Increase) decrease in trade receivables  ............................................................ (56,677) 50,012 (31,042)
  (Increase) decrease in inventories  ..................................................................... (37,372) 474 36,498
  (Increase) decrease in other current assets  ....................................................... 39,602 64,074 (57,990)
  Increase (decrease) in trade payables  ............................................................... (41,568) (61,630) 112,340
  Increase (decrease) in accrued income taxes  .................................................... 5,765 9,773 3,872
  Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses and other current liabilities  ................ 9,973 (39,774) 37,108
  Increase (decrease) in retirement and severance benefits  .................................. (128,937) (108,559) (73,180)
  Increase (decrease) in deposits and advances from customers  ......................... (15,915) (12,223) (13,304)
  Other  ................................................................................................................ 5,672 (23,361) (35,084)
  Net cash provided by operating activities  .......................................................... 466,058 532,557 575,418

cash flows from investing activities (Note 15):
 Proceeds from sale of short-term investments  ..................................................... 697 31,014 41,867
 Purchase of short-term investments  ..................................................................... —  (4,509) (54,967)
 Proceeds from disposition of investments and advances  ..................................... 313,947 142,074 849,409
 Increase in investments and advances  ................................................................. (160,423) (290,046) (385,865)
 Capital expenditures  ............................................................................................ (418,730) (411,309) (356,751)
 Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment  .................................. 151,279 182,892 168,631
 (Increase) decrease in time deposits  ..................................................................... 166,750 (223,801) 141,289
 Purchase of shares of newly consolidated subsidiaries  ......................................... (68,309) — —
 Proceeds from sale of shares of subsidiaries and dividends received  ................... — 40,548 63,083
 Other  ................................................................................................................... (46,582) (34,671) (59,605)
  Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities  ............................................. (61,371) (567,808) 407,091

cash flows from financing activities (Note 15):
 Increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings  ....................................................... (5,815) (5,826) 15,037
 Increase (decrease) in employees’ deposits .......................................................... (252) (13,951) (104,835)
 Proceeds from long-term debt  ............................................................................. 1,344 33,636 30,653
 Repayments of long-term debt ............................................................................. (46,750) (217,414) (328,243)
 Dividends paid  ..................................................................................................... (69,295) (54,989) (39,105)
 Dividends paid to minority interests  ...................................................................... (19,807) (16,285) (16,281)
 Repurchase of common stock (Note 11)  .............................................................. (103,112) (153,179) (87,150)
 Sale of treasury stock (Note 11)  ........................................................................... 273 305 228
 Proceeds from issuance of shares by subsidiaries  ................................................ 39,866 — —
 Other  ................................................................................................................... — — 5,128
  Net cash used in financing activities  ................................................................. (203,548) (427,703) (524,568)
 effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  ................. (129,521) 32,197 39,699
 effect of changes in consolidated subsidiaries (Note 15)  .............................. (93,441) — —
 net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  ................................. (21,823) (430,757) 497,640
 cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  ........................................... 1,236,639 1,667,396 1,169,756
 cash and cash equivalents at end of year  ..................................................... ¥1,214,816 ¥1,236,639 ¥1,667,396

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

conSolidated StateMentS oF caSh FlowS
Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
Years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006
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(a) Description of Business
Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. (hereinafter, the 
“Company,” including consolidated subsidiaries, unless 
the context otherwise requires) is one of the world’s 
leading producers of electronic and electric products. 
The Company currently offers a comprehensive range 
of products, systems and components for consumer, 
 business and industrial use based on sophisticated 
electronics and precision technology, expanding to 
building materials and equipment, and housing busi-
ness. Most of the Company’s products are marketed 
under  “Panasonic” and several other trade names, 
including “National,” “Technics” and “PanaHome.” Victor 
Company of Japan, Ltd. and its subsidiaries became 
associated companies under the equity method from 
August 2007. “Victor” and “JVC” were not included in 
the above trade names.

Sales by product category in fiscal 2008 were as 
 follows: AVC Networks—44%, Home Appliances—14%, 
Components and Devices—13%, MEW and 
 PanaHome*—19%, JVC—2%, and Other—8%. A sales 
breakdown in fiscal 2008 by geographical market was as 
follows: Japan—50%, North and South America—14%, 
Europe—13%, and Asia and Others—23%.

The Company is not dependent on a single supplier, 
and has no significant difficulty in obtaining raw materi-
als from suppliers.

*  MEW stands for Matsushita Electric Works, Ltd. and PanaHome 
stands for PanaHome Corporation.

(b) Basis of Presentation of Consolidated Financial 
Statements

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries maintain their 
books of account in conformity with financial accounting 
standards of Japan, and its foreign subsidiaries in confor-
mity with those of the countries of their domicile.

The consolidated financial statements presented 
herein have been prepared in a manner and reflect 
adjustments which are necessary to conform with U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles.

(c) Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the 
accounts of the Company and its majority-owned, con-
trolled subsidiaries. The Company also consolidates 
entities in which controlling interest exists through vari-
able interests in accordance with Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 46 (revised 
December 2003), “Consolidation of Variable Interest 
Entities” (FIN 46R). Investments in companies and joint 

noteS to conSolidated Financial StateMentS

1. Summary of Significant accounting Policies
ventures over which we have the ability to exercise 
 significant influence (generally through an ownership 
interest of between 20% to 50%) are included in 
 “Investments and advances—Associated companies” 
in the consolidated balance sheets. All significant inter-
company balances and transactions have been elimi-
nated in consolidation.

(d) Revenue Recognition
The Company generates revenue principally through the 
sale of consumer and industrial products, equipment, 
and supplies. The Company recognizes revenue when 
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery 
has occurred, and title and risk of loss have been trans-
ferred to the customer or services have been rendered, 
the sales price is fixed or determinable, and collectibility 
is reasonably assured.

Revenue from sales of products is generally recog-
nized when the products are received by customers. 
Revenue from sales of certain products with customer 
acceptance provisions related to their functionality is 
recognized when the product is received by the customer 
and the specific criteria of the product functionality are 
successfully tested and demonstrated.

The Company enters into arrangements with multiple 
elements, which may include any combination of prod-
ucts, equipment, installation and maintenance. The 
Company allocates revenue to each element based on 
its relative fair value if such element meets the criteria 
for treatment as a separate unit of accounting as 
 prescribed in the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) 
Issue 00-21, “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple 
Deliverables.” Product revenue is generally recognized 
upon completion of installation or upon shipment if 
installation is not required. Maintenance revenue is 
 recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
maintenance agreement.

The Company’s policy is to accept product returns 
only in the case that the products are defective. The 
Company issues contractual product warranties under 
which it guarantees the performance of products deliv-
ered and services rendered for a certain period of time. 
A liability for the estimated product warranty related cost 
is established at the time revenue is recognized, and is 
included in “Other accrued expenses.” Estimates for 
accrued warranty cost are primarily based on historical 
experience and current information on repair cost.

Historically, the Company has made certain allow-
ances related to sales to its consumer business 
 distributors. Such allowances are generally provided to 
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compensate the distributors for a decline in the prod-
uct’s value, and are classified as a reduction of revenue 
on the consolidated statements of income. Estimated 
price adjustments are accrued when the related sales 
are recognized. The estimate is made based primarily 
on the historical experience or specific arrangements 
made with the distributors.

The Company also occasionally offers incentive pro-
grams to its distributors in the form of rebates. These 
rebates are accrued at the later of the date at which the 
related revenue is recognized or the date at which the 
incentive is offered, and are recorded as reductions of 
sales in accordance with EITF Issue 01-09, “Accounting 
for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer 
(Including a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products).”

Taxes collected from customers and remitted to 
 governmental authorities are accounted for on a net 
basis and therefore are excluded from revenues in the 
consolidated statements of income.

(e) Leases (See Note 5)
The Company accounts for leases in accordance with 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) 
No. 13, “Accounting for Leases.” Leases of the assets 
under certain conditions are recorded as capital leases 
in property, plant and equipment in the consolidated 
balance sheets.

(f) Inventories (See Note 2)
Finished goods and work in process are stated at the 
lower of cost (average) or market. Raw materials are 
stated at cost, principally on a first-in, first-out basis, not 
in excess of current replacement cost.

(g) Foreign Currency Translation (See Note 12)
Foreign currency financial statements are translated in 
accordance with SFAS No. 52, “Foreign Currency 
 Translation,” under which all assets and liabilities are 
translated into yen at year-end rates and income and 
expense accounts are translated at weighted-average 
rates. Adjustments resulting from the translation of 
 financial statements are reflected under the caption, 
“Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss),” a 
separate component of stockholders’ equity.

(h) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost. Depre-
ciation is computed primarily using the declining balance 
method based on the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings  ..............................................  5 to 50 years
Machinery and equipment  ...................  2 to 10 years

( i) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (See Note 7)
Goodwill represents the excess of costs over the fair 
value of net assets of businesses acquired.  The 
 Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 142, 
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” Goodwill and 
Intangible assets acquired in a purchase business com-
bination and determined to have an indefinite useful life 
are not amortized, and are instead reviewed for impair-
ment at least annually based on assessment of current 
estimated fair value of the intangible asset. The goodwill 
impairment test is a two-step test. Under the first step, 
the fair value of the reporting unit is compared with its 
carrying value (including goodwill). If the fair value of the 
reporting unit is less than its carrying value, an indication 
of goodwill impairment exists for the reporting unit and 
the enterprise must perform the second step of the 
impairment test (measurement). If the fair value of the 
reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, the second 
step does not need to be performed. Under the second 
step, an impairment loss is recognized for any excess of 
the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill over 
the implied fair value of that goodwill. The implied fair 
value of goodwill is determined by allocating the fair 
value of the reporting unit in a manner similar to a pur-
chase price allocation in business combinations. The 
residual fair value after this allocation is the implied fair 
value of the reporting unit goodwill. Fair value of the 
reporting unit is determined using a discounted cash 
flow analysis. SFAS No. 142 also requires that intangible 
assets with estimable useful lives be amortized over 
their respective estimated useful lives to their estimated 
residual values, and reviewed for impairment based on 
an assessment of the undiscounted cash flows 
expected by the asset. An impairment charge is recog-
nized for the amount by which the carrying amount of 
the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.

(j) Investments and Advances (See Notes 3, 4 and 12)
Investments and advances primarily consist of invest-
ments in and advances to associated companies, cost 
method investments, available-for-sale securities, and 
long-term deposits. Cost method investments and long-
term deposits are recorded at historical cost.

The equity method is used to account for invest-
ments in associated companies in which the Company 
exerts significant influence, generally having a 20% to 
50% ownership interest, and corporate joint ventures. 
The Company also uses the equity method for some 
subsidiaries if the minority shareholders have substantive 
participating rights. Under the equity method of 
accounting, investments are stated at their underlying 
net equity value after elimination of intercompany profits. 
The cost method is used when the Company does not 
have significant influence.
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The excess of cost of the stock of the associated 
companies over the Company’s share of their net assets 
at the acquisition date, included in the equity investment 
balance, is recognized as equity method goodwill. Such 
equity method goodwill is not being amortized and is 
instead tested for impairment as part of the equity 
method investment.

The Company accounts for debt and equity securi-
ties in accordance with SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for 
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.”

SFAS No. 115 requires that certain investments in 
debt and equity securities be classified as held-to- 
maturity, trading, or available-for-sale securities. The 
Company classifies its existing marketable equity securi-
ties other than investments in associated companies 
and all debt securities as available-for-sale. Available-for-
sale securities are carried at fair value with unrealized 
holding gains or losses included as a component of 
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of 
applicable taxes.

Realized gains and losses are determined on the 
average cost method and reflected in earnings.

On a continuous basis, but no less frequently than at 
the end of each semi-annual period, the Company eval-
uates the carrying amount of each of the investments in 
associated companies, cost method investments and 
available-for-sale securities for possible other-than- 
temporary impairment. Factors considered in assessing 
whether an indication of other-than-temporary impair-
ment exists include the period of time the fair value has 
been below the carrying amount or cost basis of invest-
ment, financial condition and prospects of each 
investee, and other relevant factors.

Investments in associated companies, cost method 
investments and available-for-sale securities are reduced 
to fair value by a charge to earnings when impairment is 
considered to be other than temporary. Impairment is 
measured based on the amount by which the carrying 
amount or cost basis of the investment exceeds its fair 
value. Fair value is determined based on quoted market 
prices, discounted cash flows or other valuation tech-
niques as appropriate.

(k) Allowance for Doubtful Receivables 
An allowance for doubtful trade receivables and 
advances is provided at an amount calculated based on 
historical experience, while specific allowances for 
doubtful trade receivables and advances are provided 
for the estimated amounts considered to be uncollect-
ible after reviewing individual collectibility. 

(l) Income Taxes (See Note 10)
Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and 
liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable 
to differences between the financial statement carrying 
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their 
respective tax bases, and operating loss and tax credit 
carryforwards.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using 
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income 
in the years in which those temporary differences are 
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on 
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax 
rates is recognized in income in the period that includes 
the enactment date.

The Company accounts for the accounting uncer-
tainty in tax positions in accordance with FASB Interpre-
tation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income 
Taxes, an interpretation of SFAS No. 109” (FIN 48) from 
April 1, 2007. The Company recognizes the effect of 
income tax positions only if those positions are more 
likely than not of being sustained. Recognized income 
tax positions are measured at the largest amount that is 
greater than 50% likely of being realized. Changes in 
recognition or measurement are reflected in the period 
in which the change in judgment occurs. The Company 
records interests and penalties related to unrecognized 
tax benefits in “Provision for income taxes—Current” in 
the consolidated statements of income.

(m) Advertising (See Note 15)
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.

(n) Net Income per Share (See Notes 11 and 13)
The Company accounts for net income per share in 
accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share.” 
This statement establishes standards for computing net 
income per share and requires dual presentation of 
basic and diluted net income per share on the face of 
the statements of income for all entities with complex 
capital structures.

Under SFAS No. 128, basic net income per share is 
computed based on the weighted-average number of 
common shares outstanding during each period, and 
diluted net income per share assumes the dilution that 
could occur if securities or other contracts to issue 
common stock were exercised or converted into common 
stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock.

(o) Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents include all highly liquid debt instru-
ments purchased with a maturity of three months or less.
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(p) Derivative Financial Instruments (See Notes 12, 
16 and 17)

Derivative financial instruments utilized by the Company 
are comprised principally of foreign exchange contracts, 
interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps and com-
modity futures used to hedge currency risk, interest rate 
risk and commodity price risk.

The Company accounts for derivative instruments in 
accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Deriva-
tive Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended. 
The Company recognizes derivatives in the consolidated 
balance sheets at their fair value in “Other current 
assets,” “Other assets,” “Other current liabilities” or 
“Other liabilities.” On the date the derivative contract is 
entered into, the Company ordinarily designates the 
derivative as either a hedge of the fair value of a recog-
nized asset or liability or of an unrecognized firm com-
mitment (“fair-value” hedge), a hedge of a forecasted 
transaction or of the variability of cash flows to be 
received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability 
(“cash-flow” hedge), or a foreign-currency fair-value or 
cash-flow hedge (“foreign-currency” hedge). The 
 Company formally documents all relationships between 
hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its 
risk-management objective and strategy for undertaking 
various hedge transactions. The Company also formally 
assesses, both at the hedge’s inception and on an 
ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in 
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting 
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is highly 
effective and that is designated and qualifies as a fair-
value hedge, along with the loss or gain on the hedged 
asset or liability or unrecognized firm commitment of the 
hedged item that is attributable to the hedged risk, are 
recorded in earnings. Changes in the fair value of a 
derivative that is highly effective and that is designated 
and qualifies as a cash-flow hedge are recorded in other 
comprehensive income (loss), until earnings are affected 
by the variability in cash flows of the designated hedged 
item. Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are 
highly effective as hedges and that are designated and 
qualify as foreign-currency hedges are recorded in either 
earnings or other comprehensive income (loss), depend-
ing on whether the hedge transaction is a fair-value 
hedge or a cash-flow hedge. The ineffective portion of 
the change in fair value of a derivative instrument that 
qualifies as either a fair-value hedge or a cash-flow 
hedge is reported in earnings.

(q) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets (See Note 6)
The Company accounts for impairment or disposition of 
long-lived assets in accordance with SFAS No. 144, 
“Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived 
Assets.” In accordance with SFAS No. 144, long-lived 
assets, such as property, plant and equipment, and 
purchased intangibles subject to amortization, are 
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an 
asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets 
to be held and used is measured by a comparison of 
the  carrying amount of an asset to estimated undis-
counted future cash flows expected to be generated by 
the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is 
recognized for the amount by which the carrying 
amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.

(r) Restructuring Charges (See Note 14)
The Company accounts for costs associated with exit 
or disposal activities in accordance with SFAS No. 146, 
“Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal 
Activities.” Pursuant to SFAS No. 146, liabilities for 
restructuring costs are recognized when the liability is 
incurred, which may be subsequent to the date when 
the Company has committed to a restructuring plan.

(s) Stock-Based Compensation (See Note 11)
SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” 
(SFAS No. 123R) addresses accounting and disclosure 
requirements with measurement of the cost of employee 
service using a fair-value-based method of accounting 
for stock-based employee compensation plans.

The Company had continuously applied the intrinsic-
based-method of accounting prescribed by Accounting 
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock 
Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations to 
account for this stock option plans until fiscal 2006. The 
Company accounted for the disclosure in accordance 
with SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based 
 Compensation,” and SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for 
Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure, 
an amendment of SFAS No. 123,” until fiscal 2006. The 
Company adopted SFAS No. 123R for the year ended 
March 31, 2007. The effect of adopting SFAS No. 123R 
using the modified prospective method for the year 
ended March 31, 2007 was not material.
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(t) Segment Information (See Note 19) 
The Company accounts for segment information in 
accordance with SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about 
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.” 

(u) Use of Estimates
Management of the Company has made a number of 
estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of 
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities to prepare these financial statements 
in conformity with generally accepted accounting prin-
ciples. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(v) New Accounting Pronouncements
In September 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 158, 
“Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and 
Other Postretirement Plans—an amendment of FASB 
Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R).” SFAS 
No. 158’s provisions regarding the change in the mea-
surement date of postretirement benefit plans require 
the fair value of plan assets and benefit obligations to 
be measured as of the date of the fiscal year-end con-
solidated balance sheet and will be effective for the 
Company as of April 1, 2008. The Company is currently 
in the process of assessing the impact of the adoption 
of SFAS No. 158’s provisions regarding the change in 
the measurement date of postretirement benefit plans 
on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 157, 
“Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 defines fair 
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, 
and expands disclosures about fair value measure-
ments. SFAS No. 157 will be effective for the Company 
as of April 1, 2008. In February 2008, FASB issued Staff 
Position No. 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB Statement 
No. 157,” which partially delays the effective date of 
SFAS No. 157 by one year for certain nonfinancial assets 
and liabilities. The adoption of SFAS No. 157 is not 
expected to have a material effect on the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The 
Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial 
 Liabilities—Including an amendment of FASB Statement 
No. 115.” SFAS No. 159 provides companies with an 
option to report selected financial assets and liabilities at 

fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on items for 
which the fair value option has been elected will be 
 recognized in earnings. SFAS No. 159 will be effective 
for the Company as of April 1, 2008. The adoption of 
SFAS No. 159 is not expected to have a material effect 
on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, FASB issued SFAS No. 141 
(revised 2007), “Business Combinations” (SFAS 
No. 141R) and SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in 
Consolidated Financial Statements—an amendment to 
ARB No. 51.” SFAS No. 141R and No. 160 require most 
identifiable assets, liabilities, noncontrolling interests, and 
goodwill acquired in a business combination to be 
recorded at “full fair value” and require noncontrolling 
interests (previously referred to as minority interests) to 
be reported as a component of equity, which changes 
the accounting for transactions with noncontrolling inter-
est holders. SFAS No. 141R and No. 160 will be effective 
for the Company as of April 1, 2009. SFAS No. 141R will 
be applied to business combinations occurring after the 
effective date. SFAS No. 160 will be applied prospectively 
to all noncontrolling interests, including any that arose 
before the effective date and the disclosure requirement 
will be applied retrospectively. The Company is currently 
in the process of assessing the impact of the adoption of 
SFAS No. 141R and No. 160 on the Company’s consoli-
dated financial statements.

In March 2008, FASB issued SFAS No. 161, 
 “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging 
Activities—an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133.” 
SFAS No. 161 requires disclosures of how and why an 
entity uses derivative instruments, how derivative 
 instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’s 
financial position, financial performance, and cash flows. 
SFAS No. 161 will be effective for the Company as of 
April 1, 2009. The Company is currently in the process 
of evaluating the new disclosure requirements under 
SFAS No. 161.

(w) Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior 
years’ notes to consolidated financial statements in 
order to conform with the presentation used for the year 
ended March 31, 2008.
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2. inventories
Inventories at March 31, 2008 and 2007 are summarized as follows:

Millions of yen

2008 2007

Finished goods  ................................................................................................... ¥499,316 ¥576,401
Work in process  ................................................................................................. 132,894 126,134
Raw materials  ..................................................................................................... 232,054 246,864

¥864,264 ¥949,399

3.  investments in and advances to, and transactions with associated companies
Certain financial information in respect of associated 
companies in aggregate at March 31, 2008 and 2007, 
and for the three years ended March 31, 2008 is shown 
below. The most significant of these associated compa-
nies are Victor Company of Japan, Ltd. (JVC), Toshiba 
Matsushita Display Technology Co., Ltd. (TMD) and 
Sumishin Matsushita Financial Services Co., Ltd. 
(SMFC). At March 31, 2008, the Company has a 36.8% 
equity ownership in JVC, a 40.0% equity ownership in 
TMD and a 34.0% equity ownership in SMFC.

The Company formerly consolidated JVC and its 
subsidiaries. On August 10, 2007, JVC issued and allo-
cated new shares of its common stock to third parties. 
As a result, the Company’s shareholding of JVC 
decreased from 52.4% to 36.8%, and JVC and its sub-
sidiaries became associated companies under equity 
method. JVC is engaged in both hardware and enter-
tainment software businesses. Financial information 
associated with JVC subsequent to the date of decon-
solidation is included in the aggregate information below, 
however, financial information through the date of 
deconsolidation is not included.

The Company formerly accounted for the investment 
in IPS Alpha technology, Ltd. (IPS) and its subsidiary 
under the equity method, and began to consolidate IPS 
and its subsidiary on March 31, 2008, in accordance 
with FIN 46R, as a result of modification of Joint-Venture 

agreement. IPS, a variable interest entity, is engaged in 
manufacturing LCD panels. At March 31, 2008, the 
amount of total assets of IPS and its subsidiary is 
237,259 million yen and the Company has a 44.9% 
equity ownership interest in IPS. Financial information 
associated with IPS for the year ended March 31, 
2008, and as of and for the year ended March 31, 
2007 is included in the aggregate information below, 
however, financial information as of March 31, 2008 is 
not included.

The Company formerly accounted for the investment 
in MT Picture Display Co., Ltd. (MTPD) and its subsidiar-
ies under the equity method, and began to consolidate 
MTPD on March 1, 2006 in accordance with FIN 46R, 
as a result of certain restructuring activities of MTPD. On 
March 30, 2007, the Company acquired a 35.5% equity 
interest of MTPD from Toshiba Corporation for a nominal 
value and as a result, the Company has a 100% voting 
interest in MTPD. MTPD is engaged in manufacturing 
and distributing cathode ray tubes. The impact of con-
solidating MTPD is not material to the Company’s con-
solidated financial statements. Financial information 
associated with MTPD through February 28, 2006 is 
included in the aggregate information below, however, 
financial information as of and for the years ended 
March 31, 2008 and 2007, and for the one month 
ended March 31, 2006 is not included.
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Millions of yen

2008 2007

Current assets  .............................................................................................. ¥1,082,483 ¥  918,573

Other assets  ................................................................................................. 584,566 632,511

1,667,049 1,551,084

Current liabilities  ........................................................................................... 809,544 765,051

Other liabilities  .............................................................................................. 417,241 345,855

 Net assets  ................................................................................................ ¥  440,264 ¥  440,178

Company’s equity in net assets  .................................................................... ¥  170,330 ¥  165,778

Millions of yen

2008 2007 2006

Net sales  ............................................................................. ¥1,968,527 ¥1,352,107 ¥1,227,057

Gross profit  .......................................................................... 377,989 216,002 195,141
Net loss  ............................................................................... (52,915) (7,595) (70,381)

Purchases and dividends received from associated companies for the three years ended March 31, 2008 are 
as follows:

Millions of yen

2008 2007 2006

Purchases from  ................................................................... ¥424,242 ¥301,859 ¥261,458

Dividends received  .............................................................. 5,434 3,365 1,496

Retained earnings include undistributed earnings of 
associated companies in the amount of 32,519 million 
yen and 30,557 million yen, as of March 31, 2008 and 
2007, respectively.

During the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2006, 
the Company incurred a write-down of 23,668 million 
yen and 30,681 million yen, respectively, for other-than-
temporary impairment of investments and advances in 

associated companies. The fair values of the invest-
ments and advances in associated companies were 
based on quoted market price or discounted cash flows 
by using appropriate discounted rate based on our cost 
of capital rate. An impairment charge was recorded to 
reduce the carrying value of the assets to fair value. The 
write-down is included in other deductions in the con-
solidated statements of income.

Investments in associated companies include equity securities which have quoted market values at March 31, 
2008 and 2007 compared with related carrying amounts as follows:

Millions of yen

2008 2007

Carrying amount  ................................................................................................. ¥30,644 ¥3,311

Market value  ....................................................................................................... 35,921 6,129
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4. investments in Securities
The Company classifies its existing marketable equity 
securities other than investments in associated compa-
nies and all debt securities as available-for-sale.

The cost, fair value, gross unrealized holding gains 

and gross unrealized holding losses of available-for-sale 
securities included in short-term investments, and 
investments and advances at March 31, 2008 and 2007 
are as follows:

Millions of yen

2008 2007

Cost Fair value

Gross  
unrealized 

holding  
gains

Gross  
unrealized 

holding 
losses Cost Fair value

Gross  
unrealized 

holding  
gains

Gross  
unrealized 

holding 
losses

Current:
 Japanese and foreign  
  government bonds  .......... ¥ 40,002 ¥ 40,140 ¥    138 ¥     — ¥ 64,836 ¥ 64,882 ¥     46 ¥  —
 Convertible and  
  straight bonds  ................. 7,010 7,024 14 — 18,004 18,048 44 —
 Other debt securities  ......... 250 250 — — 10,249 10,249 — —

¥ 47,262 ¥ 47,414 ¥    152 ¥     — ¥ 93,089 ¥ 93,179 ¥     90 ¥  —
Noncurrent:
 Equity securities  ................ ¥333,057 ¥441,839 ¥124,342 ¥15,560 ¥293,314 ¥607,271 ¥314,488 ¥531
 Japanese and foreign  
  government bonds  .......... 24,745 25,151 406 — 64,614 64,904 296 6
 Convertible and  
  straight bonds  ................. 6,843 6,992 177 28 15,392 15,464 85 13
 Other debt securities  ......... 5,603 5,510 — 93 6,715 6,852 137 —

¥370,248 ¥479,492 ¥124,925 ¥15,681 ¥380,035 ¥694,491 ¥315,006 ¥550

Maturities of investments in available-for-sale securities at March 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:
Millions of yen

2008 2007
Cost Fair value Cost Fair value

Due within one year  .......................................................... ¥ 47,262 ¥ 47,414 ¥ 93,089 ¥ 93,179
Due after one year through five years  ................................ 34,991 35,456 82,799 83,226
Due after five years through ten years  ............................... 2,200 2,197 3,922 3,994
Equity securities  ............................................................... 333,057 441,839 293,314 607,271

¥417,510 ¥526,906 ¥473,124 ¥787,670

Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities for 
the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 were 
106,466 million yen, 84,806 million yen and 135,907 
million yen, respectively. The gross realized gains for the 
years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 were 
7,415 million yen, 12,452 million yen and 63,757 million 
yen, respectively. The gross realized losses on sale of 
available-for-sale securities for the years ended 
March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 were 148 million yen, 
313 million yen and 199 million yen, respectively. The 

cost of securities sold in computing gross realized gains 
and losses is determined by the average cost method.

During the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 
2006, the Company incurred a write-down of 8,002 
 million yen, 939 million yen and 458 million yen, respec-
tively, for other-than-temporary impairment of available-
for-sale securities, mainly reflecting the aggravated 
market condition of certain industries in Japan. The 
write-down is included in other deductions in the con-
solidated statements of income.
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Gross unrealized holding losses on investment securities and the fair value of the related securities, aggregated by 
investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, 
at March 31, 2008 and 2007, are as follows:

2008
Millions of yen

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total

Fair value
Unrealized 

losses Fair value
Unrealized 

losses Fair value
Unrealized 

losses

Equity securities  ......................................... ¥82,481 ¥15,560 ¥   — ¥   — ¥82,481 ¥15,560
Convertible and straight bonds  ................... 1,824 28 — — 1,824 28
Other debt securities  .................................. 5,407 93 — — 5,407 93

¥89,712 ¥15,681 ¥   — ¥   — ¥89,712 ¥15,681

2007
Millions of yen

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total

Fair value
Unrealized 

losses Fair value
Unrealized 

losses Fair value
Unrealized 

losses

Equity securities  ......................................... ¥ 9,229 ¥   531 ¥   — ¥   — ¥ 9,229 ¥   531
Japanese and foreign government bonds  ... 19,977 6 — — 19,977 6
Convertible and straight bonds  ................... 1,839 13 — — 1,839 13

¥31,045 ¥   550 ¥   — ¥   — ¥31,045 ¥   550

The gross unrealized loss position has been continuing for a relatively short period of time. Based on this and 
other relevant factors, management has determined that these investments are not considered other-than-temporarily 
impaired. The Company has not held unrealized losses for twelve months or more at March 31, 2008 and 2007.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s cost method 
investments totaled 29,837 million yen and 31,465 
 million yen at March 31, 2008 and 2007. For invest-
ments with an aggregate cost of 29,814 million yen 
and 29,639 million yen at March 31, 2008 and 2007, 
respectively, the Company estimated that the fair value 
exceeded the carrying amounts of investments (that is, 
the investments were not impaired). For the years ended 

March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, the remaining invest-
ments were considered other-than-temporarily impaired, 
resulting in a write-down of 172 million yen, 2,209 
 million yen and 4,153 million yen, respectively.

At March 31, 2008, equity securities with a book 
value of 19,880 million yen was pledged as collateral for 
the deferred payments of certain taxes based on the 
Japanese Custom Act and Consumption Tax Law.
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Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable capital leases and operating leases at March 31, 2008 are 
as follows:

Millions of yen

Year ending March 31
Capital  
leases

Operating 
leases

2009 .................................................................................................................................. ¥ 38,778 ¥ 55,530
2010 .................................................................................................................................. 28,956 45,624
2011 .................................................................................................................................. 22,500 60,138
2012 .................................................................................................................................. 13,071 35,501
2013 .................................................................................................................................. 7,280 12,738
Thereafter  .......................................................................................................................... 15,542 2,525
Total minimum lease payments  .......................................................................................... 126,127 ¥212,056
Less amount representing interest  ..................................................................................... 3,860
Present value of net minimum lease payments  ................................................................... 122,267
Less current portion  ........................................................................................................... 37,236
Long-term capital lease obligations  .................................................................................... ¥ 85,031

6. long-lived assets

5. leases

The Company has capital and operating leases for cer-
tain land, buildings, and machinery and equipment with 
SMFC and other third parties. 

During the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 
2006, the Company sold and leased back certain land, 
buildings, and machinery and equipment for 109,311 
million yen, 73,578 million yen and 115,326 million yen, 
respectively. The base lease term is 1 to 10 years. The 
resulting leases are being accounted for as operating 
leases or capital leases. The resulting gains of these 
transactions, included in other income in the consoli-
dated statements of income, were not significant. 
Regarding certain leased assets, the Company has 
options to purchase the leased assets, or to terminate 
the leases and guarantee a specified value of the leased 
assets thereof, subject to certain conditions, during or at 

the end of the lease term. Regarding leased land and 
buildings, there are no future commitments, obligations, 
provisions, or circumstances that require or result in the 
Company’s continuing involvement.

At March 31, 2008 and 2007, the gross book value 
of land, buildings, and machinery and equipment under 
capital leases, including the above-mentioned sale-
leaseback transactions was 207,999 million yen and 
151,920 million yen, and the related accumulated 
depreciation recorded was 89,977 million yen and 
93,488 million yen, respectively.

Rental expenses for operating leases, including the 
above-mentioned sale-leaseback transactions were 
59,886 million yen, 47,094 million yen and 41,302 mil-
lion yen for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 
2006, respectively.

The Company periodically reviews the recorded value of 
its long-lived assets to determine if the future cash flows 
to be derived from these assets will be sufficient to 
recover the remaining recorded asset values. As dis-
cussed in Note 1 (q), the Company accounts for impair-
ment of long-lived assets in accordance with SFAS 
No. 144. Impairment losses are included in other deduc-
tions in the consolidated statements of income, and are 
not charged to segment profit.

The Company recognized impairment losses in the 
aggregate of 42,689 million yen of property, plant and 
equipment during fiscal 2008. 

The Company recorded impairment losses related to 
manufacturing facilities used in domestic semiconduc-
tors business. As the profitability of domestic business 
was getting low, the Company estimated that the carry-
ing amounts would not be recovered by the future cash 
flows. The fair value of manufacturing facilities was 
based on the discounted estimated future cash flows 
expected to result from the use of them.

The Company also recorded impairment losses 
related to certain buildings and manufacturing facilities 
used in device business at an overseas subsidiary. Due 
to the downsizing of business, the Company wrote 
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down the carrying amounts of these assets to the 
recoverable amount. The fair value was based on 
 discounted estimated future cash flow.

Impairment losses of 1,120 million yen, 2,230 million 
yen, 37,673 million yen and 1,666 million yen were 
related to “AVC Networks,” “Home Appliances,” 
 “Components and Devices” and the remaining seg-
ments, respectively.

The Company recognized impairment losses in the 
aggregate of 18,324 million yen of property, plant and 
equipment during fiscal 2007.

The Company closed a domestic factory that manu-
factured air conditioner devices and recorded an impair-
ment loss related to buildings, and machinery and 
equipment, as the Company estimated that the carrying 
amounts would not be recovered by the discounted 
estimated future cash flows expected to result from their 
eventual disposition. 

The Company also recorded impairment losses related 
to buildings, and machinery and equipment used in build-
ing equipment, and electronic and plastic materials of 
some domestic and overseas subsidiaries. The profitabil-
ity of each subsidiary was expected to be low in the 
future and the Company estimated the carrying amounts 
would not be recovered by the future cash flows. 

Impairment losses of 1,416 million yen, 3,901 million 
yen, 10,163 million yen, 1,571 million yen and 1,273 
 million yen were related to “Home Appliances,” 
 “Components and Devices,” “MEW and PanaHome,” 
“Other” and the remaining segments, respectively. 

The Company recognized impairment losses in the 
aggregate of 16,230 million yen of property, plant and 
equipment during fiscal 2006.

The Company decided to sell certain land and build-
ings, and classified those land and buildings as assets 
held for sale. These assets are included in other current 
assets in the consolidated balance sheet and the 
 Company recognized an impairment loss. The fair value 
of the land and buildings was determined by using a 
purchase price offered by a third party.

The Company also recorded impairment losses 
related to impairment of land and buildings used in con-
nection with the manufacture of certain information and 
communications equipment at a domestic subsidiary. As 
a result of plans to carry out selection and concentration 
of businesses, the Company estimated the carrying 
amounts would not be recovered by the future cash 
flows. The fair value of land was determined by specific 
appraisal. The fair value of buildings was determined 
based on the discounted estimated future cash flows 
expected to result from the use of the buildings and 
their eventual disposition. 

Impairment losses of 4,260 million yen, 2,771 million 
yen, 2,488 million yen, 2,754 million yen and 3,957 mil-
lion yen were related to “AVC Networks,” “Components 
and Devices,” “MEW and PanaHome,” “Other” and the 
remaining segments, respectively.
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7. Goodwill and other intangible assets
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by business segment for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 
are as follows:

Millions of yen

AVC 
Networks

Home 
Appliances

Components 
and Devices

MEW and 
PanaHome JVC Other Total

Balance at March 31, 2006  ............... ¥261,871 ¥22,535 ¥71,123 ¥43,515 ¥3,197 ¥10,896 ¥413,137
Goodwill acquired during the year  ...... 40 — 116 2,443 — 4,202 6,801
Goodwill written off related to  
 disposals during the year  ................. (8) (8) — — — (2,137) (2,153)
Goodwill impaired during the year  ...... (27,299) — — — (3,197) — (30,496)
Other  ................................................. 289 (8,254) — — — — (7,965)
Balance at March 31, 2007  ............... ¥234,893 ¥14,273 ¥71,239 ¥45,958 ¥    — ¥12,961 ¥379,324
Goodwill acquired during the year  ...... 7,711 1,405 574 45,906 — 29 55,625
Goodwill written off related to  
 disposals during the year  ................. (561) (922) (111) (1,923) — — (3,517)
Other  ................................................. — — (1,530) — — — (1,530)
Balance at March 31, 2008  ............... ¥242,043 ¥14,756 ¥70,172 ¥89,941 ¥   — ¥12,990 ¥429,902

Acquired intangible assets, excluding goodwill, at March 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:
Millions of yen

2008 2007

Gross carrying 
amount

Accumulated 
amortization

Gross carrying 
amount

Accumulated 
amortization

Average  
amortization 

period

Amortizing intangible assets:
 Patents  ............................................................... ¥ 61,654 ¥ 36,782 ¥ 53,339 ¥ 33,447 8 years
 Software  ............................................................. 233,375 162,946 221,023 148,537 4 years
 Other  .................................................................. 42,706 13,985 37,705 15,394 21 years

¥337,735 ¥213,713 ¥312,067 ¥197,378

Millions of yen

2008 2007

Non-amortizing intangible assets  ................................................................................................. ¥4,895 ¥942

The Company recognized an impairment loss of 
27,299 million yen during fiscal 2007 related to goodwill 
of a mobile communication subsidiary. This impairment 
is due to a decrease in the estimated fair value of the 
reporting unit caused by lack of anticipated demand 
generated by the number portability in Japan, unantici-
pated loss in cellular phone market share and intensifi-
cation of domestic competition.

The Company recognized an impairment loss of 
3,197 million yen during fiscal 2007 related to goodwill 
of JVC due primarily to profit performance in JVC’s 
 consumer electronics business being lower than the 
Company’s expectation.

The fair value was determined by using the esti-
mated present fair value of future cash flows or quoted 
market prices. 
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Aggregate amortization expense for amortizing intangible assets for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 
2006 was 38,343 million yen, 37,337 million yen and 33,918 million yen, respectively. Estimated amortization 
expense for the next five years is as follows:

Year ending March 31 Millions of yen

2009 ...................................................................................................................................... ¥32,764
2010 ...................................................................................................................................... 22,807
2011 ...................................................................................................................................... 15,342
2012 ...................................................................................................................................... 10,120
2013 ...................................................................................................................................... 6,898

The Company recorded an impairment loss of 1,865 million yen and 116 million yen of amortizing intangible 
assets in fiscal 2008 and 2007, respectively. The Company estimated the carrying amounts would not be recovered 
by the future cash flows, due to severe competition in the domestic market. The Company also recognized an 
impairment loss of 73 million yen, 239 million yen and 98 million yen of non-amortizing intangible assets, in connec-
tion with the decline of their market value during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The impairment loss is 
included in other deductions in the consolidated statements of income.

8. long-term debt and Short-term Borrowings
Long-term debt at March 31, 2008 and 2007 is set forth below:

Millions of yen

2008 2007

Straight bond, due 2011, interest 1.64%  ............................................................................ ¥100,000 ¥100,000
Straight bonds issued by subsidiaries, due 2007–2013, interest 0.6%–2.02%  .................... 50,150 80,000
Unsecured loans, due 2007–2013, effective interest 2.0% in 2008 and 1.2% in 2007 ......... 33,920 30,580
Secured yen loans by subsidiaries, due 2007–2027,  
 effective interest 2.55% in 2008 and 2.16% in 2007  ......................................................... 4,011 4,681
Capital lease obligations  ..................................................................................................... 122,267 65,602

310,348 280,863
Less current portion  ............................................................................................................ 78,002 54,083

¥232,346 ¥226,780

The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt after March 31, 2008 are as follows:
Year ending March 31 Millions of yen

2009 ...................................................................................................................................... ¥ 78,002
2010 ...................................................................................................................................... 37,570
2011 ...................................................................................................................................... 31,112
2012 ...................................................................................................................................... 117,323
2013 and thereafter  ............................................................................................................... 46,341
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As is customary in Japan, short-term and long-term 
bank loans are made under general agreements which 
provide that security and guarantees for future and pres-
ent indebtedness will be given upon request of the bank, 
and that the bank shall have the right, as the obligations 
become due, or in the event of their default, to offset 
cash deposits against such obligations due to the bank.

Each of the loan agreements grants the lender the 
right to request additional security or mortgages on 
certain assets. At March 31, 2008 and 2007, invest-
ments and advances, and property, plant and 

equipment with a book value of 6,218 million yen and 
6,061 million yen respectively, was pledged as collateral 
by subsidiaries for secured yen loans from banks. At 
March 31, 2008 and 2007, short-term loans subject to 
such general agreements amounted to 15,156 million 
yen and 39,876 million yen, respectively. The balance of 
short-term loans also includes borrowings under accep-
tances and short-term loans of foreign subsidiaries. The 
weighted-average interest rate on short-term borrow-
ings outstanding at March 31, 2008 and 2007 was 
4.6% and 5.1%, respectively.

9. Retirement and Severance Benefits
The Company and certain subsidiaries have contribu-
tory, funded benefit pension plans covering substantially 
all employees who meet eligibility requirements. Benefits 
under the plans are primarily based on the combination 
of years of service and compensation.

In addition to the plans described above, upon retire-
ment or termination of employment for reasons other 
than dismissal, employees are entitled to lump-sum 
payments based on the current rate of pay and length 
of service. If the termination is involuntary or caused by 
death, the severance payment is greater than in the 
case of voluntary termination. The lump-sum payment 
plans are not funded.

Effective April 1, 2002, the Company and some of 
the above-mentioned subsidiaries amended their benefit 
pension plans by introducing a “point-based benefits 
system,” and their lump-sum payment plans to cash 
balance pension plans. Under point-based benefits 
system, benefits are calculated based on accumulated 
points allocated to employees each year according to 
their job classification and years of service. Under the 
cash balance pension plans, each participant has an 
account which is credited yearly based on the current 
rate of pay and market-related interest rate.

The Company uses a December 31 measurement 
date for the majority of its benefit plans.

On March 31, 2007, the Company adopted the rec-
ognition and disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 158. 
SFAS No. 158 required the Company to recognize the 
funded status (i.e., the difference between the fair value 
of plan assets and the projected benefit obligations) of 
its pension plans in the March 31, 2007 consolidated 
balance sheet, with a corresponding adjustment to 
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of 
tax. The adjustment to accumulated other comprehen-
sive income (loss) at adoption represents the unrecog-
nized prior service benefit and unrecognized actuarial 
loss, both of which were previously netted against the 
plans’ funded status in the consolidated balance sheet 
pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 87. These 
amounts will be subsequently recognized as net periodic 
benefit cost pursuant to the Company’s historical 
accounting policy for amortizing such amounts. Further, 
actuarial gains and losses that arise in subsequent peri-
ods and that are not recognized as net periodic benefit 
cost in the same periods will be recognized as a com-
ponent of other comprehensive income (loss). Those 
amounts will be subsequently recognized as a compo-
nent of net periodic benefit cost on the same basis as 
the amounts recognized in accumulated other compre-
hensive income (loss) at adoption of SFAS No. 158.
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Reconciliation of beginning and ending balances of the benefit obligations of the contributory, funded benefit 
 pension plans, the unfunded lump-sum payment plans, and the cash balance pension plans, and the fair value of the 
plan assets at March 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

Millions of yen

2008 2007

Change in benefit obligations:
Benefit obligations at beginning of year  ..................................................... ¥1,955,007 ¥1,930,073
Service cost  .............................................................................................. 52,830 59,415
Interest cost  .............................................................................................. 50,667 52,659
Prior service benefit  ................................................................................... (1,930) (3,269)
Actuarial (gain) loss  ................................................................................... (14,173) 9,013
Benefits paid  ............................................................................................. (94,130) (96,278)
Effect of changes in consolidated subsidiaries  ........................................... (108,636) —
Foreign currency exchange impact  ............................................................ (10,832) 3,394
Benefit obligations at end of year  .............................................................. 1,828,803 1,955,007

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year  ............................................ 1,813,616 1,612,410
Actual return on plan assets  ...................................................................... (40,591) 119,382
Employer contributions  ............................................................................. 157,798 155,986
Benefits paid  ............................................................................................. (79,511) (76,744)
Effect of changes in consolidated subsidiaries  ........................................... (105,459) —
Foreign currency exchange impact  ............................................................ (8,219) 2,582
Fair value of plan assets at end of year  ...................................................... 1,737,634 1,813,616

Funded status  .............................................................................................. ¥     (91,169) ¥ (141,391)

The accumulated benefit obligation for the pension plans was 1,817,222 million yen and 1,945,020 million yen at 
March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The projected benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets for the pension plans with projected benefit 
obligations in excess of plan assets, and the accumulated benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets for 
the pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets at March 31, 2008 and 2007 are 
as follows:

Millions of yen

2008 2007

Plans with projected benefit obligations in excess of plan assets: 
Projected benefit obligations  ......................................................................... ¥840,967 ¥823,421
Fair value of plan assets  ................................................................................ 598,369 533,814

Plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets:
Accumulated benefit obligations .................................................................... 805,235 817,849
Fair value of plan assets  ................................................................................ 569,587 533,814

Accounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet at March 31, 2008 and 2007 consist of:
Millions of yen

2008 2007

Other assets  ..................................................................................................... ¥151,430 ¥ 148,216
Other current liabilities  ...................................................................................... (4,203) (8,649)
Retirement and severance benefits  ................................................................... (238,396) (280,958)

¥ (91,169) ¥(141,391)
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Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at March 31, 2008 and 2007 consist of:
Millions of yen

2008 2007

Prior service benefit  .......................................................................................... ¥(251,718) ¥(295,419)
Actuarial loss  .................................................................................................... 248,918 206,106

¥  (2,800) ¥ (89,313)

Net periodic benefit cost for the contributory, funded benefit pension plans, the unfunded lump-sum payment 
plans, and the cash balance pension plans of the Company for the three years ended March 31, 2008 consist of the 
following components:

Millions of yen

2008 2007 2006

Service cost – benefits earned during the year  ..................... ¥52,830 ¥59,415 ¥63,787
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation  ......................... 50,667 52,659 51,131
Expected return on plan assets  ........................................... (52,861) (50,069) (37,088)
Amortization of prior service benefit  ..................................... (27,046) (25,201) (26,376)
Recognized actuarial loss  .................................................... 15,448 18,407 43,145
Net periodic benefit cost  ...................................................... ¥39,038 ¥55,211 ¥94,599

The estimated prior service benefit and actuarial loss for the defined benefit pension plans that will be amortized 
from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into net periodic benefit cost for fiscal 2009 are gain of 25,874 
million yen and loss of 22,487 million yen, respectively.

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at March 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:
2008 2007

Discount rate  ................................................................................................. 2.7% 2.7%
Rate of compensation increase  ...................................................................... 1.7% 1.6%

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net cost for the three years ended March 31, 2008 are as follows:
2008 2007 2006

Discount rate  ....................................................................... 2.7% 2.7% 2.7%
Expected return on plan assets  ........................................... 3.1% 3.3% 3.0%
Rate of compensation increase  ............................................ 1.6% 1.6% 1.8%

The expected return on plan assets is determined based on the portfolio as a whole and not on the sum of the 
returns on individual asset categories, considering long-term historical returns, asset allocation, and future estimates 
of long-term investment returns.

The weighted-average asset allocations of the Company’s pension plans at March 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:
2008 2007

Asset category:
Equity securities  ......................................................................................... 43% 45%
Debt securities  ........................................................................................... 44 43
Life insurance company general accounts  ................................................. 9 7
Other  ......................................................................................................... 4 5
 Total  ....................................................................................................... 100% 100%
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Each plan of the Company has a different investment 
policy, which is designed to ensure sufficient plan assets 
are available to provide future payments of pension ben-
efits to the eligible plan participants and is individually 
monitored for compliance and appropriateness on an 
on-going basis. Considering the expected long-term 
rate of return on plan assets, each plan of the Company 
establishes a “basic” portfolio comprised of the optimal 
combination of equity securities and debt securities. 
Plan assets are invested in individual equity and debt 
securities using the guidelines of the “basic” portfolio in 
order to generate a total return that will satisfy the 
expected return on a mid-term to long-term basis. The 
Company evaluates the difference between expected 
return and actual return of invested plan assets on an 
annual basis to determine if such differences necessitate 

a revision in the formulation of the “basic” portfolio. The 
Company revises the “basic” portfolio when and to the 
extent considered necessary to achieve the expected 
long-term rate of return on plan assets.

The Company expects to contribute 158,882 million 
yen to its defined benefit plans in fiscal 2009.

The benefits expected to be paid from the defined 
pension plans in each fiscal year 2009–2013 are 90,692 
million yen, 94,457 million yen, 98,655 million yen, 
103,060 million yen and 105,865 million yen, respec-
tively. The aggregate benefits expected to be paid in the 
five years from fiscal 2014–2018 are 543,416 million 
yen. The expected benefits are based on the same 
assumptions used to measure the Company’s benefit 
obligation at December 31 and include estimated future 
employee service.

10. income taxes
Income before income taxes and income taxes for the three years ended March 31, 2008 are summarized as follows:

Millions of yen

Domestic Foreign Total

For the year ended March 31, 2008
Income before income taxes  ..................................................... ¥266,972 ¥168,021 ¥434,993
Income taxes:
 Current  .................................................................................. 85,009 43,172 128,181
 Deferred  ................................................................................ (16,068) 2,460 (13,608)
  Total income taxes  ............................................................. ¥ 68,941 ¥ 45,632 ¥114,573

For the year ended March 31, 2007
Income before income taxes  ..................................................... ¥317,007 ¥122,137 ¥439,144
Income taxes:
 Current  .................................................................................. 84,012 35,453 119,465
 Deferred  ................................................................................ 67,984 4,414 72,398
  Total income taxes  ............................................................. ¥151,996 ¥39,867 ¥191,863

For the year ended March 31, 2006
Income before income taxes  ..................................................... ¥292,083 ¥79,229 ¥371,312
Income taxes:
 Current  .................................................................................. 63,966 32,375 96,341
 Deferred  ................................................................................  66,377 4,371 70,748
  Total income taxes  ............................................................. ¥130,343 ¥36,746 ¥167,089

The Company and its subsidiaries in Japan are 
 subject to a National tax of 30%, an Inhabitant tax of 
approximately 20.5%, and a deductible Enterprise tax of 
approximately 7.4% varying by local jurisdiction, which, 

in aggregate, resulted in a combined statutory tax rate in 
Japan of approximately 40.5% for the three years ended 
March 31, 2008. 
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The effective tax rates for the years differ from the combined statutory tax rates for the following reasons:
2008 2007 2006

Combined statutory tax rate 40.5% 40.5% 40.5%
Tax credit related to research expenses  .................................... (1.2) (2.2) (1.5)
Lower tax rates of overseas subsidiaries  ................................... (6.9) (4.2) (3.7)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes  ................................ 0.7 0.8 3.6
Change in valuation allowance allocated to  
 income tax expenses  .............................................................. (5.4) 9.8 15.7
Tax effects attributable to investments in subsidiaries  ................ (4.8)  0.5 (12.0)
Other  ........................................................................................ 3.4 (1.5) 2.4

Effective tax rate  ........................................................................... 26.3% 43.7% 45.0%

The significant components of deferred income tax expenses for the three years ended March 31, 2008 are 
as follows:

Millions of yen

2008 2007 2006

Deferred tax expense (exclusive of the effects of  
 other components listed below)  .................................................. ¥ 16,898 ¥114,132 ¥89,824
Benefits of net operating loss carryforwards  ................................. (30,506) (41,734) (19,076)

¥(13,608) ¥ 72,398 ¥70,748

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and 
deferred tax liabilities at March 31, 2008 and 2007 are presented below:

Millions of yen

2008 2007

Deferred tax assets:
Inventory valuation  .......................................................................................... ¥ 87,441 ¥  94,489
Expenses accrued for financial statement purposes  
 but not currently included in taxable income  .................................................. 186,633 251,194
Property, plant and equipment  ........................................................................ 168,886 167,089
Retirement and severance benefits  ................................................................. 72,803 76,604
Tax loss carryforwards  .................................................................................... 242,474 249,356
Other  .............................................................................................................. 179,672 150,306
 Total gross deferred tax assets  .................................................................... 937,909 989,038
 Less valuation allowance  ............................................................................. 348,570 438,837
 Net deferred tax assets  ............................................................................... ¥589,339 ¥ 550,201

Deferred tax liabilities:
Net unrealized holding gains of available-for-sale securities  ............................. ¥ (44,018) ¥(127,588)
Other  .............................................................................................................. (53,810) (50,067)
 Total gross deferred tax liabilities  ................................................................. (97,828) (177,655)
 Net deferred tax assets  ............................................................................... ¥491,511 ¥ 372,546

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, 
management considers whether it is more likely than not 
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will 
not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax 
assets is dependent upon the generation of future tax-
able income during the periods in which those 

temporary differences and loss carryforwards become 
deductible. Management considers the scheduled rever-
sal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable 
income, and tax planning strategies in making this 
assessment. Based upon the level of historical taxable 
income and projections for future taxable income over 
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the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deduct-
ible, management believes it is more likely than not that 
the Company will realize the benefits of these deductible 
differences and loss carryforwards, net of the existing 
valuation allowances at March 31, 2008.

The net change in total valuation allowance for the 
years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was a 
decrease of 90,267 million yen, a decrease of 25,263 

million yen and an increase of 152,947 million yen, 
respectively.

At March 31, 2008, the Company had, for income 
tax purposes, net operating loss carryforwards of 
approximately 684,553 million yen, of which 600,961 
million yen expire from fiscal 2009 through 2015 and the 
substantial majority of the remaining balance expire 
thereafter or do not expire.

Net deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2008 and 2007 are reflected in the accompanying consolidated 
balance sheets under the following captions:

Millions of yen

2008 2007

Other current assets  ........................................................................................... ¥232,248 ¥298,878
Other assets  ....................................................................................................... 292,457 154,467
Other current liabilities  ........................................................................................ (1,082) (1,413)
Other liabilities  .................................................................................................... (32,112) (79,386)
Net deferred tax assets  ....................................................................................... ¥491,511 ¥372,546

The Company has not recognized a deferred tax 
liability for the undistributed earnings of its foreign sub-
sidiaries and foreign corporate joint ventures of 846,319 
million yen as of March 31, 2008, because the Company 
currently does not expect those unremitted earnings to 
reverse and become taxable to the Company in the fore-
seeable future. A deferred tax liability will be recognized 

when the Company no longer plans to permanently 
 reinvest undistributed earnings. Calculation of related 
unrecognized deferred tax liability is not practicable.

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 
on April 1, 2007. The implementation of FIN 48 did 
not require a cumulative effect adjustment to 
retained earnings.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized tax benefits for the year ended March 31, 
2008, is as follows:

Millions of yen

Balance at April 1, 2007  ........................................................................................................ ¥(4,281)
Increase related to prior year tax positions  ............................................................................. (4,657)
Decrease related to prior year tax positions  ........................................................................... 82
Increase related to current year tax positions  ......................................................................... (2,023)
Settlements  ........................................................................................................................... 1,552
Balance at March 31, 2008  ................................................................................................... ¥(9,327)

At March 31, 2008, the total amount of unrecognized 
tax benefits recorded in the consolidated balance sheet 
is 9,327 million yen and of that amount, 8,287 million 
yen, if recognized, would reduce the effective tax rate. 
The  Company does not expect that the total amount of 
unrecognized tax benefits will significantly change within 
the next twelve months. The Company accrues interests 
and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits and 
the amount of interest and penalties included in provi-
sion for income taxes and cumulative amount accrued 
are not material for the year ended March 31, 2008.

The Company files income tax returns in Japan and 
various foreign tax jurisdictions. There are a number of 
subsidiaries which operate within each of the Company’s 
major jurisdictions resulting in a range of open tax years. 
The open tax years for the Company and its  significant 
subsidiaries in Japan, the United States of America, the 
United Kingdom and China range between fiscal 2004 
and fiscal 2007.
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The Company may repurchase its common stock 
from the market pursuant to the former Japanese 
Commercial Code and the Company Law of Japan. 
For the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, 
respectively, 45,294,912, 63,385,266 and 48,945,141 
shares were repurchased for the aggregate cost of 
approximately 103,112 million yen, 153,179 million 
yen and 87,150 million yen, respectively, primarily with 
the intension to hold as treasury stock to improve 
capital efficiency.

The Company sold 127,610, 137,733 and 119,422 
shares of its treasury stock for the years ended March 
31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The difference 
between sales price and book value was charged to 
capital surplus in the consolidated balance sheets.

The Company Law of Japan provides that an amount 
equal to 10% of appropriations be appropriated as a 
capital reserve or legal reserve until the aggregated 
amount of capital reserve and legal reserve equals 25% 
of stated capital. The capital reserve and legal reserve 
are not available for dividends but may be transferred to 

capital surplus or retained earnings or stated capital 
upon approval of the shareholders’ meeting.

Cash dividends and transfers to the legal reserve 
charged to retained earnings during the three years 
ended March 31, 2008 represent dividends paid out 
during the periods and related appropriation to the legal 
reserve. Cash dividends per share paid during the three 
years ended March 31, 2008 amounted to 32.50 yen, 
25.00 yen and 17.50 yen, respectively. The accompany-
ing consolidated financial statements do not include any 
provisions for the year-end dividend of 17.50 yen per 
share, totaling approximately 36,770 million yen in 
respect of the year ended March 31, 2008, approved by 
the board of directors in April 2008.

In accordance with the Company Law of Japan, 
there are certain restrictions on payment of dividends 
in connection with the treasury stock repurchased. As 
a result of restrictions on the treasury stock repur-
chased, retained earnings of 599,466 million yen at 
March 31, 2008 were restricted as to the payment of 
cash dividends.

11. Stockholders’ equity

The Company’s directors and certain senior executives were granted options to purchase the Company’s 
common stock. All stock options become fully exercisable two years from the date of grant and have a four-year 
term. Information with respect to stock options is as follows:

Number of shares

Weighted-average 
exercise price 

(Yen)

Balance at March 31, 2005  ................................................................... 319,000 2,204
Exercised  ........................................................................................... (54,000) 2,001
Forfeited  ............................................................................................ (97,000) 2,186

Balance at March 31, 2006  ................................................................... 168,000 2,280
Exercised  ........................................................................................... (48,000) 1,922
Forfeited  ............................................................................................ (73,000) 2,690

Balance at March 31, 2007  ................................................................... 47,000 2,008
Exercised  ........................................................................................... (8,000) 1,895
Forfeited  ............................................................................................ (27,000) 2,163

Balance at March 31, 2008,  
 weighted-average remaining life—0.25 years  ....................................... 12,000 ¥1,734

Treasury stock reserved for options at March 31, 2007 was 30,000 shares.
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12. other comprehensive income (loss)
Components of other comprehensive income (loss) for the three years ended March 31, 2008 are as follows:

Millions of yen

Pre-tax 
amount

Tax 
expense

Net-of-tax 
amount

For the year ended March 31, 2008
 Translation adjustments:
  Translation adjustments arising during the period ................................... ¥(128,047) ¥       — ¥(128,047)
  Less: Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses  
   included in net income  ......................................................................... (1,207) — (1,207)
  Net translation adjustments  ................................................................... (129,254) — (129,254)
 Unrealized holding gains of available-for-sale securities:
  Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period  ..................... (199,198) 83,370 (115,828)
  Less: Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses  
   included in net income  ......................................................................... 735 (296) 439
  Net unrealized gains (losses)  .................................................................. (198,463) 83,074 (115,389)
 Unrealized holding gains of derivative instruments:
  Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period  ..................... 5,014 (1,914) 3,100
  Less: Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses  
   included in net income  ......................................................................... 612 (248) 364
  Net unrealized gains (losses)  .................................................................. 5,626 (2,162) 3,464
 Pension liability adjustments:
  Prior service benefit arising during the period  ......................................... 1,954 (6) 1,948
  Less: Amortization of prior service benefit included in  
   net periodic benefit cost  ...................................................................... (24,197) 7,806 (16,391)
  Net prior service benefit  ......................................................................... (22,243) 7,800 (14,443)
  Actuarial loss arising during the period ................................................... (62,744) 27,095 (35,649)
  Less: Amortization of actuarial loss included in  
   net periodic benefit cost  ...................................................................... 13,660 (3,383) 10,277
  Net actuarial loss  ................................................................................... (49,084) 23,712 (25,372)
  Net pension liability adjustments  ............................................................ (71,327) 31,512 (39,815)
 Other comprehensive income (loss)  ........................................................... ¥(393,418) ¥112,424 ¥(280,994)
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Millions of yen

Pre-tax 
amount

Tax 
expense

Net-of-tax 
amount

For the year ended March 31, 2007
 Translation adjustments:
  Translation adjustments arising during the period ..................................... ¥57,312 ¥     — ¥57,312
  Less: Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses  
   included in net income  ........................................................................... 5,481 — 5,481
  Net translation adjustments  ..................................................................... 62,793 — 62,793
 Unrealized holding gains of available-for-sale securities:
  Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period  ....................... 36,467 (12,232) 24,235
  Less: Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses  
   included in net income  ........................................................................... (11,200) 2,490 (8,710)
  Net unrealized gains (losses)  .................................................................... 25,267 (9,742) 15,525
 Unrealized holding gains of derivative instruments:
  Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period  ....................... (19,778) 7,900 (11,878)
  Less: Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses  
   included in net income  ........................................................................... 19,183 (7,769) 11,414
  Net unrealized gains (losses)  .................................................................... (595) 131 (464)
 Minimum pension liability adjustments  ......................................................... (5,722) (47) (5,769)
  Other comprehensive income (loss)  ......................................................... ¥81,743 ¥(9,658) ¥72,085

Millions of yen

Pre-tax 
amount

Tax 
expense

Net-of-tax 
amount

For the year ended March 31, 2006
 Translation adjustments:
  Translation adjustments arising during the period ..................................... ¥134,943 ¥      — ¥134,943
  Less: Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses  
   included in net income  ........................................................................... (51,632) — (51,632)
  Net translation adjustments  ..................................................................... 83,311 — 83,311
 Unrealized holding gains of available-for-sale securities:
  Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period  ....................... 188,915 (78,609) 110,306
  Less: Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses  
   included in net income  ........................................................................... (63,100) 25,492 (37,608)
  Net unrealized gains (losses)  .................................................................... 125,815 (53,117) 72,698
 Unrealized holding gains of derivative instruments:
  Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period  ....................... (25,581) 10,412 (15,169)
  Less: Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses  
   included in net income  ........................................................................... 16,961 (6,869) 10,092
  Net unrealized gains (losses)  .................................................................... (8,620) 3,543 (5,077)
 Minimum pension liability adjustments  ......................................................... 101,805 (40,479) 61,326
  Other comprehensive income (loss)  ......................................................... ¥302,311 ¥(90,053) ¥212,258
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13. net income per Share
A reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted net income per share computation for 
the three years ended March 31, 2008 is as follows:

Millions of yen

2008 2007 2006

Net income  ....................................................... ¥281,877 ¥217,185 ¥154,410

Number of shares

Average common shares outstanding  ............... 2,120,986,052 2,182,791,138 2,222,376,333
Dilutive effect:
 Stock options  ............................................... 3,818 13,858 11,909
Diluted common shares outstanding  ................. 2,120,989,870 2,182,804,996 2,222,388,242

Yen

Net income per share:
 Basic  ............................................................ ¥132.90 ¥99.50 ¥69.48
 Diluted  .......................................................... 132.90 99.50 69.48

14. Restructuring charges
In connection with the reorganization of the Company’s operations, the Company has incurred certain restructuring 
charges. Components and related amounts of the restructuring charges, before the related tax effects, for the years 
ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

Millions of yen

2008 2007 2006

Expenses associated with the implementation of  
 early retirement programs: 
 Domestic  ..................................................................................... ¥27,050 ¥ 8,733 ¥31,446
 Overseas  ..................................................................................... 5,594 5,465 5,573
  Total  ......................................................................................... 32,644 14,198 37,019
Expenses associated with the closure and  
 integration of locations  ................................................................... 6,922 5,376 11,956
 Total restructuring charges  ........................................................... ¥39,566 ¥19,574 ¥48,975

These restructuring charges are included in other deductions in the consolidated statements of income.
The Company has provided early retirement programs to those employees voluntarily leaving the Company. The 

accrued early retirement programs are recognized when the employees accept the offer and the amount can be 
reasonably estimated. Expenses associated with the closure and integration of locations include amounts such as 
moving expense of facilities and costs to terminate leasing contracts incurred at domestic and overseas manufac-
turing plants and sales offices. An analysis of the accrued restructuring charges for the years ended March 31, 
2008, 2007 and 2006 is as follows:

Millions of yen

2008 2007 2006

Balance at beginning of the year  ...................................................... ¥10,020 ¥ 1,335 ¥ 3,407
New charges  ................................................................................... 39,566 19,574 48,975
Cash payments  ............................................................................... (44,825) (10,889) (51,047)
Balance at end of the year  ............................................................... ¥ 4,761 ¥10,020 ¥ 1,335
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AVC Networks
AVC Networks segment restructured mainly to acceler-
ate selection and concentration of its businesses for 
improving its cost competitiveness. The restructuring 
activities mainly consisted of the implementation of early 
retirement programs in Japan.

Total restructuring charges amounted to 15,356 
 million yen, including expenses associated with the 
implementation of early retirement programs of 14,168 
million yen.

Home Appliances
Home Appliances segment restructured its operations to 
accelerate concentration of its business for strengthen-
ing its management structure. The restructuring activities 
mainly consisted of integrations in Japan.

Total restructuring charges amounted to 8,375 million 
yen, including expenses associated with the implemen-
tation of early retirement programs of 5,611 million yen.

Components and Devices
Components and Devices segment restructured mainly 
to improve efficiency in its battery business. 

Total restructuring charges amounted to 3,128 
 million yen.

MEW and PanaHome
MEW and PanaHome segment restructured mainly its 
housing business in Japan. The restructuring activities 
mainly consisted of the implementation of early retire-
ment programs. 

Total restructuring charges amounted to 11,581 
 million yen, including expenses associated with the 
implementation of early retirement programs of 8,888 
million yen.

JVC
JVC segment incurred restructuring charges in the 
amount of 750 million yen in its domestic entertain-
ment business.

Other
Other segment incurred restructuring charges in the 
amount of 376 million yen mainly in overseas sales 
companies.

The following represent significant restructuring activities for the year ended March 31, 2007 by business segment:

AVC Networks
AVC Networks segment restructured mainly to acceler-
ate selection and concentration of its businesses for 
strengthening its management structure. The restructur-
ing activities mainly consisted of the implementation of 
early retirement programs in Japan and Europe.

Total restructuring charges amounted to 11,909 
 million yen, including expenses associated with the 
implementation of early retirement programs of 10,440 
million yen.

Home Appliances
Home Appliances segment restructured its operations. 
The restructuring activities mainly consisted of closure 
and integrations in Japan.

Total restructuring charges amounted to 3,113 
 million yen.

Components and Devices
Components and Devices segment restructured mainly 
to enhance cost competitiveness as well as to address 
continuous price declines. The restructuring activities 
mainly consisted of the implementation of early retire-
ment program in Asia for electronic devices business.

Total restructuring charges amounted to 3,468 
 million yen.

MEW and PanaHome
MEW and PanaHome segment incurred restructuring 
charges in the amount of 328 million yen mainly in Japan.

JVC
JVC segment incurred restructuring charges in the 
amount of 531 million yen mainly in Asia.

Other
Other segment incurred restructuring charges in the 
amount of 225 million yen mainly in domestic sales 
companies.

The following represent significant restructuring activities for the year ended March 31, 2008 by business segment:
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The following represent significant restructuring activities for the year ended March 31, 2006 by business segment:

AVC Networks
AVC Networks segment restructured mainly to address 
price declines in digital AV products. The restructuring 
activities mainly consisted of the implementation of early 
retirement programs.

Total restructuring charges amounted to 3,447 
 million yen.

Home Appliances
Home Appliances segment restructured its operations. 
The restructuring activities mainly consisted of closure 
and integration of locations in Japan.

Total restructuring charges amounted to 2,655 
 million yen.

Components and Devices
Components and Devices segment restructured mainly 
to enhance cost competitiveness as well as to address 
sharp price declines. The restructuring activities mainly 
consisted of the implementation of early retirement 
 programs in Japan for semiconductor business. 

Total restructuring charges amounted to 21,510 
 million yen, including expenses associated with the 
implementation of early retirement programs of 20,183 
million yen.

MEW and PanaHome
MEW and PanaHome segment restructured to 
strengthen its management structures by realigning its 
organization. The restructuring activities mainly con-
sisted of the implementation of early retirement pro-
grams and closure and integration of manufacturing 
plants and sales offices.

Total restructuring charges amounted to 9,385 million 
yen, including expenses associated with the implemen-
tation of early retirement programs of 4,832 million yen.

JVC
JVC segment restructured to strengthen its company-
wide organizational and employment structure. The 
restructuring activities mainly consisted of the implemen-
tation of early retirement programs. 

Total restructuring charges amounted to 8,891 
 million yen.

Other
Other segment incurred restructuring charges in the 
amount of 3,087 million yen mainly in overseas sales 
companies.

15. Supplementary information to the Statements of income and cash Flows
Research and development costs, advertising costs, shipping and handling costs and depreciation charged to 
income for the three years ended March 31, 2008 are as follows:

Millions of yen

2008 2007 2006

Research and development costs  .............................................. ¥554,538 ¥578,087 ¥564,781
Advertising costs  ....................................................................... 200,890 199,155 181,235
Shipping and handling costs  ...................................................... 159,418 170,311 170,469
Depreciation  .............................................................................. 282,102 280,177 275,213

Foreign exchange gains and losses included in other 
deductions for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 
and 2006 are losses of 11,492 million yen, 18,950 
 million yen and 13,475 million yen, respectively.

Shipping and handling costs are included in selling, 
general and administrative expenses in the consolidated 
statements of income.

Included in other deductions for the year ended 
March 31, 2006 are claim expenses of 34,340 million 
yen which is principally related to losses associated with 
kerosene fan heaters in the amount of 24,905 million 
yen. Losses from kerosene fan heaters represent costs 
associated with customer notification through various 
media channels, leaflet printing, travel, and inspection 
and repair costs.
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In fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company sold, 
without recourse, trade receivables of 443,464 million 
yen, 315,329 million yen and 193,974 million yen to 
independent third parties for proceeds of 441,778 
 million yen, 314,265 million yen and 193,415 million 
yen, and recorded losses on the sale of trade receiv-
ables of 1,686 million yen, 1,064 million yen and 559 
million yen, respectively. In fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, 
the  Company sold, with recourse, trade receivables of 
397,796 million yen, 303,769 million yen and 69,308 
million yen to independent third parties for proceeds of 
397,421 million yen, 303,561 million yen and 69,261 
million yen, and recorded losses on the sale of trade 
receivables of 375 million yen, 208 million yen and 47 
million yen, respectively. Those losses are included in 

Millions of yen

2008 2007 2006

Cash paid:
 Interest  ...................................................................................... ¥ 20,911 ¥ 22,202 ¥21,853
 Income taxes  ............................................................................ 122,416 109,692 92,469
Noncash investing and financing activities:
 Conversion of bonds  ................................................................. — — 20,330
 Capital leases 36,330 27,803 22,935

JVC and its subsidiaries became associated companies under equity method from consolidated companies in 
August, 2007. Certain financial information of JVC and its subsidiaries at the date of deconsolidation is as follows:

Millions of yen

Assets:
 Current assets  ................................................................................................................... ¥311,080
 Other assets  ...................................................................................................................... 115,546
  Total  ............................................................................................................................... ¥426,626
Liabilities:
 Current liabilities  ................................................................................................................. 242,336
 Other liabilities  .................................................................................................................... 36,149
  Total  ............................................................................................................................... ¥278,485

selling, general and administrative expenses. The 
 Company is responsible for servicing the receivables. 
Included in trade notes receivable and trade accounts 
receivable at March 31, 2008 are amounts of 50,192 
million yen without recourse and 33,732 million yen 
with recourse scheduled to be sold to independent 
third parties.

The sale of trade receivables was accounted for 
under SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfer and 
 Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of 
Liabilities.”

Interest expenses and income taxes paid, and non-
cash investing and financing activities for the three years 
ended March 31, 2008 are as follows:
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16. derivatives and hedging activities
The Company operates internationally, giving rise to 
significant exposure to market risks arising from 
changes in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and 
commodity prices. The Company assesses these risks 
by continually monitoring changes in these exposures 
and by evaluating hedging opportunities. Derivative 
financial instruments utilized by the Company to hedge 
these risks are comprised principally of foreign exchange 
contracts, interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps 
and commodity derivatives. The Company does not 
hold or issue derivative financial instruments for any 
purposes other than hedging.

Gains and losses related to derivative instruments are 
classified in other income (deductions) in the consoli-
dated statements of income. The amount of the hedging 
ineffectiveness and net gain or loss excluded from the 

assessment of hedge effectiveness is not material for 
the three years ended March 31, 2008. Amounts 
included in accumulated other comprehensive income 
(loss) at March 31, 2008 are expected to be recognized 
in earnings principally over the next twelve months. The 
maximum term over which the Company is hedging 
exposures to the variability of cash flows for foreign 
currency exchange risk is approximately five months.

The Company is exposed to credit risk in the event 
of non-performance by counterparties to the derivative 
contracts, but such risk is considered mitigated by the 
high credit rating of the counterparties.

The contract amounts of foreign exchange con-
tracts, interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps and 
commodity futures at March 31, 2008 and 2007 are 
as follows:

Millions of yen

2008 2007

Forward:
 To sell foreign currencies  ............................................................................... ¥312,390 ¥409,216
 To buy foreign currencies  .............................................................................. 185,267 323,478
Variable-paying interest rate swaps  ................................................................... — 6,136
Cross currency swaps  ...................................................................................... 32,717 14,388
Commodity futures:
 To sell commodity  ......................................................................................... 129,425 86,023
 To buy commodity  ........................................................................................ 294,884 210,890

17. Fair value of Financial instruments
The following methods and assumptions were used to 
estimate the fair value of each class of financial instru-
ments for which it is practicable to estimate that value:

Cash and cash equivalents, Time deposits, Trade 
 receivables, Short-term borrowings, Trade payables and 
Accrued expenses
The carrying amount approximates fair value because of 
the short maturity of these instruments.

Short-term investments
The fair value of short-term investments is estimated 
based on quoted market prices.

Investments and advances
The fair value of investments and advances is esti-
mated based on quoted market prices or the present 
value of future cash flows using appropriate current 
discount rates.

Long-term debt
The fair value of long-term debt is estimated based on 
quoted market prices or the present value of future cash 
flows using appropriate current discount rates.

Derivative financial instruments
The fair value of derivative financial instruments, all of 
which are used for hedging purposes, are estimated by 
obtaining quotes from brokers.
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The estimated fair values of financial instruments, all of which are held or issued for purposes other than trading, 
at March 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

Millions of yen

2008 2007
Carrying 
amount

Fair 
value

Carrying 
amount

Fair 
value

Non-derivatives:
 Assets:
  Short-term investments  .................................................... ¥ 47,414 ¥ 47,414 ¥   93,179 ¥   93,179 
  Other investments and advances  ..................................... 686,510 686,575 1,056,515 1,056,401 
 Liabilities:
  Long-term debt, including current portion  ......................... (310,348) (312,674) (280,863) (282,309)
Derivatives:
 Other current assets:
  Forward:
   To sell foreign currencies  ............................................... 11,682 11,682 — —
  Commodity futures to buy commodity  .............................. 28,325 28,325 33,996 33,996 
 Other current liabilities:
  Forward:
   To sell foreign currencies  ............................................... — — (842) (842)
   To buy foreign currencies  .............................................. (2,388) (2,388) (706) (706)
  Cross currency swaps  ...................................................... (874) (874) (159) (159)
  Commodity futures to sell commodity ............................... (9,746) (9,746) (11,243) (11,243)

Limitations
Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market information and information 
about the financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of 
significant judgements and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could signifi-
cantly affect the estimates.

18. commitments and contingent liabilities
The Company provides guarantees to third parties 
mainly on bank loans provided to associated companies 
and customers. The guarantees are made to enhance 
their credit. For each guarantee provided, the Company 
is required to perform under the guarantee if the guaran-
teed party defaults on a payment. At March 31, 2008, 
the maximum amount of undiscounted payments the 
Company would have to make in the event of default is 
16,112 million yen. The carrying amount of the liabilities 
recognized for the Company’s obligations as a guarantor 
under those guarantees at March 31, 2008 and 2007 
was insignificant.

As discussed in Note 5, in connection with the sale 
and lease back of certain machinery and equipment, the 
Company guarantees a specific value of the leased 
assets. For each guarantee provided, the Company is 
required to perform under the guarantee if certain condi-
tions are met during or at the end of the lease term. At 
March 31, 2008, the maximum amount of undiscounted 
payments the Company would have to make in the 
event that these conditions are met is 35,228 million yen. 
The carrying amount of the liabilities recognized for the 
Company’s obligations as guarantors under those guar-
antees at March 31, 2008 and 2007 was insignificant.
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The Company issues contractual product warranties under which it generally guarantees the performance of 
products delivered and services rendered for a certain period or term. The change in accrued warranty costs for the 
years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 are  summarized as follows:

Millions of yen

2008 2007

Balance at beginning of year  .................................................................................. ¥38,079 ¥37,436 
Change in consolidated subsidiaries  ...................................................................... (5,189) —
Liabilities accrued for warranties issued during the period  ...................................... 42,178 48,068 
Warranty claims paid during the period  .................................................................. (37,016) (47,153)
Changes in liabilities for pre-existing warranties during the period,  
 including expirations  ............................................................................................ (1,874) (272)
Balance at end of year  ........................................................................................... ¥36,178 ¥38,079 

At March 31, 2008, commitments outstanding for the 
purchase of property, plant and equipment approxi-
mated 108,148 million yen. Contingent liabilities at 
March 31, 2008 for discounted export bills of exchange 
amounted to 75 million yen.

Liabilities for environmental remediation costs are 
recorded when it is probable that obligations have been 
incurred and the amounts can be reasonably estimated. 
In January 2003, the Company announced that dis-
posed electric equipment that contained polychlorinated 
biphenyls (PCB equipment) might be buried in the 
ground of its four manufacturing facilities and one former 
manufacturing facility. The applicable laws require that 
PCB equipment be appropriately maintained and 

disposed of by July 2016. The Company has accrued 
estimated total cost of 11,453 million yen for necessary 
actions such as investigating whether the PCB equip-
ment is buried at the facilities, including excavations, 
maintaining and disposing the PCB equipment that is 
already discovered, and soil remediation, since it repre-
sents management’s best estimate or minimum of the 
cost, but the payments are not considered to be fixed 
and reliably determinable.

There are a number of legal actions against the 
 Company and certain subsidiaries. Management is of 
the opinion that damages, if any, resulting from these 
actions will not have a material effect on the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements.

19. Segment information
In accordance with SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about 
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,” the 
segments reported below are the components of the 
Company for which separate financial information is 
available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operat-
ing decision maker of the Company in deciding how to 
allocate resources and in assessing performance.

Business segments correspond to categories of 
activity classified primarily by markets, products and 
brand names. “AVC Networks” includes video and audio 
equipment, and information and communications equip-
ment. “Home Appliances” includes household equip-
ment. “Components and Devices” includes electronic 
components, semiconductors, electric motors and 

 batteries. “MEW and PanaHome” includes electrical 
supplies, electric products, building materials and 
 equipment, and housing business. “JVC” includes prod-
ucts marketed under the brand name of JVC or Victor. 
“Other” includes electronic-parts-mounting machines, 
industrial robots and industrial equipment.

The healthcare business was transferred to Panasonic 
Shikoku Electronics Co., Ltd. at April 1, 2007. As a result 
of the transfer, the segment information of all prior peri-
ods presented has been reclassified to conform with the 
presentation for the year ended March 31, 2008.

Victor Company of Japan, Ltd. and its subsidiaries 
became associated companies under the equity 
method from August, 2007.
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Information by segment for the three years ended March 31, 2008 is shown in the tables below:

By Business Segment:
Millions of yen

2008 2007 2006

Sales:
AVC Networks:
 Customers  ................................................................... ¥4,267,217 ¥4,005,005 ¥3,946,952 
 Intersegment  ................................................................ 52,377 59,106 57,746 
  Total  ......................................................................... 4,319,594 4,064,111 4,004,698 
Home Appliances:
 Customers  ................................................................... 1,126,037 1,063,033 1,016,604 
 Intersegment  ................................................................ 190,365 184,103 171,668 
  Total  ......................................................................... 1,316,402 1,247,136 1,188,272 
Components and Devices:
 Customers  ................................................................... 989,414 987,933 954,011 
 Intersegment  ................................................................ 409,270 389,824 414,247 
  Total  ......................................................................... 1,398,684 1,377,757 1,368,258 
MEW and PanaHome:
 Customers  ................................................................... 1,854,023 1,809,503 1,695,949 
 Intersegment  ................................................................ 56,269 49,210 51,258 
  Total  ......................................................................... 1,910,292 1,858,713 1,747,207 
JVC:
 Customers  ................................................................... 181,296 640,746 697,150 
 Intersegment  ................................................................ 1,846 5,833 5,966 
  Total  ......................................................................... 183,142 646,579 703,116 
Other:
 Customers  ................................................................... 650,941 601,950 583,663 
 Intersegment  ................................................................ 885,189 882,026 731,629 
  Total  ......................................................................... 1,536,130 1,483,976 1,315,292 
Eliminations  ..................................................................... (1,595,316) (1,570,102) (1,432,514)
 Consolidated total  ........................................................ ¥9,068,928 ¥9,108,170 ¥8,894,329 
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Millions of yen

2008 2007 2006

Segment profit:
AVC Networks  ................................................................. ¥  252,239 ¥  220,080 ¥ 192,955 
Home Appliances  ............................................................ 86,412 83,084 75,065 
Components and Devices  ................................................ 104,989 99,884 81,111 
MEW and PanaHome  ...................................................... 96,405 78,889 72,694 
JVC  ................................................................................. (9,672) (5,659) (5,782)
Other  ............................................................................... 64,205 60,500 62,225 
Corporate and eliminations  .............................................. (75,097) (77,237) (63,995)
 Total segment profit  ...................................................... 519,481 459,541 414,273 

Interest income  .................................................................... 34,371 30,553 28,216 
Dividends received  .............................................................. 10,317 7,597 6,567 
Other income  ....................................................................... 70,460 114,545 147,399 
Interest expense  .................................................................. (20,357) (20,906) (21,686)
Goodwill impairment  ............................................................ — (30,496) (50,050)
Other deductions  ................................................................. (179,279) (121,690) (153,407)
  Consolidated income before income taxes  ................... ¥  434,993 ¥  439,144 ¥  371,312 

Identifiable assets:
AVC Networks  ................................................................. ¥2,592,856 ¥2,341,967 ¥2,284,139 
Home Appliances  ............................................................ 758,976 715,481 630,369 
Components and Devices  ................................................ 1,013,522 989,293 966,684 
MEW and PanaHome  ...................................................... 1,356,588 1,354,679 1,371,405 
JVC  ................................................................................. — 419,980 438,456 
Other  ............................................................................... 416,217 461,884 503,798 
Corporate and eliminations  .............................................. 1,305,455 1,613,674 1,769,789 

  Consolidated total  ........................................................ ¥7,443,614 ¥7,896,958 ¥7,964,640 

Depreciation (including intangibles other than goodwill):
AVC Networks  ................................................................. ¥   91,607 ¥   79,803 ¥   76,470 
Home Appliances  ............................................................ 37,457 31,918 29,299 
Components and Devices  ................................................ 89,799 85,300 88,717 
MEW and PanaHome  ...................................................... 44,124 48,487 46,575 
JVC  ................................................................................. 6,008 17,844 17,759 
Other  ............................................................................... 14,835 15,561 38,253 
Corporate and eliminations  .............................................. 36,615 38,601 12,058 

  Consolidated total  ........................................................ ¥  320,445 ¥  317,514 ¥  309,131 

Capital investment (including intangibles other than goodwill):
AVC Networks  ................................................................. ¥  228,358 ¥  168,448 ¥  127,040 
Home Appliances  ............................................................ 48,925 49,040 44,644 
Components and Devices  ................................................ 139,003 138,930 124,219 
MEW and PanaHome  ...................................................... 51,676 47,558 44,849 
JVC  ................................................................................. 3,542 15,478 16,994 
Other  ............................................................................... 13,331 17,325 12,092 
Corporate and eliminations  .............................................. 18,625 39,479 16,688 

  Consolidated total  ........................................................ ¥  503,460 ¥  476,258 ¥  386,526 
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Corporate expenses include certain corporate R&D 
expenditures and general corporate expenses.

Corporate assets consist of cash and cash equiva-
lents, time deposits, marketable securities in short-term 

investments, investments and advances and other 
assets related to unallocated expenses.

Intangibles mainly represent patents and software.

By Geographical Area:

Sales attributed to countries based upon the customer’s location and property, plant and equipment are as follows:
Millions of yen

2008 2007 2006

Sales:
Japan  .............................................................................. ¥4,544,772 ¥4,616,520 ¥4,611,440
North and South America  ................................................ 1,250,677 1,381,104 1,387,424
Europe  ............................................................................. 1,212,971 1,217,931 1,113,556
Asia and Others  ............................................................... 2,060,508 1,892,615 1,781,909
 Consolidated total  ........................................................ ¥9,068,928 ¥9,108,170 ¥8,894,329

United States of America included in  
 North and South America  ............................................... ¥1,081,183 ¥1,213,867 ¥1,206,357

Property, plant and equipment:
Japan  .............................................................................. ¥1,353,421 ¥1,171,223 ¥1,201,266
North and South America  ................................................ 34,260 53,317 58,003
Europe  ............................................................................. 69,844 71,594 66,084
Asia and Others  ............................................................... 299,848 346,159 306,986
 Consolidated total  ........................................................ ¥1,757,373 ¥1,642,293 ¥1,632,339

There are no individually material countries which 
should be separately disclosed in North and South 
America, Europe, and Asia and Others, except for the 
United States of America on sales. Transfers between 

business segments or geographic segments are made 
at arms-length prices. There are no sales to a single 
external major customer for the three years ended 
March 31, 2008.
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The following information shows sales, geographical 
profit and identifiable assets which are attributed to 
geographic areas based on the country location of 
the Company or its subsidiaries for the three years 
ended March 31, 2008. In addition to the disclosure 

requirements under SFAS No. 131, the Company 
discloses this information as supplemental information 
in light of the disclosure requirements of the Japanese 
Financial Instruments and Exchange Law, which a 
Japanese public company is subject to:

Millions of yen

2008 2007 2006

Sales:
Japan:
 Customers  ................................................................... ¥4,908,850 ¥4,941,413 ¥4,945,802
 Intersegment  ................................................................ 1,880,654 2,029,589 1,944,537
  Total  ......................................................................... 6,789,504 6,971,002 6,890,339
North and South America:
 Customers  ................................................................... 1,196,419 1,335,631 1,340,352
 Intersegment  ................................................................ 16,646 21,654 26,185
  Total  ......................................................................... 1,213,065 1,357,285 1,366,537
Europe:
 Customers  ................................................................... 1,170,932 1,162,795 1,067,306
 Intersegment  ................................................................ 47,300 47,201 20,361
  Total  ......................................................................... 1,218,232 1,209,996 1,087,667
Asia and Others:
 Customers  ................................................................... 1,792,727 1,668,331 1,540,869
 Intersegment  ................................................................ 1,167,322 1,206,340 1,175,492
  Total  ......................................................................... 2,960,049 2,874,671 2,716,361
Eliminations  ..................................................................... (3,111,922) (3,304,784) (3,166,575)
 Consolidated total  ........................................................ ¥9,068,928 ¥9,108,170 ¥8,894,329

Geographical profit:
Japan  .............................................................................. ¥  422,071 ¥  409,395 ¥  374,129
North and South America  ................................................ 22,136 22,500 16,773
Europe  ............................................................................. 20,438 13,903 4,511
Asia and Others  ............................................................... 125,056 89,460 81,337
Corporate and eliminations  .............................................. (70,220) (75,717) (62,477)
 Consolidated total  ........................................................ ¥  519,481 ¥  459,541 ¥  414,273

Identifiable assets:
Japan  .............................................................................. ¥4,410,600 ¥4,416,586 ¥4,442,776
North and South America  ................................................ 320,487 455,216 443,432
Europe  ............................................................................. 430,149 452,924 412,948
Asia and Others  ............................................................... 1,208,534 1,265,170 1,235,438
Corporate and eliminations  .............................................. 1,073,844 1,307,062 1,430,046
 Consolidated total  ........................................................ ¥7,443,614 ¥7,896,958 ¥7,964,640
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The management of Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. is responsible for establishing and 

maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under 

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

The Company’s management evaluated the effectiveness of internal control over financial 

reporting as of March 31, 2008. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set 

forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal 

Control-Integrated Framework.

Based on its assessment, management concluded that, as of March 31, 2008, the Company’s 

internal control over financial reporting was effective.

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, KPMG AZSA & Co. has issued an 

audit report on our evaluation of internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2008.

June 30, 2008

Fumio Ohtsubo

President

Makoto Uenoyama

Director 

(In charge of Accounting and Finance)

ManaGeMent’S RePoRt on inteRnal contRol  
oveR Financial RePoRtinG
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The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd.: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries 
as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows 
for each of the years in the three-year period ended March 31, 2008. These consolidated financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial 
statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, and the results of their 
operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended March 31, 2008, in conformity with 
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States), Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 
2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria), and our report dated June 30, 2008 expressed an 
unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. 

Osaka, Japan
June 30, 2008
 

RePoRt oF indePendent ReGiSteRed PuBlic accountinG FiRM
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The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd.: 

We have audited Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries’ Internal Control over Financial Reporting as of 
March 31, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). The Company’s management is responsible for 
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control 
over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an 
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion, Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal 
control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2008, based on the COSO criteria. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States), the consolidated balance sheets of Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2008 
and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in 
the three-year period ended March 31, 2008, and our report dated June 30, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on 
those consolidated financial statements. 
 

Osaka, Japan
June 30, 2008

RePoRt oF indePendent ReGiSteRed PuBlic accountinG FiRM
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BuSineSS doMain coMPanieS 
and GRouP coMPanieS 
(as of March 31, 2008)

inveStoR inFoRMation

AVC NETWORKS

Panasonic AVC Networks Company

Panasonic Communications Co., Ltd.

Panasonic Mobile Communications Co., Ltd.

Panasonic Automotive Systems Company

Panasonic System Solutions Company

Panasonic Shikoku Electronics Co., Ltd.

HOME APPLIANCES

Matsushita Home Appliances Company

Matsushita Refrigeration Company 

Lighting Company

Matsushita Ecology Systems Co., Ltd.

COMPONENTS AND DEVICES

Semiconductor Company

Panasonic Electronic Devices Co., Ltd.

Matsushita Battery Industrial Co., Ltd.

Motor Company

MEW AND PANAHOME

Matsushita Electric Works, Ltd.

PanaHome Corporation

OTHER

Panasonic Factory Solutions Co., Ltd.

Matsushita Welding Systems Co., Ltd.

Notes: 1.  Matsushita’s consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 
2008 comprise the accounts of 556 consolidated companies, 
with 139 associated companies under the equity method.

 2.  Matsushita absorbed Matsushita Refrigeration Company on 
April 1, 2008.

 3.  On July 29, 2008, Matsushita’s Board of Directors decided 
to absorb Matsushita Battery Industrial Co., Ltd. on 
 October 1, 2008. 

Corporate Headquarters  

Investor Relations Office
Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd.
Investor Relations Office
1006, Oaza Kadoma, Kadoma-shi, Osaka 571-8501, Japan
Phone: +81-6-6908-1121
Web sites:
 English: http://ir-site.panasonic.com/
 http://panasonic.net/ir/ (from October 1, 2008)
 Japanese: http://ir-site.panasonic.com/jp/
 http://panasonic.co.jp/ir/ (from October 1, 2008)

Tokyo Investor Relations Office
Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd.
Tokyo Investor Relations Office
1-2, 1-chome, Shiba-Koen, Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-8581, Japan
Phone: +81-3-3437-1121

U.S. Investor Relations Office
Panasonic Finance (America), Inc.
1 Rockefeller Plaza, Suite 1001,
New York, NY 10020-2002, U.S.A.
Phone: +1-212-698-1362

European Investor Relations Office
Panasonic Finance (Europe) plc
10 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AD, U.K.
Phone: +44-20-7562-4400

Japanese Stock Exchange Listings
Tokyo, Osaka and Nagoya Stock Exchanges

Overseas Stock Exchange Listing
New York Stock Exchange

Number of Shares Issued (as of March 31, 2008)

2,453,053,497
(Including 351,936,341 shares held by Matsushita)

Number of Shareholders (as of March 31, 2008)

234,532

Transfer Agent for Common Stock
The Sumitomo Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.
5-33, Kitahama, 4-chome, Chuo-ku, Osaka-shi, 
Osaka 540-8639, Japan
Phone: +81-6-6220-2121

Depositary and Transfer Agent  
for American Depositary Receipts (ADRs)

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
4 New York Plaza, New York, NY 10004, U.S.A.

Corporate Bonds

1.64% Bonds due December 20, 2011
 Fiscal Agent:
  Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation
  6-5, 4-chome, Kitahama, Chuo-ku, Osaka-shi,
  Osaka 541-0041, Japan
  Phone: +81-6-6227-2120
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(Yen) (Millions of Shares)
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 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

High  ................ 1,590 ....................... 1,694 ...................... 2,515 ....................... 2,870 ......................2,585 ...........2,380

Low  .................... 860 ....................... 1,372 ...................... 1,485 ....................... 2,080 ......................1,912 ...........1,960

Major Shareholders (As of March 31, 2008)

 Share ownership Percentage of total 
Name (in thousands of shares)  issued shares (%)

Moxley & Co.  ..................................................................... 185,959 ......................... 7.58

The Master Trust Bank of Japan Ltd. (trust account)  .......... 134,450 ......................... 5.48

Japan Trustee Service Bank, Ltd. (trust account)  ............... 87,358 ......................... 3.56

State Street Bank and Trust Co.  ........................................... 68,030 ......................... 2.77

Nippon Life Insurance Company  ........................................ 67,000 ......................... 2.73

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation  ............................... 57,583 ......................... 2.34

Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Co., Ltd.  ................................. 35,106 ......................... 1.43

Matsushita Electric Employee Shareholding Association  .... 33,869 ......................... 1.38

Sumitomo Life Insurance Co.  ............................................. 31,382 ......................... 1.27

State Street Bank and Trust Co., 505103 ............................. 25,878 ......................... 1.05

Notes 1.  The Company holds 351,936 thousand shares of its own common stock.
 2.  Holdings of less than 1,000 shares have been omitted.

Selected  
Financial Data
(Years ended March 31, 
2007 and 2008)

Breakdown of Issued Shares by  
Type of Shareholders  
(As of March 31, 2008)

Company Stock Price and Trading Volume (Tokyo Stock Exchange, Calendar year/monthly basis)

●	 Individuals  
and Others

 18.6%

●	 Other 
Corporations

 6.7% ●	 Overseas Investors

 28.7%

●	 Japanese 
Financial 
Institutions

 31.6%

●	 Treasury Stock

 14.4%

(Millions of yen, except per share information) 2007 2008

Net sales  .................................... ¥2,136,934 ¥2,252,560 ¥2,436,828 ¥2,281,848 ¥2,239,505 ¥2,285,800 ¥2,344,565 ¥2,199,058

Income before income taxes  ....... 75,392 157,082 144,394 62,276 83,968 103,673 176,590 70,762

Net income  ................................. 35,830 79,293 78,673 23,389 39,314 65,808 115,183 61,572

Net income per share, diluted  ..... ¥    16.27 ¥    36.16 ¥    36.13 ¥    10.84 ¥    18.38 ¥    30.99 ¥    54.49 ¥    29.22

Note:  Quarterly financial data is unaudited and has not been reviewed under Statements on Auditing Standards No. 100 “Interim Financial Information,” by 
Matsushita’s independent registered public accounting firm.

Net sales
Income before income 
taxes/Net sales
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Printed in Japan

Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd.
This annual report is printed with soy ink on FSC-certified paper made using 
wood that comes from well-managed forests.

http://panasonic.net/
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